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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (& Xib&EEBRRAF]) (the “Company”), | present the
audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group had a disappointing result for the 2015 financial year
with a net loss of HK$1,138.8 million attributable to owners of the
Company. During the year, with the continuous decrease in global
commodity prices for the year 2015, the Group continued to record a
substantial decrease in revenue from HK$5.9 billion in 2014 to HK$3.1
billion in 2015, representing a reduction of 47.5%; and inventory
provision significantly increased to HK$ 64.3 million during the year,
which resulted in a gross loss of HK$45.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, when compared to that of HK$17.4 million in 2014.

During the year, the Group continued to record a net loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of HK$1,138.8 million, as compared to
that of HK$1,058.0 million recorded in 2014. Loss on fair value changes
of derivative financial instruments decreased from HK$773.8 million in
2014 to HK$387.3 million in 2015, representing a reduction of 49.9%.
However, an accounting loss of approximately HK$305.5 million was
derived from the change in the fair value of the embedded derivative
components of the convertible bonds issued by the Company, due to
a non-cash accounting treatment solely for the purpose of complying
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") as a result of
the conversion of convertible bonds at a high share market price of the
Company during the year 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

With the overall decreasing global metal prices throughout the year
2015, the Group faced various challenges to achieve its procurement
volume to meet its processing needs even with its well established
overseas procurement network. The Group sold in aggregate over
465,400 tonnes of mixed metal scrap within its three business segments
throughout the year. This represents a decrease of 20.8% when
compared to the 587,400 tonnes sold in 2014.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled metal in
accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$0.82 in 2015 (2014: Basic loss per share HK$1.01).

With a strong presence in our Hong Kong operation since 2012, the
Company believes that the Group is now in a well-placed position to
establish a more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste processing
platform in Hong Kong.

During the year 2015, USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited
became the single largest shareholder of the Company. By virtue of
its familiarity with the metal market, including the market of scrap
and recycled metal, combined with the Group’s well established
procurement network, we believe that it will help further enhance the
Group's future development. The Group is consolidating the existing
procurement network and supply chain while broadening procurement
channels to maintain its competitive advantage.

With regard to the Group’s investment in establishing new processing
facilities in the Development Zone in Yantai City, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), we have recently acquired a piece of land nearby
our existing processing facilities in the Development Zone in Yantai City
for the purpose of expanding our production capacity of recycled metals
in the future.

Further to our announcements dated 1 December 2014, 29 May 2015
and 27 January 2016 in relation to the proposed acquisition of 60%
effective equity interest in Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Limited (2 & #3RERHEHERAF]), all conditions
precedent of the acquisition agreements have been satisfied and the
acquisition was completed on 27 January 2016. We aim to obtain the
production permit to start renewable oil operations progressively in the
coming year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

The Group is still the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for
recycling, reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC. The
Group developed a strong international procurement network with
established and developed suppliers which cover Europe, North America,
Oceania and the Middle East. Looking forward, we plan to expand our
procurement network in East and Southeast Asia for the purposes of
expanding the purchase volume of mixed metal and developing new
varieties of renewable resources recycling process. We believe this will
largely reduce the transportation cost and shorten the logistics time, as
well as lower the impact of the volatility of global commodity price on
the Group's profitability.

Following the subscriptions of the Company’s shares as described in
the Company’s announcement and circular dated 27 March 2015 and
28 April 2015 respectively (the “Subscriptions”) and the completions of
such Subscriptions on 30 April 2015 and 29 May 2015, the proceeds
from the Subscriptions (after deduction of all relevant costs and
expenses) (the “Proceeds”) amounted to approximately HK$4.1 billion,
which has significantly improved the overall financial position of the
Group when compared with the year 2014. We originally intended to
apply all the Proceeds to finance any potential acquisitions of businesses
or assets in metal recycling as well as environmental recycling industry.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 March 2016,
the Board has resolved to allocate approximately RMB1,350 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,614.7 million) out of the unutilised
Proceeds for investment in the financial industry, as well as for working
capital and funding for other general corporate purposes. The remaining
unutilised Proceeds (i.e. approximately HK$1,439.0 million) is expected
to be used as originally intended. Approximately HK$301 million
of Proceeds was used for investment in listed securities and wealth
management products as at the date of the report.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B)

The Group remains committed to further expanding its processing
capability in metal recycling facilities in order to further strengthen its
principal business of metal recycling, which is environmental friendly and
the Company believes, is a sector encouraged by the central government
of the PRC. The Group will continue to focus on its existing production
facilities, including those in Taizhou, Yantai and Hong Kong, while it
will also continue to be on the lookout for potential opportunities. In
addition to the existing business operations, the Group is also seeking
for other recycling and environmental projects related to its business in
the PRC.

The Group is also actively looking for suitable acquisition opportunities
within the scrap metal recycling sector in mature overseas markets.
Likely targets are global recyclers based overseas with the necessary
technology, management techniques and know-how to help upskill the
PRC recycling market and further strengthen its operations. In addition,
the Group will continue to explore new business and investment
opportunities in other areas and in PRC or overseas, including, without
limitation, investment in financial industry.

We believe that the development of the Group in the coming year will be

full of challenges, but we are hopeful about the prospects of the Group
and we will proceed with our business plans cautiously.

Tu Jianhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

With the prolonged downward bias in the global metal market seen
in the last 5 years, the management continued to face exceptional
challenges as the metal prices were in 2015 at their lowest levels since
the financial crisis in 2008, resulting in the Group’s disappointing
performance in 2015. With the U.S. economy still being in recovery and
economic uncertainty overclouding Europe and the PRC (given that the
U.S. interest rate is expected to increase in the coming months and the
depreciation of Renminbi against the U.S. Dollar), volatility in the global
metal market is expected to continue in the coming year. However,
the management believes in the long term prospects of the Group’s
performance.

In 2015, the Group continued to face challenges arising from the
difficult business environment, including the generally low global metal
prices and the anticipated slower economic growth in the PRC. With
the continuous decrease in global commodity prices during the year
2015, the Group continued to record a substantial decrease in revenue
from HK$5.9 billion in 2014 to HK$3.1 billion in 2015, representing
a reduction of 47.5%; and inventory provision significantly increased
to HK$ 64.3 million during the year, which resulted in a gross loss of
HK$45.3 million for the year 2015, when compared to that of HK$17.4
million in 2014.

Workshop (1) Crushing and milling
workshop
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEERERS T (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
During the year, the Group continued to record a net loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of HK$1,138.8 million, as compared
to that of HK$1,058.0 million recorded in 2014. Loss on fair value
changes of derivative financial instruments decreased from HK$773.8
million in 2014 to HK$387.3 million in 2015, representing a reduction
of 49.9%. However, an accounting loss of approximately HK$305.5
million was derived from the change in the fair value of the embedded
derivative components of the convertible bonds issued by the Company.
Nevertheless, given that the loss derived from the fair value change of
the embedded derivative components of the Company’s convertible
bonds is a non-cash accounting treatment solely for compliance with
HKFRSs, it will not have an impact on the operating cash flow of the
Group. As announced by the Company in its announcement and circular
dated 5 March 2015 and 11 April 2015 respectively, the maturity date
of the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$815,800,000 was extended for a further two
years to 1 March 2017, subject to the modifications set out in the
said announcement and circular. The extension was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 April 2015.

With a number of unforeseeable circumstances impacting the global
metal scrap market, the Group continued to experience a reduction in
purchase of metal scrap. During the year, mixed metal scrap purchase
by the Group remained at the same low level as recorded in 2014. The
Group sold in aggregate over 465,400 tonnes of processed products
within its three business segments throughout the year. This represents a
decrease of 20.8% when compared to the 587,400 tonnes sold in 2014.

During the year, the Group continued to follow its usual practices of
consistently buying mixed metal scrap and selling its recycled products
in accordance with its processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term
impact of price volatility on the overall performance of the Group.

Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$0.82 in 2015 (2014: Basic loss per share HK$1.01).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
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Our Procurement Network

The Group is still the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for
recycling, reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume
as approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC.
The Group developed a strong international procurement network
with established and developed suppliers which covers Europe, North
America, Oceania and the Middle East, which are critical to our success.
Looking forward, we plan to expand our procurement network in East
and Southeast Asia for the purpose of expanding the purchase volume
of mixed metal and developing new varieties of renewable resources
recycling process. We believe this will largely reduce the transportation
cost and shorten the logistics time, as well as lower the impact of the
volatility of global commodity price on the Group's profitability.

Our sales

A majority of our sales are made to customers located and based in the
PRC. As our recycled metals products are raw materials by nature for
which there is a ready market, as long as our selling price is in line with
the market price, our customers select us mainly for our good credibility
and steady supply of quality recycled metal products.
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Workshop (2) Shovel loader shovels
motors into hopper
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development

With a strong presence in our Hong Kong operation since 2012, the
Company believes that the Group is now in a well-placed position to
establish a more diversified scrap metal and electronic waste processing
platform in Hong Kong.

During the year, USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited became
the single largest shareholder of the Company. By virtue of its familiarity
with the metal market, including the market of scrap and recycled metal,
combined with the Group’s procurement network, we believe that it
will help further enhance the Group's future development. The Group is
consolidating the existing procurement network and supply chain whole
broadening procurement channels to maintain its competitive advantage.

With regard to the investment in establishing new processing facilities in
the Development Zone in Yantai City, PRC, we have recently acquired a
piece of land nearby our existing processing facilities in the Development
Zone in Yantai City for the purpose of expanding our production
capacity of recycled metals in the future.

As indicated in the Company’s announcements dated 1 December 2014
and 29 May 2015 and 27 January 2016 in relation to the proposed
establishment of a renewable oil investment company in the PRC and the
proposed acquisition of 60% effective equity interest in Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (B& S ERER AR
A 7)), which owns certain production facilities located in Yantai, the
PRC, all conditions precedent of the acquisition agreements have been
satisfied and the acquisition was completed on 27 January 2016. We
aim to obtain the production permit to start renewable oil operations

progressively in the coming year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)

In August 2015, the Group entered into (i) an agreement with
ITOCHU Corporation and SUZUKI SHOKAI Co., Ltd. (the “Acquisition
Agreement”), for acquiring the entire interests in a company which
engages in recycle processing and utilisation of metal scrap, discarded
appliances, office machines and other wastes and is the only approved
recycle processing enterprise in Changxing Island Harbor Industrial
Zone in Dalian, the PRC (the "Acquisition”), by issuing consideration
shares; and (ii) an agreement with ITOCHU Metals Corporation and
SUZUKI SHOKAI Co., Ltd. (the “JV Agreement”), to set up a joint venture
which will mainly be engaged in the trading of recycle materials with a
focus on the Chinese and Japanese markets (the “JV Formation”). For
more details please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 19
June 2015, 21 August 2015 and 30 December 2015 respectively. As
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2016, all
the conditions precedent under the Acquisition Agreement and the JV
Agreement have been satisfied, and the Acquisition and JV Formation
were completed on 21 March 2016.

The Company believes that the JV Formation will allow the Company to
expand its procurement network in Asia, which could largely reduce the
on route time of procurements as compared to obtaining international
supplies from Europe and North America, resulting in a potential
reduction in transportation cost and delivery time, as well as lowering
the Group’s exposure to the volatility in global metal market price.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Corporate and Business Development (continued)
Following the completion of the Subscriptions on 30 April 2015 and 29
May 2015, the Proceeds amounted to approximately HK$4.1 billion,
which has significantly improved the overall financial position of the
Group when compared with the year 2014. We intend to apply the
Proceeds to finance any potential acquisitions of businesses or assets in
metal recycling as well as environmental recycling industry. Meanwhile,
the Company is looking for any suitable acquisition opportunities within
the recycling business in the PRC as well as the overseas in order to
strengthen our procurement network.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 March
2016, the Board has resolved to allocate approximately RMB1,350
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,614.7 million) out of the
unutilised Proceeds for investment in the financial industry, as well as for
working capital and funding for other general corporate purposes. The
remaining unutilised Proceeds (i.e. approximately HK$1,439.0 million) is
expected to be used as originally intended.

Going forward, the Group remains committed to further expanding
its processing capability in metal recycling facilities in order to
further strengthen its principal business of metal recycling, which
is environmental friendly and the Company believes that is a sector
encouraged by the central government of the PRC. The Group will
continue to focus on its existing production facilities, including those
in Taizhou, Yantai and Hong Kong, while it will also continue to be on
the lookout for any potential opportunities. In addition to the existing
business operations, the Group is also seeking for other recycling and
environmental projects related to its business in the PRC.
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BUSINESS R

EVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

¥ 23 b |

Social Responsibilities
We create a positive impact on the environment through our recycling

operations which reduces the need for mining and processing of virgin
materials. As a responsible recycler, we are committed to doing business
in a manner that protects the environment, support sustainable use
of natural resources and minimization of waste. A comprehensive
environmental management system has been implemented in our
yard operations. The system is designed to effectively control the
emissions of our factories, ensure our operations adhere to relevant
environmental standards, and make recommendations for continuous
improvements. In 2015, our management led the implementation of a
number of environmentally friendly measures, including various resource
conservation initiatives in our operations and workplaces which achieved
promising results. We will continue to put more efforts into improving
environmental protection measures in respect of all our facilities.

In 2015, we were in compliance with relevant environmental regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC that have a significant impact on the Group'’s
business.

On the environmental protection front, we continued to place great
emphasis on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line with
local and national environmental protection standards.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRERDN (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Social Responsibilities (continued)

Our Taizhou facilities, the main production base, continued to qualify
as one of the designated processing units for imported metal scraps
recycling and utilisation in Zhejiang Province under the Environmental
Protection Department of Zhejiang Province (#TiT&IRIE(RERE). Our
production processes do not consume large volumes of electricity and
water and therefore produce very small volume of waste materials.
We consider that we have adopted sufficient environmental protection
measures and controls against air, water, solid and noise pollutions
produced during the course of our production processes.

Prospects

With the successful Subscriptions made in the first half of 2015, the
Group has received Proceeds amounting to approximately HK$4.1 billion
and is in a much improved and well-placed overall financial position.
The Group is actively looking for suitable acquisitions opportunities
within the scrap metal recycling sector in mature overseas markets.
Likely targets are global recyclers based overseas with the necessary
technology, management techniques and know-how to help upskill the
PRC recycling market and further strengthen its operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Prospects (continued)

During the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China
and the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of 2016,
Premier Li Kegiang emphasised, in the government work report, on a
vigorous development of the energy conservation and environmental
protection industry and improvement of the renewable resource
recycling network in the PRC. Together with continued strong support
from the PRC Government to develop the recycling industry, we remain
confident that the metal recycling industry in the PRC will continue to
grow and become an important source and an integral part of the metal
resources supply chain in the PRC in the future.

Given that the metal recycling industry contributes significantly to the
protection of environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, we continue to place heavy emphasis on our procurement
volume to ensure that it is in line with our processing needs and to cater
for our potential expansion for scrap materials in the PRC.

The Group will continue to explore new business and investment
opportunities in other areas and in PRC or overseas, including, without
limitation, investment in financial industry, as well as to expand its
current business in the metals recycling industry in order to maximise the
value and return of the Group's business and operations.

We believe that the development of the Group the coming year will be
full of challenges, but we are hopeful about the prospectus of the Group
and we will proceed with our business plans cautiously.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued) FBOERREE (&)
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Subsequent Event %=1

On 17 December 2015, USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited RA-ZZ—AF+-A++H AR E£EEH
(the “Offeror”) exercised an option granted by HWH Holdings Limited (ZF&) AR AT ([EHADNBREBERRA-S
("HWH") pursuant to a deed dated 23 October 2015 entered into —HFE+A - +=H 2 ZEITHEERE - Ek
between HWH and the Offeror in respect of 389,787,256 Shares (the ~ HWH Holdings Limited ([HWH J) 2 &8 % (%
“Option Shares”), requiring HWH to transfer to it all of the Option  3.50}& 7T 7 (B %88 :% H 2 &[4 389,787,256 &
Shares at a price of HK$3.50 per Share, totaling HK$1,364,255,396. The &5 ([ BBAZ#ERAZ (D |) - & 3£ 1,364,255,396 78
Option Shares represented approximately 24.54% of the then issued T o BIRERMDIEEN ARG EEEEITIRA
share capital of the Company. 4924.54% o

Immediately prior to the transfer of the Option Shares, the Offeror and ~ EiEMEIRER M EZER - EHA RHE — 51T
its Concert Parties (as defined in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers &y A+ (F%E RESATIE LA G ([=F
and Mergers (“the Code"”))(other than HWH) collectively held a total of 81 ]) (HWHER4M) £ E#E 4 509,608,000
509,608,000 Shares, representing approximately 32.08% of the then &5 HE R AR A ERHE ETR AL
issued share capital of the Company. Upon completion, the Offeror  32.08% < MM % » BHARH —EITEA
and its Concert Parties collectively held a total of 899,395,256 Shares,  + @554 £899,395,256 &A% (5  HEE R
representing approximately 56.62% of the then issued share capital AR FE D EITIRAL56.62% ° At - 18
of the Company. Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Code, the  #E<FRIREI26.1 » B4 AEIEHEE RS
Offeror was required to make an unconditional mandatory general cash 2 EHR S ELUEE S 689,119,450 Ik
offer to purchase a total of 689,119,450 Shares, representing all the 5 BIZEHARHE —BITE8 A LM A EA LA
issued Shares which were not already owned or agreed to be acquired B #§ U~ AT 2 3B1TRD - ZLHOATEA
by the Offeror and its Concert Parties. The Offeror was also required to 1R #E<FBIR B 132 HE A &2 RS
make an offer to cancel all outstanding share options in exchange for — E4)ET 8P4 AR T TP RS IR RE AR EREE & &2
cash and to acquire all the outstanding convertible bonds pursuant to ~ YEEFTA M ARE B A RIRE S (R [ ZE S
Rule 13 of the Code (collectively, the “Offers”) . #41) -
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Subsequent Event (continued)

As at the close of the Offers on 15 February 2016, the Offeror and
its Concert Parties were interested in an aggregate of 1,008,993,181
Shares (representing approximately 63.52% of the then issued share
capital of the Company), whereas 349,323,535 Shares, representing
approximately 21.99% of the then issued share capital of the Company,
were held by the public. Accordingly, the minimum public float
requirement of 25.0% under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules is not
satisfied. In this regard, the Stock Exchange has granted the Company
a temporary waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules and further details regarding the sufficiency of public float
of the Company are set out under the section titled “Sufficiency of
Public Float” in the Directors’ Report of this report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$2.8 billion, or 47.5%, from
HK$5.9 billion in 2014 to HK$3.1 billion in 2015. The decrease was
mainly attributable to a decrease in the sales volume and a continuous
decrease in the average selling prices of our recycled metal products and
foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$2.7 billion, or 45.8%, from
HK$5.9 billion in 2014 to HK$3.2 billion in 2015. The decrease is in line
with the decrease in revenue and primarily due to a decrease in sales
volume and reduction in the average purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross loss and gross loss margin

Gross loss of approximately HK$45.3 million was recorded in 2015 when
compared to that of HK$17.4 million in 2014. The gross loss margin
increased from 0.3% in 2014 to 1.4% in 2015. The gross loss was due
to the continuous decrease in global commodity prices for the year
2015, which resulted in an inventory provision of HK$ 64.3 million being
recognised during the year 2015 (2014: a reversal of inventory provision
of HK$11.9 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately HK$13.9
million, or 58.6%, from HK$23.7 million in 2014 to HK$9.8 million in
the year 2015. This was mainly due to the decrease in selling activities in
Hong Kong and the PRC during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$12.1 million, or
9.3%, from HK$130.5 million in 2014 to HK$142.6 million in the year
2015. This was mainly due to the increase in staff costs, rental expenses
as well as trade related contributions.

Other income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$5.4 million, or 19.3%,
from HK$28.0 million in 2014 to HK$22.6 million in the year 2015.
This was mainly because government grants received during the year
2015 mainly related to fixed assets and recognised for the deduction of
carrying amount of the fixed assets, while government grants received
in 2014 was recognised in profit or loss.

Other gains and losses

Other losses increased by approximately HK$79.8 million from
HK$770.9 million in 2014 to HK$850.7 million in the year 2015.
This was mainly due to the foreign exchange loss arising from the
depreciation of Renminbi against the U.S. Dollar, as a result of the
reform of the Reminbi middle exchange rate quotation regime, and the
loss on the fair value change of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds of the Company arising from a non-cash accounting
treatment solely for the purpose of complying with HKFRSs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$35.9 million, or 23.4%,
from HK$153.3 million in 2014 to HK$117.4 million in the year 2015.
This was mainly due to a decrease in the bank interest expenses as the
overall bank borrowings decreased during the year 2015 and a decrease
in effective interest expenses on convertible bonds due to the conversion
during the year.

Loss for the year

As a result of the factors discussed above, the Company incurred a net
loss for the year of approximately HK$1,144.0 million, as compared to
a net loss of HK$1,071.2 million in 2014. The overall increase in net
loss was mainly due to the loss on fair value changes of the embedded
derivative components of the convertible bonds of the Company
arising from a non-cash accounting treatment solely for the purpose of
complying with HKFRSs; and foreign exchange loss.

Key Financial Ratios
The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the date
for the periods indicated:
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At 31 At 31
December December
2015 2014
R=-ZB—-EE RZZE—MF
Liquidity Ratios REBEE R +=ZA=+-8B +=-ZA=+—H
Current ratio BN 3.33 0.90
Quick ratio RB L R 2.67 0.52
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELE(%) 225 58.8
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2015 2014
—E—RfF —E—E
Inventory turnover days FEREBH 120 114
Debtor’s turnover days FEURR B 88 B 28 1 13
Creditor’s turnover days FERTEREEE B & 13 12

BEEREERRAT —T-AFFR




Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The net current assets which included cash and various bank balances
and margin deposits amounted to HK$3,717.7 million as at 31
December 2015 (31 December 2014: HK$707.4 million). Total bank
borrowings were HK$1.1 billion as at 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014: HK$1.3 billion), and those were mainly used to purchase the
mixed metal scrap from overseas. Such borrowings were mainly
denominated in U.S. Dollars and Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was 22.5%
(31 December 2014: 58.8%) which is calculated based on the
total borrowings over total assets. The decrease was mainly due to
total Proceeds of approximately HK$4.1 billion received from the
Subscriptions, the decrease of principal amount of convertible bonds of
HK$435.6 million following the exercise of such convertible bonds and
the issue of conversion shares in relation and instalments paid thereto,
and the decrease in bank borrowings. Details of the completion of
the Subscriptions and issue of conversion shares were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 April 2015, 29 May 2015, 10
June 2015 and 15 June 2015.

Debtor’s turnover days decreased from 13 days for the year ended 31
December 2014 to 11 days for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the creditor’s turnover increased from 12 days for the year ended 31
December 2014 to 13 days for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Inventory turnover days increased from 114 days for the year ended 31
December 2014 to 120 days for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Funds raised by Subscriptions of the Company’s new
shares and use of Proceeds

Following the completion of the Subscriptions on 30 April 2015 and
29 May 2015, the total Proceeds from such Subscriptions amounted
to approximately HK$4.1 billion after the deduction of all relevant
expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Proceeds were utilised as ~ WEZE _£¢+_ A=+—HILFE  Fr
follows: %i‘)’\ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ’\%—rﬁﬁ
HK$ million
BEET
Expansion of production capacity HEnERE 146.2
Purchase raw materials BB RME 892.7

The remaining Proceeds from the Subscriptions amounted to
approximately HK$3,055.7 million as at 31 December 2015. As disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 11 March 2016, the Board
has resolved to allocate approximately RMB1,350 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,614.7 million) out of the unutilised Proceeds for
investment in the financial industry, as well as for working capital and
funding for other general corporate purposes, the remaining unutilised
Proceeds (i.e. approximately HK$1,439.0 million) is expected to be used
as originally intended. Approximately HK$1,589.2 million of Proceeds
was used for investment in listed securities and wealth management
products as at the latest practicable date for ascertaining information
referred to in this Annual Report (the “Latest Practicable Date"”).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, we had pledged certain plant and buildings,
land use rights and bank deposits with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$445.8 million (2014: approximately HK$577.9
million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2015, we had capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of a subsidiary, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments, additions in construction in progress and formation of
subsidiaries but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to HK$519.0 million (2014: HK$257.2 million).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed below, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “HCA 3040/2015") against the
Company as defendant for a sum of HK$57,827,118 together with
interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged non-payment of a
portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company Limited (“Delco
Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance with the terms of
a Shareholders Loan Assignment and Capitalisation Agreement dated
24 June 2010 between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company.
Delco alleged that it acquired all the assets and receivables of Delco Asia
pursuant to an Assets & Liabilities Transfer Agreement dated 3 October
2011 between itself and Delco Asia. The Company gave notice of
intention to contest the proceedings on 4 January 2016. On 26 February
2016, a summons was issued by the Company in the High Court of Hong
Kong for an order that the claim dated 21 December 2015 to be struck
out. The proceedings are now in progress.

Each of Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”), a former Director, and HWH
Holdings Limited (“HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and
hold harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against
all losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with
the terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015. Further, HWH has also agreed
that a sum including the amount of HK$57,827,118 be held in escrow
as security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, HCA
3040/2015.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to be a claim of
material importance for the reasons set out above, details of HCA
3040/2015 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES (continued)

With regard to the legal proceedings in the PRC between Shanghai
Chiho-Tiande Resource Recycling Co., Ltd. (E&EAXBELERE
A7) (“Shanghai JV”), an indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shanghai Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (E8R
ERHEEEEEAR]) (“SST") in relation to certain housing and land
lease contracts, disclosures have been made by the Company in its
announcements dated 14 December 2012, 15 January 2014, 22 January
2014 as well as its interim reports for the six months ended 30 June
2014 and 2015 and its annual report for the year ended 31 December
2014. On 18 December 2015, the Shanghai JV applied to Shanghai High
People’s Court for re-trial and seek for further legal relief. On the same
date, Shanghai High People’s Court accepted the re-trial application.
The re-trial application is currently in the process of being reviewed.

The Board takes the view that these legal proceedings will not have any
material adverse effect on the business, operations or financial results of
the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management strategy
aims to minimise the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

On 26 March 2015, the Board resolved to adopt a new policy
regarding dealings in metal futures contracts in order to better reflect
and restate the Group's current business requirements with regard
to dealings in metal futures contracts. Details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement made on the same date and the full policy
is available on the Company’s website, www.chiho-tiande.com.
In October 2015, all metal future contracts of the Group were settled
and closed.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board will closely
monitor the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in the view of the
volatile exchange rate for Reminbi to U.S. Dollars and other currencies
as a result of the reform of the Reminbi middle exchange rate quotation
regime, and consider various measures to minimise the foreign currency
risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

With the relatively low interest rates in 2015, the Group has not entered
into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other interest rate
related derivative financial instruments. However, the Group continues
to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need arises.

As for credit risk, the Group continues to follow the trade practices
of cash on collection from sales of all of its metal recycling products
in order to minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in
the Group's financial statements. In addition, the Group will continue
to monitor closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment
losses.

With regard to the liquidity risk, the Group will continue to maintain a
balance between the continuity of funding and the flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, we had a workforce of 461 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 2,380 separation and selection
workers through local recognised contractors. We have not experienced
any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor disputes which have
affected its operations in the past. We have not experienced any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We
continue to maintain good relationships with our employees.

THE REMUNERATION POLICY

We remunerate employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent employees. In
addition to benefits normally provided in line with industry practices,
the Company also has a share option scheme in place for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons including employees
of Group companies for their contributions to the long term success of
our Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSNEEANERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tu Jianhua (&# %), aged 53, is the Executive Director, Chairman
of the Company. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 29
April 2015. Mr. Tu serves as the Chairman of Executive Committee,
Nomination Committee, Pricing Committee and Strategy and
Investment Committee of the Company and he is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tu Jianhua was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company during the period from 16
February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He has been the chairman of USUM
Investment Group Limited since April 2014. He has been the director of
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (BEEBEABRAF]) since January 1996 and the
director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (FB&#EIRARZAR]) since January
2003. USUM Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (8%
&£EER2A7A]) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (B&#ERARAR]) are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd.
(BEEZERAMRAE]) in the period from January 2003 to July 2010 and
from February 2013 to December 2013, the executive director of Loncin
Group Co., Ltd. (BEEEHRAF) from January 1996 to January
1997, and the chairman of the board of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (&%
EE AR A A]) from January 1997 to December 2013. He served as the
general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline Engine Company (Sino-
American Joint Venture) (FE&AEEERE/THEAF]), a company
that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to
1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin Transportation
and Machinery Factory (BEE&2EHEME), a company that used to
be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1993 to 1995. He
served as the chairman of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin
Metal Factory (EEMNEHK REZSER), a company that used to be
controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to 1993 and the
factory director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory (EEHZESBR M
%), from 1983 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (4 B%& I H %) of the
Open College in Chongging City Municipal Party School (EEMZ &%
K7 E2BT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to
the 11th National People’s Congress, the deputy to the Second and Third
Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves as the deputy
to the 12th National People’s Congress and to the Fourth Chongqing
Municipal People’s Congress, and the member of the Finance Committee
of the Fourth Chongging City Municipal People’s Congress, the Executive
Committee Member of All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (%
= T g8, the vice president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce
Federation (ERET L), the vice president of Chongging City Charity
Federation (EEMZEZ4E) and the vice president of Chongging City
Enterprises Confederation (EET X4 D).

Mr. Tu is a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3903), and a director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603766).
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Mr. Zhang Mingjie (SRBAZR), aged 41, is an Executive Director. He was
appointed as an Executive Director on 22 August 2015. Mr. Zhang serves
as a member of the Executive Committee and Strategy and Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been the executive
director and president of Beijing Suncorps Financing Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd.* Jt R EREILERELEIRBRAR]) since
December 2012. Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the chairman of
Sincere Land Holdings Co., Ltd.* (ISt EZRARAF]) in the period
from January 2012 to November 2012 and served as financial general
manager of Sincere Land Holdings Co., Ltd.* (B EZERAERAF) in
the period from May 2011 to December 2011. From July 2001 to May
2012, he was a partner of Zhonghao Law Firm. Mr. Zhang is specialised
in merger and reorganization of capital markets.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree from Southwest University of
Political Science and Law in Chongging, the PRC and a master’s degree
from Macquarie University in Australia.

Mr. Zhang is a director of Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
and Tai Security Holding Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Jun (GRE), aged 49,is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as a Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director on 1 April 2016. Mr. Zhang
serves as a member of the Executive Committee and Strategy and
Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang was the secretary
of Party Working Committee and deputy director of the raw materials
department of Chongging Iron & Steel Company Limited (stock code:
1053) from July 2014 to March 2016, and was responsible for managing
the procurement of certain raw materials. From January 2013 to July
2014, Mr. Zhang was the factory director of a steelworks factory of
Chongging Iron & Steel Company Limited, and was responsible for
the preparation, construction, installation, debugging, production
and operations of the factory. From February 2009 to January 2013,
Mr. Zhang was the general manager and director of Chongging Tung
Wah Special Steel Co., Ltd.* (EERERKIMBRAEELQT) and was
responsible for overall administrative work, with a focus on marketing
and finance. From January 2004 to February 2009, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy general manager and director of Chongqging Tung Wah Special
Steel Co., Ltd.* (EERERHKM AR EEAF]), and was responsible
for production technology and supply related matters. From July 2003
to January 2004, Mr. Zhang was an assistant to general manager
and director of the production department of Chongging Special
Steel Group Company* (EE#5k 0 E A F)). From August 1999 to
July 2003, he was the factory director of two steelworks factories of
Chongging Special Steel Group Company* (EEFF K IMERE A F]). Mr.
Zhang possess indepth knowledge to the metal industry and he has over
10 years of experience in managerial roles in this industry.

* for identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Chongqing University with a bachelor
degree in iron and steel metallurgy in July 1990. He further obtained
a certificate as a qualified senior engineer (professional in iron and
steel metallurgy) in 2001. In 2011, Mr. Zhang completed an advanced
business management course at Tsinghua University School of
Economics and Management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (BE3#8#K), aged 66, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over
40 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves
as an independent non-executive director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited,
Matrix Holdings Limited, China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Sino Distillery Group Limited), China
Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company
Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited, China Household Holdings Limited,
MEGA MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (formerly known as Wing Tai
Investment Holdings Limited), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited and
China New Energy Power Group Limited.
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Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#X), aged 70, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. She joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Ms. Zhang is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. She was the vice-secretary-
general of Financial Trust Association of Zhejiang Province (4714 < &k
ZHEEWE) before joining our Group and she served as chief, general
manager and independent director and held various positions in various
Chinese banking and corporate finance sectors including the People’s
Bank of China Heilongjiang Branch (RFBIARIRTTEEETIE H17), the
People’s Bank of China Zhejiang Branch (FEARBITINITEDTT),
Financial Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (#/ T4 & ¢ ghiEF
1), and office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of People’s Bank of
China Shanghai Branch (FBIARIRIT LD TTMN S REEHAE).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (4875 % 12)
from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (2&T& &k

27).

Mr. Zhu Dajian (8 K#), aged 61, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He joined the Group on 17 December 2014. Mr. Zhu serves
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
a distinguished professor of the School of Economics & Management,
a director of the Institute of Governance for Sustainable Development
(IFEE REEIRMITFN), the head of the Department of Public
Management and Policy (R#£EIEX), and the vice chairman of the
Tongji University Academic Committee (RIEAZE2TZ 8 E), at Tongji
University in Shanghai (1-/8[F&KXE), the People’s Republic of China.
He was awarded the special allowance by the China’s State Council
in 2000. He was also a senior research scholar at Harvard University in
2005 and a senior visiting fellow at Melbourne University in Australia
from 1994 to 1995. Moreover, he is appointed as a member of The
State Foundation for Social Sciences, a member of the Social Science
Commission under the Chinese Education Ministry, a member of the
Experts Commission on Sustainable Development & Resource and
Environment (AIFEEREERMIRR ZERZEZE ) under the Chinese
Construction Ministry, and a special policy advisor (REAIFIEE
%) for the Shanghai Municipal Government. He is also a member of
the International Expert Committee of Enel Foundation in lItaly, the
Ellen MacArthur Foundation in the United Kingdom and Firmenich in
Switzerland, respectively. Mr. Zhu was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited on 21 August 2014, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 966).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Koon Wai Hung (E{2#), aged 48, is the Qualified Accountant and
Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 20 February
2016. Mr. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Commerce degree, majoring in
Accounting in 1992 and a Bachelor of Information Technology degree,
majoring in Business Information and MRP System in 1993, both from
Bond University in Australia. He is an associate of CPA Australia and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Koon has approximately 20 years of extensive experience in
accounting, financial management and auditing. Prior to joining the
Company, he had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu since January
2008 and his last held position was senior manager. Mr. Koon was
mainly involved in audit of Hong Kong listed companies that engaged in
manufacturing and real estate industries, and developed audit training
materials for the Deloitte Global worldwide network. He had previously
also worked in Ernst & Young and PricewaterhouseCoopers for a
cumulative period of approximately 8 years. Mr. Koon had also served as
the finance and administration manager of a Hong Kong listed company
for more than 4 years.

Ms. Yu Miu Cheung ((RIPE), aged 41, is the Vice President, Board
Secretary and Head of Board Office of the Group. Ms. Yu has served
as the Company Secretary of the Company since 15 March 2010. Ms.
Yu is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries. Ms. Yu has over 20 years of experience in
company management and secretarial fields, as well as the general
disclosure and the corporate compliance issue of listed companies.

Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (k@ 3R), aged 49, is the Vice President
and Chief Operation Officer of the Group and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 June 2015.

Mr. Zhu has extensive experience for over 20 years in the field of
international trading such as renewable resources and commodities.
Before joining the Company, he was manager of Hong Kong Gang Ao
International (Holdings) Company Limited, general manager of Ningbo
Tianshun Metal Processing Co., Ltd., and general manager of Ningbo
Three Sources Trade Development Co., Ltd.

Mr. Zhu graduated from Foreign Economic and Trade University in 1989,
and obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics, majoring in International
Trade. Between the year 2000 and 2001, he graduated from University
of Auckland in New Zealand and Auckland Business School, and
obtained MCom and MBA, respectively.
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Ms. Gong Jing (E8), aged 46, is the Vice President of the Group and
chairman of Lu Xin Cheng Clean Energy Limited, which is one of the
Company'’s subsidiaries in China. She joined the Group on 1 June 2015.

Ms. Gong Jing has over 10 years in the field of renewable resources
and environmental protection research and practice, and has extensive
experience in project investment, corporate management, industrial
development, policy coordination, construction of the park experience.
Before joining the Group, from February 2004, she led the construction
of Yantai Resource Recycling Processing Demonstration Zone, and
her most senior position was deputy secretary of Party member.
In November 2010, she took a part-time job in planning of Yantai
International Comprehensive Logistics Park, and her most senior
position was deputy director of control management committee and
Party member. She was also the part-time professor of Shandong
Business Vocational College. She was awarded Shandong Soft Science
Outstanding Achievement First Prize in September 2008, she was also
the vice president of Yantai City Renewable Resources Association,
director of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association Renewable
Metal Branch.

Ms. Gong was qualified as a senior accountant in January 2002, and
graduated from part-time postgraduate class in economic administration
inJune 2011.

Mr. Goh Kian Guan (RJR), aged 40, is the Chief Investment Officer
of the Group and General Manager of Investment & Development
Department and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
He joined the Group since 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Goh was the Managing Director for investments at USUM Investment
Group Limited (“USUM Group”). Prior to USUM Group, Mr. Goh was
the head of international Merger & Acquisition at an investment firm in
Shanghai. Before that, Mr. Goh served in Standard Chartered Corporate
Advisory and BNP Paribas Investment Banking Energy & Commodities
team. Prior to banking, Mr. Goh was with the strategic investment team
for Singapore Telecom working on Merger & Acquisition. Mr. Goh has
many years of experiences with both buy-side and sell-side, covering
energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT)
and high end manufacturing. Prior to that, Mr. Goh served 6 years as
an engineer, working on various projects, including oil fields, refineries,
petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real
estates and advance equipment manufacturing, covering technical,
commercial and financial management.

Mr. Goh graduated with a Master of Finance degree from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology of Australia, and a Bachelor of
Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University of
Singapore.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group on page 90.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 5 to 8 and 9 to 26 respectively of
this Annual Report which also form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Mr. Tu Jianhua, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company,
is indirectly interested in and has control over USUM Investment
Group Hong Kong Limited (“USUMHK"). Details of Mr. Tu's interest
is stated under Note 2 in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated Corporation”, i.e.
page 57 of this report.

On 21 March 2015, the Company and USUMHK entered into the second
subscription agreement (as amended and restated on 27 March 2015)
(the “Second Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which Company
conditionally agreed to issue and USUMHK conditionally agreed to
subscribe for 253 million shares (the “Second Subscription Shares”)
in the aggregate amount of HK$2,279.53 million at the initial price of
HK$9.01 per share, subject to adjustments.

The completion of the Second Subscription Agreement was conditional
upon the completion of the first subscription agreement between the
Company and USUMHK dated 21 March 2015 (the “First Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which 203.9 million shares were allotted
and issued to USUMHK on 30 April 2015 (the “First Subscription”).
Immediately after the completion of the First Subscription, USUMHK
held approximately 16.23% of the issued share capital of the Company
and hence became a substantial shareholder and a connected person of
the Company.

Accordingly, the Second Subscription Agreement constituted a
connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 15 May 2015,
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened and
the Second Subscription Agreement was duly approved.

On 29 May 2015, the Second Subscription Agreement was completed
and the Second Subscription Shares were allotted and issued to
USUMHK. Immediately after the completion of the Second Subscription
Agreement, USUMHK was interested in 456.9 million shares,
representing approximately 30.27% of the enlarged share capital of the
Company and became a controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the Latest

Practicable Date are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tu Jianhua (Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer for the period from 16 February 2016 to
31 March 2016)
(appointed on 29 April 2015)
Mr. Fang Ankong (Vice Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer for the period from 1 January 2015 to
15 February 2016)
(resigned on 16 February 2016)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (Vice President)
(resigned on 12 March 2015)
Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)
(resigned on 30 November 2015)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie
(appointed on 22 August 2015)
Mr. Meng Yi
(appointed on 22 Auqust 2015 and
resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Zhang Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 April 2016)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Michael Charles Lion
(resigned on 16 February 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Ms. Zhang Jingdong

Mr. Zhu Dajian

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company:

(i) Mr. Zhu Dajian and Ms. Zhang Jingdong shall retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company; and

(i) Mr. Zhang Mingjie and Mr. Zhang Jun, who were appointed under
Article 83(3) as an addition to the Board, shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and then
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as well.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into service contracts with Mr. Fang Ankong
(resigned on 16 February 2016), Dr. Loke Yu and Ms. Zhang Jingdong
on 24 June 2013 for a period of three years. On 17 December 2014, the
Company entered into an appointment letter with Mr. Zhu Dajian for a
term of 3 years commencing from 17 December 2014 to 16 December
2017. On 29 April 2015, the Company entered into a service contract
with Mr. Tu Jianhua for a term of 3 years commencing from 29 April
2015 to 28 April 2018. On 22 August 2015, the Company entered into
service contracts with Mr. Zhang Mingjie and Mr. Meng Yi (resigned on
1 April 2016) for a term of 3 years commencing from 22 August 2015 to
21 August 2018. The Company also entered into an appointment letter
with Mr. Zhang Jun for his appointment as an Executive Director, which
commenced from 1 April 2016. Mr. Zhang Jun is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules. In the event that Mr. Zhang Jun ceases to be Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Zhang Jun shall immediately resign as Executive
Director and the Company may immediately terminate his appointment
as Executive Director by providing written notice. None of the Directors
of the Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any service contract with the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his duties
or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any such director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The name of persons who have served on the board of the subsidiaries
of the Group during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date are:

Tu Jianhua

Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
Goh Kian Guan

Gan Jun

Kwok Chun Sing

Zhu Shihong

Kwok Suk Ling

Dohi Toshihiro

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in “1. Connected transaction in relation to the
agreements with certain bondholders to extend the maturity date of the
convertible bonds” under the section headed “Connected Transactions
And Continuing Connected Transactions” on page 40, the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 48 to 55 and note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this Annual Report,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or which
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 48 to 55 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY?’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

FUNDS RAISED BY SUBSCRIPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY'S NEW SHARES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

Following the completion of the Subscriptions on 30 April 2015 and
29 May 2015, the total Proceeds from such Subscriptions amounted
to approximately HK$4.1 billion after the deduction of all relevant
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Proceeds were utilised as
follows:
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The remaining Proceeds from the Subscriptions amounted to
approximately HK$3,055.7 million as at 31 December 2015. As disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 11 March 2016, the Board
has resolved to allocate approximately RMB1,350 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,614.7 million) out of the unutilised Proceeds for
investment in the financial industry, as well as for working capital and
funding for other general corporate purposes, the remaining unutilised
Proceeds (i.e. approximately HK$1,439.0 million) is expected to be used
as originally intended. Approximately HK$1,589.2 million of Proceeds
was used for investment in listed securities and wealth management
products as at the Latest Practicable Date.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,431,189.

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,562,235 (2014: HK$100,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2015, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 10.85% (2014:
11.82%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised
38.41% (2014: 33.36%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were
less than 30% of total revenue in 2015 and 2014.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their respective
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group's other five largest suppliers or
five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company and are required
to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and are set out in this section. The Company has complied with all the
applicable requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the following transactions:

1. Connected transactions in relation to the
agreements with certain bondholders to extend
the maturity date of the convertible bonds
On 1 March 2012, the Company issued to Delco, HWH and Sims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited (“Sims”) three-year
4% coupon convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principle amount of HK$815,800,000. The Convertible
Bonds were to mature on the third anniversary of the date of
issues (i.e. 1 March 2015), subject to extension. On 3 and 4 March
2015, the Company agreed with the holders of the Convertible
Bonds to extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds to 1
March 2017 (the “Extensions”), subject to certain undertakings
given by the Company. Subsequently, the undertaking given
to Delco was amended and supplemented by a supplemental
undertaking on 18 March 2015.

As of 5 March 2015, Delco and HWH were holders of 30.37% and
10.97% of the issued share capital of the Company respectively,
and hence substantial shareholders and connected persons of the
Company. Accordingly, the extension of maturity date of those
Convertible Bonds held by Delco and the extension of maturity
date of those Convertible Bonds Held by HWH constituted
connected transactions for the Company and were subject to
the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On
27 April 2015, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
was convened and the Extensions were duly approved.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.

Connected transactions in relation to the second
subscription agreement with USUMHK

On 21 March 2015, the Company and USUMHK entered into the
Second Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which Company
conditionally agreed to issue and USUMHK conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 253 million shares (the “Second Subscription
Shares”) in the aggregate amount of HK$2,279.53 million at the
initial price of HK$9.01 per share, subject to adjustments.

The completion of the Second Subscription Agreement was
conditional upon the completion of the First Subscription
Agreement between the Company and USUMHK dated 21 March
2015, pursuant to which 203.9 million shares were allotted and
issued to USUMHK on 30 April 2015 (the "First Subscription”).
Immediately after the completion of the First Subscription,
USUMHK held approximately 16.23% of the issued share capital
of the Company and hence became a substantial shareholder and
a connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the Second Subscription Agreement constituted
a connected transaction for the Company and was subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On
15 May 2015, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
was convened and the Second Subscription Agreement was duly
approved.

On 29 May 2015, the Second Subscription Agreement was
completed and the Second Subscription Shares were allotted
and issued to USUMHK. Immediately after the completion of
the Second Subscription Agreement, USUMHK was interested in
456.9 million shares, representing approximately 30.27% of the
enlarged share capital of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.

Connected transactions in relation to the
convertible bonds purchase agreement between

USUMHK and Sims (the “CB Purchase Agreement”)
On 9 April 2015, USUMHK and Sims entered in the CB Purchase
Agreement pursuant to which Sims conditionally agreed to
sell, and USUMHK conditionally agreed to purchase, all of the
Convertible Bonds owned by Sims (the “Sims Bonds”) for a
sum equivalent to the total of (i) the principal amount of the
Sims Bonds of HK$315.6 million and (ii) the amount of interest
which has accrued and remained unpaid upon the Sims Bonds
on and from 2 March 2015 up to and including the date of the
completion of the CB Purchase Agreement.

The CB Purchase Agreement was conditional upon, among
other things, (i) completion of the First Subscription Agreement
and the Second Subscription Agreement; (i) the extension of
maturity date of the Sims Bonds (the “Sims CB Extension”) having
been approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting of the
Company by way of poll; and (iii) the CB Purchase Agreement
having been approved by the independent Shareholders (i.e.
Shareholders other than USUMHK and its associates) at a general
meeting of the Company.

As set out in paragraph (2) above, the First Subscription
Agreement and the Second Subscription Agreement were
completed on 30 April 2015 and 29 May 2015 respectively. In
addition, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was
convened on 27 April 2015, during which the Sims CB Extension
and CB Purchase Agreement were duly approved. Accordingly, the
CB Purchase Agreement was subsequently completed on 3 June
2015.

For the reasons set out in paragraph (2) above, USUMHK is a
connected person of the Company. Therefore, the CB Purchase
Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company
and was subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4,

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Metal Management Asia Limtied (“Sims Asia”)

In order to renew the then existing arrangements under the old
master purchase agreement dated 16 February 2012 between
the Company and Sims Asia, on 28 March 2012, the Company
entered into the new master purchase agreement (the “New
Master Purchase Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to which
the relevant member(s) of Sims Asia, its subsidiaries and associates
(the “Sims Asia Group”) may purchase from the relevant
member(s) of the Group certain products including copper scrap
at prevailing market prices for the term of three years from 1 June
2012 to 31 May 2015. The aggregate values of the transactions
between the Group and the Sims Asia Group under the New
Master Purchase Agreement in the relevant periods during the
term were capped at the following annual caps:

Relevant periods during the term

A HAPR A AEBE A

BERXS RSERERS ()

4. BB ESims Metal Management
Asia Limited ([ Sims Asia |) B9 £
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Annual caps

FEER

1 June 2012 — 31 December 2012

R RAHEE_H+__A=1T—H
1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013

T —-F—A—RAE-FT—=-F+-F=+—H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NF-A—HEZZ—NF+=-A=+—H
1 January 2015 - 31 May 2015
—E-RF—A—HE-_Z—RAFRA=1+—H

US$37 million (approximately HK$288.6 million)
37,000,000 %7t (49 288,600,000 # 7T.)
US$74 million (approximately HK$577.2 million)
74,000,000 %7t (49577,200,000 7 7T.)
US$81 million (approximately HK$628.1 million)
81,000,000 % 7T (#7628,100,00057T)
US$45 million (approximately HK$348.9 million)
45,000,000 27t (4 348,900,000/ 7T)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4,

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master purchase agreement with Sims
Metal Management Asia Limtied (“Sims Asia”)
(continued)

Sims Asia is the intermediate holding company of Sims which
held approximately 15.88% of the issued share capital of the
Company when the New Master Purchase Agreement was entered
into. Therefore, Sims Asia was a substantial shareholder and
hence a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the New Master Purchase Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps were
more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the New
Master Purchase Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of
the Listing Rules and the New Master Purchase Agreement was
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 5 March 2015, Sims disposed of its entire shareholding in
the Company and has become an independent third party of the
Company. Therefore, Sims Asia ceased to be a connected person
to the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
New Master Purchase Agreement no longer constitutes continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transaction was carried out between the parties under the New
Master Purchase Agreement during the period from 1 January
2015 up to 5 March 2015 (2014 nil).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5.

Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase

of scrap metals from Sims Asia

In order to renew the then existing arrangements under the old
master supply agreement dated 16 January 2012 entered into
between the Company and Sims Asia, on 15 November 2012,
the Company entered into the new master supply agreement (the
“New Master Supply Agreement”) with Sims Asia pursuant to
which the relevant member(s) of the Group may purchase from
the relevant member(s) of the Sims Asia Group certain products
including scrap metals at prevailing market prices for the term
of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The
aggregate values of the transactions between the Group and the
Sims Asia Group under the New Master Supply Agreement in the
relevant periods during the term were capped at the following
annual caps:

Relevant periods during the term
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Annual caps

FELR

1 January 2013 — 31 December 2013
—E-=ZF—-f-HEZZE-Z=F+-A=+—8H
1 January 2014 — 31 December 2014
—E-NF-A—HEZZET—NF+=-_A=+—H
1 January 2015 — 31 December 2015
—E-RF-A-BE-T-BF+-A=t-H

For the reasons set out in paragraph (4) above, Sims Asia was
a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the New Master Supply Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual caps were
more than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the New
Master Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31
of the Listing Rules. The New Master Supply Agreement was
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Subsequently, for the reasons set
out in paragraph (4) above, on 5 March 2015, Sims Asia ceased
to be a connected person to the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the New Master Supply Agreement no longer
constitutes continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

US$200 million (approximately HK$ 1,560 million)
200,000,000 %7t (47 1,560,000,000 74 7T )
US$350 million (approximately HK$2,714 million)
350,000,000 27T, (#72,714,000,000 47T )
US$500 million (approximately HK$3,876 million)
500,000,000 27t (49 3,876,000,000 7 7T.)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5. Continuing connected transactions in relation to
the new master supply agreement for the purchase

of scrap metals from Sims Asia (continued)

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
scrap metals in the amount of HK$56.8 million (2014: HK$524.7
million) was purchased from Sims Asia by the Group under the
New Master Supply Agreement during the period from 1 January
2015 up to 5 March 2015.

Review by Independent Non-Executive Directors and

the auditor of the Company

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above not being
exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules have been reviewed
by the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. either on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors (except Mr. Tu
Jianhua, details as set out below) has interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group

EENHFEBPHER
REE-T-RF+-A=+—ALFE 1B
HETRA - SERER OREERERI - 3
ST ) R B A SR B 75 B S P AR

pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of entity
which businesses
are considered to
compete or likely
to compete with
the business of the

BF A BB BT RS s

Group Nature of interest of
Name of BHRARAEEER Description of businesses of the entity which are considered to the Director in the
Director BRAFZHATEER compete or likely to compete with the Group entity
] RENEBEREE BRARAEEXEBAR R THEBRAENERRENEE ESRERnERNE
Mr. Tu Jianhua ~ Chongging USUM According to the business scope as registered with the State Substantial
REELE Recycling Resources Administration For Industry & Commerce of the PRC, this entity may Shareholder

Development Co., engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing, marketing and sale of FERE

Ltd. recycling resources, scrap metal related businesses.

ERRRBEERE BERHEERIETRERRELNELHE  HERITENLE

BERDA (K af) BEER EESBEOW - T - HEZRHEER -

Although the scope of business of the above entity allows it to engage

BELAERNEBHETTENERRAR

in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the Group, Mr.
Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that the above entity is currently only
engaged in the disintegration of automobile and trading of steel scrap,
which are not same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group.
Further, the above entity has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board of the Company and the above entity are independent of
each other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the above
entity in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted a post-IPO share option scheme on 23 June 2010

(the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions
of the shareholders of the Company and is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 23 June 2010. It is a share incentive
scheme established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee, advisor,
consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner, promoter, service provider of any
member of the Group.

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June 2010
and as approved by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange, the
original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share options could
be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was 100,000,000
Shares.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
23 May 2013 and the approval granted by the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange, the scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme had
been refreshed such that the maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 104,449,920 Shares. No
share option has been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
since the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit on 23 May 2013.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

B AEsT
ARAR-E—FESA-TZRRMERA
P MR 8 ([ R AP B AR
sal) -

BRARBERBREFSKARBRRER
RERIE - BRHR T -ZTFRA-T=
BT 104 - xR &2 — B 52/
HE . BEBELRAUAERZEALBER
AREHAREELNER - REBRAREE
BBEEA S EEEURBRAKE IR
BRANEMES - B8 - BN - EXRERH -
e ABE - HER - BF KB XK
B BELEAERH  AIMA - REHE
PR B AR -

BALAHEBEEEREREFGER - —TF
NAZT=ZBEHEN UWEBIEME
g REMGTERERBE(IRES
RAFRBERBERETIRENERE) B
100,000,000 A% Jf5 e

BEBEARATN-_E—=FRA-+=BL1TH
REFINAE KRB EHTEE SR DO
B BRAREERBRERTSI T I RLER
MR EIFERBEEEMN - BERITEERA
FE SR BRI TR AT A B AT
TETH &SRO EE TSR 104,449,920
e R-ZT—=FAF -+ =Bt EIEERE
BHE - BERBERAREERBRETS
B BBARE -



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the period from the date of listing of the Company on 12 July
2010 to 31 December 2015, the total number of the share options
exercised, lapsed and cancelled under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
is 83,127,000 Shares.

As of 31 December 2015, the total number of securities available for
issue under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme remains the refreshed
scheme mandate limit, being 104,449,920 Shares, representing:

(i) 6.575% of the total number of Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2015; and

(i)  6.45% of the total number of Shares of the Company as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
to eligible participants in any 12 months period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE (H)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRAESTE ()
As at 31 December 2015, details of the share options granted under the HR-Z—RF+-A=+—H  RIEBELIAH
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were as follows: BERBIREE M EOBREFBET ¢
Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding  Approximate
shares subject optionsasat  percentage of
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December shareholding in
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2015 the Company
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2015 granted exercised lapsed  R=F-IF (Note 2)
(Note?)  share period RZE-EE during during during t=A=1-H EALT
RILRH (HKS) (dd/mmiyyyy)  —B-BEx the year the year theyear  HFK{THEZ bAi
Grantees (B/B/%) SRORE 8 TRZERES EREL ERTR ERER BREYRC  BRESW
BEEA (&) (B (B/B/%) RzBf®  BREHE  BREHE  BREHA RH#E (M&2)
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Fang Ankong 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 6,600,000 0 0 6,600,000 0 -
(Resigned on —5——F “Z-WERRMAZE
16February 2016)  EA=H “5-nFRA=A
FRERE (Note 5) (Note 3)
(R=B-1E (HtzEs) (Ht3)
ZATRRER)
Mr. Stephanus 03/05/2011 6388 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 400,000 0 0 400,000 0 -
Mariavan Oojen ~ —F——% “E-IERARAE
(Resigned on RAZH “Z-RERA=A
12 March 2015) (Note 5) (Note 3)
Stephanus Mariavan ~ (ff35) (B3£3)
Ooijen i
(R=Z3-1F
ZRt-REE)
Mr. Gu Liyong 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 350,000 0 0 350,000 0 -
(Resigned on “E—F “Z-MERAMAS
30 November 2015)  RA=H “3-n%nA=H
BZELE (Note 3)
(R=Z-1% (HE3)
T-R=TERE)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRERTE (&)

Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding  Approximate
shares subject optionsasat percentage of
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December shareholding in
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2015 the Company
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2015 granted exercised lapsed R-F-1% (Note 2)
(Note) share perid  W-E-%f during during during +=A=+-R AL
RERE  (H) (dd/mmiyyyy) —F-Bi% the year the year theyear  MAAHEZ ZhE
Grantees (B/B/%) SREEE k8 fkzBRES FREH ERfTE FR&% BRESR:  BNEDR
BEA (Met1) (87 (B/B/%)  RzeBH%  BRESE  BRENE  BREEA bo (Wz2)
(i) Directors (continued)
E3(8)
Dr. Loke Yu 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 0 60,000 0 -
EigmEL Ef% “Z-MELAREE
A=R “E-RERAZA
(Note 3)
(HiiE3)
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 22,500 0 0 -
it S TE-ZFZACTNRE
ZAZtNA ZE-REZAZTtA
2810312014 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 22,500 0 0 -
“E-mE=A-T/\HE
“3-AFZA-TR
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 -
ZE-RESACT/\EE
“E-REZAZTtA
(Note 4)
(Mizt4)
75,000 0 75,000 0 0 -
BeXitEEERAT —ZE-EFFR




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRERTE ()

Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding  Approximate
shares subject optionsasat  percentage of
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December shareholding in
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2015 the Company
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2015 granted exercised lapsed R-F-1% (Note 2)
(Note1)  share perid  W-E-%f during during during +=A=+-H AL
RERE  (H) (dd/mmiyyyy) —F-Bi% the year the year theyear Mk B
Grantees (B/B/%) SREEE ks fkzBRES FREH ERfTE FR&% BRESR:  BNEDR
BEA (Met1) (87 (B/B/%)  RzeBH%  BRESE  BRENE  BREEA bo (Wz2)
(i) Directors (continued)
E3(8)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong ~ 03/05/2011 6.388  04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 60,000 0 60,000 0 0 -
ELiE Y E-f% “Z-MELAREE
A=R “Z-n%nA=A
(Note 3)
(Hit3)
280312012 4186 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2016 22,500 0 22,500 0 0 -
it S TE-ZFZACTNRE
ZAZt/A ZF-REZAZTtA
2810312014 - 2710312016 22,500 0 22,500 0 0 -
“B-MEZAZT/\RE
“3-pEZAt4R
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 -
ZE-RESACT/\EE
“E-REZAZTtA
(Note 4)
(Mizt4)
75,000 0 75,000 0 0 -
7,620,000 0 210,000 7,410,000 0 -
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRERTE ()

Number of
shares subject
Number of to outstanding  Approximate
shares subject optionsasat  percentage of
tooutstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof 31 December shareholding in
Date of Grant  Exercise options as at options options options 2015 the Company
(dd/mm/yyyy) price per Exercisable 1 January 2015 granted exercised lapsed R-F-1% (Note 2)
(Note1)  share perid  W-E-%f during during during +=A=+-H AL
RERE  (H) (dd/mmiyyyy) —F-Bi% the year the year theyear Mk B
Grantees (B/B/%) BREEE ks fkzBRES FREH ERfTE FR&% BRESR:  BNEDR
BEA (Met1) (87 (B/B/%)  RzeBH%  BRESE  BRENE  BREEA bo (ME2)
(i) Employees and other ~ 03/05/2011 6388 04/05/2014 - 03/05/2015 4,180,000 0 2,400,000 1,780,000 0 -
participants 3k “2-MERAMAE
EERAMBES TA=H “Z-REIA=R
(Note 3)
(Mt3)
28/03/2012 4186 28/03/2013-27/03/2016 2,805,000 0 2,725,000 0 80,000 0.00504%
E-Cf ZE-CECACTNAE
ZAZtNR ZF-REZAZTtA
28/03/2014 - 27/03/2016 2,805,000 0 2,289,000 0 516,000 0.03248%
“E-M=A=tN\RZE
“E-REZAZTtA
28/03/2015 - 27/03/2016 3,740,000 0 1,948,000 200,000 1,592,000 0.10022%
ZE-REZACTNAE
ZEREZACITHR
(Note )
(Rt4)
9,350,000 0 6,962,000 200,000 2,188,000 0.13774%
13,530,000 0 9,362,000 1,980,000 2,188,000 0.13774%
Total &3 21,150,000 0 9,572,000 9,390,000 2,188,000 0.13774%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(1

(2)

)

The date on which the Company offered to the grantees the share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Date of Grant”).

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued Shares of the
Company was 1,588,514,706 Shares.

Each of the grantees to whom share options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of share options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 3 May 2012, to the date of the second anniversary of
the Date of Grant, i.e. 3 May 2013 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) up to 30% of the total number of share options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the date immediately following
the second anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 4 May 2013 to the
date of the third anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 3 May 2014
(both dates inclusive); and

(i)  up to 40% of the total number of share options granted, at any time
during the period commencing from the date immediately following
the third anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 4 May 2014 to the
date of the fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 3 May 2015
(both dates inclusive).

Each of the grantees to whom share options have been conditionally
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(i) as to 30% of the total number of share options granted at any time
during the period commencing from the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant, i.e. 28 March 2013, to the date immediately before the
fourth anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March 2016 (both
dates inclusive);

(ii) as to 30%, from the second anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 28
March 2014, to the date immediately before the fourth anniversary

of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March 2016 (both dates inclusive); and

(i) as to 40%, from the third anniversary of the Date of Grant, i.e. 28
March 2015, to the date immediately before the fourth anniversary

of the Date of Grant, i.e. 27 March 2016 (both dates inclusive).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5)

(6)

On 3 May 2011, 16,500,000 share options and 1,000,000 share options
were granted to each of Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) and Mr. Stephanus
Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Ooijen”) respectively, among which 30%
of the total number of share options granted had an exercisable period
expiring on the second anniversary of the Date of Grant (i.e. 3 May 2013)
and another 30% of the total number of share options granted had an
exercisable period expiring on the third anniversary of the Date of Grant
(i.e. 3 May 2014) as mentioned in Note 3 above. In addition, these share
options were subject to the vesting condition that the net profit of the
Group for the financial year of the Company ended 31 December 2011 is
equal to or exceeds 130% of the net profit of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010. As the aforesaid condition was not met,
the share options granted to Mr. Fang and Mr. van Ooijen on 3 May 2011
did not duly vest and were not exercisable. Notwithstanding this, these
share options should be taken into account for the purpose of determining
whether the limits under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules are exceeded.

The weighted average closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which the share options were exercised were
HK$7.24 and HK$9.55 for the exercise prices of HK$6.388 and HK$4.186
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, cancelled or
lapsed as at 31 December 2015. An offer of the grant of an share option
shall be accepted by the eligible participants within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant of share option. The consideration paid by each
grantee for the acceptance and grant of each share option is HK$1.00,
which has to be paid within 28 days.

BRERTE ()
FikE - ()

(5)

R_ZE——FRAZARAAREEE([H%
4 |) K Stephanus Maria van Ooijen4E 4 (Tvan
Ooijen %t 4 1) 7 B H 16,500,000 17 & AR 72
£2.1,000,000 1 i A% 4 - 40 - SCBf aE 3 Fra -
E 1 30% ME R L EREAS AR A E
FoEABRFERERBBIZZE—=FRA=
H)1TE - S50 30% BB EEREAE TR
BRERHE=EAAFERER (=T —m4F
FA=ZB)TE o o - ZEERIEZ RN E
E-F——F+-A=+—BILARFYK
FERAEEFHEMNEENRBEOHE —T—
TE+ A=+ HUEMREEAEEFS
FEI130% B BB I o BR EatfgiF IRz
BBl R-E——FRAZAETHE
4 Tzvan Ooijen 50 AE BB AR RE D R IE U558 I
RAATE - BEWL - BEEAEHE LR
BIZE 17.0401) 1555 - DERT Rz SHERE -

(6) REEBEIREITE R BRI A ARRMD H I
U TE DRI 7.2478 7T (3h1T1# 12 6.388
WIS ) & 9.558 T (FhITE{E4.186 M
=)o

Br EXXFIREIN R —RAF+RA=+—

B ERE R L - SRR o R AR
ZENAHAERSBEALIRERTEBRES
HEHL 8B ANEST - SEBATIEMR
B BB PTHR(E A 1.008 T B 28
B RS
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

EmiiE
EEREBTRABREAAAREABE
B - RO RMESHEER KA

RIB-RF+-_A=+—H ARREFK
TRITRABRARBSEEEBER (E
& (EHFEHBERID(E5RAEEN ] E
XV ER) B in - ARBARD RESFHHEEARRE
ARERES L REERIFEI2ZIFAETEENE
O R PR SRSk AR I L T AR AUM 8%+ Pt T
BITAERETERRZHRESTRI([1R2ET
AN BARMEARBREEBHEIHMERAT]
(TBEZZ AT ) BB SOA B AN T -

Long positions in Shares: RIGEIAFE -
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of {h A2 R R FE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BMABE D
E=E8 B, Rt BEREZNROBEH (fEE1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled corporations 899,287,256 56.61%
IRBIERE NS VNE I (Note 2)
(fH3E2)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled corporations 230,197,990 14.49%
REANSE & REEGDEE 2 s (Note 3)
(FH5E3)
Mr. Meng Yi Beneficial owner 108,000 0.01%
(resigned on 1 April 2016) EnlEAA
Eaki=biolas

(RZZ—RFHA—HEHE)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued Shares of the
Company was 1,588,514,706 Shares.

(2) The 899,287,256 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr.
Tu") was indirectly interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM
Investment Group Limited (“USUM Group”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of USUM Group is
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings”), with an equity interest in
USUM Group of 46.78%. The remaining equity interests in USUM Group
are held by 21 individuals and 30 companies, all of whom are independent
third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold between
0.32% to 8.12% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98%
owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr.
Tu. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin
and 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK
held 899,287,256 Shares as at 31 December 2015. Therefore, Mr. Tu was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by USUMHK pursuant to the
SFO.

(3) Of the 230,197,990 Shares, 110,197,990 Shares and 120,000,000 Shares
were directly held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”) and
Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited (“Good Union”) respectively,
as beneficial owners. Tai Security and Good Union are companies directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang was
therefore deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
each of Tai Security and Good Union pursuant to the SFO. Please refer to
Notes 3 and 4 in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares in the Company”
below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

B i E ()
EBREETRABRERD ARIMABE
EHRG  ERRORESNERRKA
(#)

BT -

M RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8 ARFE%
TR B 4a B A 1,588,514,706 A% (D ©

(2) 899,287 256 MM Iy HAMIEELEE (T
B)ERAR(CAamEEDEE  Anas
BRREELE(REE]) BEREER
AR AEESHAEESERNEAR
ARI(CAREE D EE2EHE  AREE
AB—ERPREMKZZ AR - BEEED
BAE-—REARSITRERAR ([REE
B&))  HRA e ERNRAELR A 46.78% ©
MAEEMNSG T EER21BEAKIBA
Rl BB RREEREREENE=T)
BE - ZEBARARSFBEARSEE
0.32% £8.12% 2 f&#E - BHEIER D BIHE
SEEARAR ([BEE®]) A 8% L5
FEMWB 2% BEEEHRTEHEEIS% ;
HARS LT RAERRT (A REEDN
W) D RIEE 1% - HE-_ZT—RFE+ A
=+—H8 A EER B 899,287,256 % ik
%o FEit - MIBFESRBERN - REER
WA EBIFENRD PHAER -

(3)  $2230,197,990 F&f& 57 + 110,197,990 AR AR
1% 2.120,000,000 A% A% 15 93 Bl &3 Tai Security
Holding Limited([ Tai Security |) & 2 EFHEE
EERAR([RBEDIEREZHR AEERS
A ° Tai Security R 2EHARBPALE (K
EEDEEZEHRE - At - BEZHFLH
B SRAEEEBAETaI Security R2E
BEMHRBE RO HAEZ - AHBFE
BLETX [ EZREARARMBRG KIEE
Retn B AR | — 8 MiEE3 4 -

B EXFTREESN M- E—RAFt - HA=1—
B ARAEEREZTHABHERAAF
SEEAEBOERE 2 Bl - ARG HESH
BEBRBEFRPERPIFEXVEET 8D
MATHGARB RN (BREREES R
HEGRGIBRRIGSURE - REREFLGIFR
BZRGEIAR) IARAREBEEZ LS
{GPIZE 352 AT E 2 B R M ATacsk « SR
BRESTRIA T MG AR E KB P2 (4
mIORR °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

EmiiE ()
EERFRA D MR R ARG 0
BRKA

R-T—RF+-A=+—B BELAES
REBTHABS - WTALRARRARG R
HRRBRR A R B RIR 5 B % R 161 55 336
AT B 2 B Mo A LA R m

follows: T
Long positions in Shares: BR1PEVIFE -
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of AN B RE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BREDE
REREM 54, HERtE BERBENRALH (Bi5E1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 899,287,256 56.61%
Hong Kong Limited TR A (Note 2)
AR EEE (FB)BRLAA (MizE2)
USUM Investment Interest in controlled corporations 899,287,256 56.61%
Group Limited RZAEHLER 2 (Note 2)
AR EEBRNBRAR] (f3E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 899,287,256 56.61%
fEZZERAR AT R HEBE 2 s (Note 2)
(Mg7E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 899,287,256 56.61%
fEEEEARAT REEGDEE 2 (Note 2)
(Bt 2)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled corporations 899,287,256 56.61%
REESLE REEGDEE 2 (Note 2)
(M5 2)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHE (H)

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

EmiiE ()
TERRRAD TR RARBR G K&
HRARA (H)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

(Note 1)
Total number of [ER NG e
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BREDE
REREH B, Rt BERZENROBH (F3EE1)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 120,000,000 7.55%
Investment Limited E=EAA (Note 3)
EEFERERRAA (3% 3)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 110,197,990 6.94%
BEmnlEBA (Note 4)
(M5t 4)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Person having a security 100,000,000 6.30%
PRESKEEBRAEAT interest in shares
BERMHIEMER 2 AL
China Construction Bank Person having a security 100,000,000 6.30%
Corporation interest in shares
B RIRTTIRID BRAE] RO ERES 2 AL
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled corporations 230,197,990 14.49%
SREAZR SR REZEGDEE 2 (Notes 3 & 4)
(HzE3 & 4)
BERMEBERAT —ZT—AFFHR




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued Shares of the
Company was 1,588,514,706 Shares.

2) The 899,287,256 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr.
Tu was indirectly interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM
Group, a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single
largest shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity
interest in USUM Group of 46.78%. The remaining equity interests in
USUM Group are held by 21 individuals and 30 companies, all of whom
are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they
each hold between 0.32% to 8.12% equity interests in USUM Group.
Loncin Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr.
Tu. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin
and 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK
held 899,287,256 Shares as at 31 December 2015. Therefore, Mr. Tu was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by USUMHK pursuant to the
SFO.

(3) The 120,000,000 Shares were held by Good Union as beneficial owner
and Good Union is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang as at 31 December
2015. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The 110,197,990 Shares were held by Tai Security as beneficial owner
and Tai Security is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang as at 31 December
2015. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

(5) According to the disclosure of interest forms filed by each of Delco
Participation B.V. (“Delco”), Mr. Fang, HWH Holdings Limited ("HWH"),
SVO Company B.V. (“SVO") and Mr. van Ooijen, the arrangement pursuant
to Section 317 of the SFO between Mr. Fang, Mr. van Ooijen, Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw (“Mr. de Leeuw”), HWH and Delco no longer existed
since 1 September 2015. Delco was 50%-owned by each of SVO and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL"). SVO was wholly-owned by Mr. van Ooijen. HPL
was wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals (“Stichting
HPL"), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. de Leeuw. Therefore,
notwithstanding no further disclosure of interest forms were filed
subsequent to 1 September 2015 by Mr. de Leeuw, HPL and Stichting HPL,
Mr. de Leewu, HPL and Stichting HPL were considered to have no interests
in the Shares by the Directors since 1 September 2015.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the senior
management of the Group based on their performance, experience, and
prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY
BAND

The remuneration of the Company’s senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out below:
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Certain member of the Company’s senior management were appointed
in 2016 and the remuneration payable to them are set out below:

ARBETERERABNR B RFHEZ
£ BARENHBESIAT -

Number of individuals

AE
Remuneration Band: £ FERC IR
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T 2
EARMERERAT ZE—REFIR




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On 13 July 2015, the Company announced that a reduction in the
shares of the Company held by the public after the transfer of the
entire share capital of Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”) to
Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr. Zhang”) on 8 July 2015 (the “Tai Security
Transfer”). As a result of and immediately after the Tai Security Transfer,
Mr. Zhang, through his entire shareholdings in Tai Security and Good
Union Hong Kong Investment Limited (“Good Union”), was indirectly
interested in 295,197,990 shares (approximately 18.60% of the then
total issued share capital of the Company) on 8 July 2015, among
which 175,197,990 shares and 120,000,000 shares were held by Tai
Security and Good Union respectively (representing approximately
11.04% and 7.56% of the then total issued share capital of the
Company respectively). As a result of the Tai Security Transfer, Mr.
Zhang has become a substantial shareholder and core connected person
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. Pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the shares held by Tai Security and Good Union cannot
be counted towards the public float of the Company. The Company
became aware of the insufficiency of public float during a routine
review of the shareholdings of its shareholders after office hour on 10
July 2015. The Company had since communicated with Mr. Zhang and
had been advised that Mr. Zhang was in the process of disposing of
some of the shares acquired through the acquisition of Tai Security to
independent third parties.

As announced by the Company on 15 July 2015, it had been informed
by Mr. Zhang on 14 July 2015 that Tai Security had disposed of
65,000,000 shares (representing approximately 4.10% of the then
issued share capital of the Company) on the open market on 13 July
2015. As a result of the said disposal, 405,800,460 shares had been
held in the public hands, representing approximately 25.57% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the announcement
dated 15 July 2015. Accordingly, the public float requirement under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules had been restored and complied with.

Save as disclosed above, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and with the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company had maintained sufficient public float throughout 31
December 2015.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT (continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 15 February 2016
and 23 February 2016, upon the close of the Offers, 349,323,535
Shares, representing approximately 21.99% of the then issued share
capital of the Company, were held by the public. Accordingly, upon the
close of the Offers, the minimum public float requirement of 25% under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules was not satisfied. The Company has
made an application to the Stock Exchange for and the Stock Exchange
has granted a temporary waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)
(a) of the Listing Rules for a period of three months from 15 February
2016 to 14 May 2016.

As further disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March
2016, after the completion of the Acquisition and the JV Formation,
349,323,535 Shares, representing approximately 21.57% of the then
issued share capital of the Company, are held by the public (other than
Sellers).

Mr. Meng Yi resigned as Executive Director on 1 April 2016 and ceased
to be a core connected person of the Company, hence his shareholding
in the Company counts towards the Company’s public float. As at 1 April
2016, 351,923,628 shares are held by the public, which represented
approximately 21.73% of the issued capital of the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the minimum public float requirement
of 25% under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules is still not satisfied.
Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company regarding the
restoration of public float as and when appropriate pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s
auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
Tu Jianhua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results
and improve our image with effective corporate governance procedures.

On 26 March 2015, taking into account the movement in the world
commodity market, the Group adopted a new set of policies regarding
dealings in metal futures contracts that better reflects the current
requirements of our business.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”), the
Company has adopted, applied and complied with all the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviations set out below:

(i)  During the period from 1 January 2015 to 28 April 2015, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
had not been segregated as required by provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code because Mr. Fang Ankong was both the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company during that period. On
29 April 2015, Mr. Tu Jianhua was appointed as the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Fang Ankong was
re-designated as the Vice Chairman of the Board and remained as
Chief Executive Officer of the Company until his resignation on 16
February 2016.

(i) Due to conflicts with other engagements, Mr. Tu Jianhua, who
was appointed as Chairman of the Board on 29 April 2015,
Mr. Zhu Dajian, the chairman of Remuneration Committee,
and Mr. Fang Ankong, the former chairman of Nomination
Committee, were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 22 May 2015, as required by provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code. However Dr. Loke Yu, the chairman of
Audit Committee and member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee was invited to, and attended such annual
general meeting of the Company.
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EEER®RE (H)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries with all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year in relation to
their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management
and relevant employees who likely possess inside information of the
Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions
and performances and comprises six Directors, including three
Executive Directors namely Mr. Tu Jianhua (appointed on 29 April
2015), Mr. Zhang Mingjie (appointed on 22 August 2015) and Mr.
Zhang Jun (appointed on 1 April 2016) and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Ms. Zhang Jingdong, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr.
Zhu Dajian. Mr. Michael Charles Lion resigned as a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on
16 February 2015. Mr. Stephanus Maria van QOoijen resigned as an
Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Executive Committee on 12 March 2015.
Mr. Gu Liyong resigned as an Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee on 30 November 2015. Mr. Fang Ankong resigned
as an Executive Director, the chairman of the Executive Committee
and Pricing Committee and member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee on 16 February 2016. Mr. Meng Yi was
appointed as Executive Director on 22 August 2015 and resigned as
Executive Director, member of the Executive Committee and Strategy
and Investment Committee on 1 April 2016. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day operation and management of the Group under the
Board's instruction. In addition, the Board has also established various
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees, including the Executive Committee (the “Executive
Committee”), the Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the Pricing
Committee (the “Pricing Committee”) and the Strategy and Investment
Committee (the “Strategy and Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference and further
details of these committees are set out hereunder. The Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration and the Group's annual results for
the Year were approved in the board meetings of the Company.
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THE BOARD (continued)
To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. None of them hold any other offices in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board has convened four regular meetings during the Year. The
attendance of all Directors at the Board Meetings, Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") and Extraordinary General Meetings (“EGM") of the
Company held during the Year are as follows:
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No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held
HEEHRHA ETERUE

Regular AGM/EGM
Name of Directors Board Meetings BRBERE
Espg EzgcEHgs BRRBAIARE
Executive Directors HITES
Tu Jianhua R 2/2 0/2
(Chairman since 29 April 2015) (EZZ—RFNAZTIABRAERE)
(appointed on 29 April 2015) (R=ZZE—AFMA=-+NBEZT)
Fang Ankong ARz 4/4 0/3
(Chairman for the period from (H=Z—HF—A—ZE2-F—1F
1 January 2015 to 28 April 2015) MAZ+N\BEEAER)
(resigned on 16 February 2016) (R=—ZT—XR"F-A+,BEI)
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 0/0 0/0

(resigned on 12 March 2015)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
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THE BOARD (continued) BEE(E)
No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held
HESRHE ETERUE
Regular AGM/EGM
Name of Directors Board Meetings BRRBEAE
Espgg EzgcHies BRREBIAE
Gu Liyong BEZE 3/3 33
(resigned on 30 November 2015) (R=ZT—RF+—A=1+H#ET)
Zhang Mingjie REAR 11 0/0
(appointed on 22 August 2015) (RZZ—RFNAZT-HEZEE)
Meng Vi 8 m”m 0/0
(appointed on 22 August 2015 (RZZ-—RFNAZTZHEZE
and resigned on 1 April 2016) MR —ZT—NEMA—BET)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 16 February 2015) (R=—Z—RE=-RA+BET)
Independent Non-Executive Directors B HE#ITES
Loke Yu BEE AR 4/4 3/3
Zhang lingdong BWR 4/4 0/3
Zhu Dajian EARE 4/4 0/3

The Company adopted a procedure to enable the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense. Subject to the prior approval by the Chairman
of the Board and notification to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, the Directors may seek independent legal, financial or other
professional advice from advisors independent of those advising the
Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances to
enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively, either on the
Company'’s affairs or in respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the
Company's expense.

Mr. Tu Jianhua, the Chairman of the Company held two meetings
with the Independent Non-Executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present in 2015.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Executive Committee in March 2011 with
written terms of reference, which is responsible for the management
and administration of the business of the Company and any matters
which are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under
the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

The Executive Committee currently consists of Mr. Tu Jianhua (appointed
on 29 April 2015), Mr. Zhang Mingjie (appointed on 22 August 2015)
and Mr. Zhang Jun (appointed on 1 April 2016), all of the Executive
Directors of the Company, and is chaired by Mr. Tu Jianhua. Mr.
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Mr. Gu Liyong and Mr. Meng Yi resigned
as the members of the Executive Committee of the Company on 12
March 2015, 30 November 2015 and 1 April 2016 respectively. Mr.
Fang Ankong resigned and ceased to be the chairman of the Executive
Committee and Mr. Tu Jianhua has been appointed as chairman of the
Executive Committee, with effect from 16 February 2016.

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (ii) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
Every newly appointed Director of the Company receives a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment to make sure that he has proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities in the Company.

During the Year, all Directors received regular updates and presentation
on changes and developments to the Group's business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

The Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars for
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development programmes by attending
seminars, in-house briefings and reading materials. The Company
organized a training session in December 2015 on issues in relation
to the disclosure of inside information and regulatory investigations
involving listed companies.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they
have provided their respective training records to the Company Secretary
for record, as set out below:

Name of Directors

HiTRE"E (&)
ESRIREXRE ()

ARRHEBEZ2 AR XERABMH S
ENEREENEEOME RIEE - RAF
B FrEESEELFTNE - NEE®RNE
BV RASMFEERERTE - ARAH
R-F-—AF+-ACAB—HFIIRE RN
BERABEERERS R LT ARNEEH
% o

EXRIIRERERE - MAEEEHESER2
MAAREFIRIE - BRAAARAXN - BRE
ERARWERAEESBRBIEENT

Attending seminars/In-house briefing/
Reading materials

BEEpns SNSRI EA R

Directors HITES

Tu Jianhua REE v
(Chairman since 29 April 2015) (BEZZ—AFNA=-TNLBREEE)
(appointed on 29 April 2015) (RZZ—RAFHA=Z+NBEZE)

Fang Ankong R v
(Chairman for the period (A=Z—HF—A—%
from 1 January 2015 to 28 April 2015) —E-REMA=+\BHEAERE)
(resigned on 16 February 2016) (R=ZZ—AR"FZA+/NBFT)

Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen N/A i A
(resigned on 12 March 2015) (RZZE—RFE=A+=-BEF)

Gu Liyong BEE v
(resigned on 30 November 2015) (RZZ—RF+—A=1THEHE)

Zhang Mingjie SREAAN v
(appointed on 22 August 2015) (RZZT—RFNAZ+ZBEZE)

Meng Yi B v
(appointed on 22 August 2015 and (RZZ-—RFENAZT_HEZER
resigned on 1 April 2016) RIZ—REMA—BEE)

Non-Executive Director FHITES

Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion N/A i F
(resigned on 16 February 2015) (RZZE—RFE_A+NBEME)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES

Loke Yu BEE AR v

Zhang lJingdong SR v

Zhu Dajian BN v

ESREEERAT —T—RFFR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015, which has
included changes in line with the amendments to the Main Board Listing
Rules relating to the risk management and internal control section of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report which
has come into effect for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website. The Audit Committee has established a whistleblowing policy
of the Company in December 2012 and set out the procedures on
reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting matters of the
Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee currently consists
of all three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms.
Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Zhu Dajian, and is chaired by Dr. Loke Yu.
Mr. Michael Charles Lion resigned and ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee on 16 February 2015. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee convened three meetings during the Year with the
attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

il

\

BREEE

ARREER EmHR RIS mmEAEER
SRR —E-EFRNARLERZES - YT
RAEMBELE - ARRER-_ZT—AF+=
ATHRRA—EERZ BB NBER
B EheRR-_T-RF-A-AEERZ
IRETRAUNBEEEE AT REEE LR
ST BB - EREEGNEERE
& E OB A P AB UL R AR R ARV P B - B
BEEGER T —F+ZAGIELRATN
BRER - XWIABBRARRNMHARER
RHREFEZTNMABITRNER °

B

ERZEgNFERARERIT REBAEH
IS RER T RABEERT - URIEE R
EERONERZEAD c ERZEESHERREME =
FRIEWITEE - BIEEEMEL E%ﬂﬁﬁ
TRERESRLE - EAMNELTAEREES
J& ° Michael Charles Liont EER —Z—ARF
A+ NBEFEYTEAEZZESKE - B
FELEMBRREI2NVERE BREESER
EHEHEEEREHER -

RAFE  BREEGH
BHEWNT

]:IEI
T
[
=3
lﬂﬂ>
DXF
3

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEENEHSR HESREE T ETERYE
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu (Chairman) REgMR(EE) 2/3
Zhang Jingdong EHR 3/3
Zhu Dajian AR 3/3
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles Lion 0/0
(resigned on 16 February 2015) (R=FE—RAF A+ <HEI)
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RER®RE (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed in its Committee
meetings the audited financial results for the year ended 31 December
2014, the unaudited interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2015, the connected transactions report for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the whistleblowing policy reports for the
period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2015, the internal control reports for the year ended 31
December 2014, the engagement terms and remuneration of auditors
and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages and
conditions of employment for the Directors and senior management of
the Group; (ii) evaluating and making recommendations on employee
benefit arrangements; (iii) assessing performance of Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of Dr. Loke Yu, Ms.
Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Zhu Dajian, Independent Non-Executive
Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Zhu Dajian. Mr. Stephanus Maria van
Ooijen and Mr. Fang Ankong resigned and ceased to be the members of
the Remuneration Committee on 12 March 2015 and 16 February 2016
respectively.

BREEE (&)
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£ WAt ALTROAEE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
The Remuneration Committee convened two meetings during the Year
with the attendance of each member as follows:

Name of Committee members

FNEEE (E)
RAFEE  FHWEZESLBAMADE © §K
%ﬁ}%ﬁu‘l‘ :

No. of Meetings attended/
No. of Meetings held

ZEEREHE LEEEYE BTEEHA
Executive Directors HITES
Fang Ankong FRZE 212
(Chairman for the period from (BT —hF—A—Z2=-FT—h1F
1 January to 25 March 2015) ZAZ+RAHEMAERE)
(resigned on 16 February 2016) (R=ZZE—XE-A+B8T)
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 0/0
(resigned on 12 March 2015) (M=—ZB—RE=A+-HFF)
Independent BYFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu BeE g Ak 2/2
Zhang Jingdong EHR 2/2
Zhu Dajian E PN 2/2
(Chairman since 26 March 2015) (BZZ—hF=A=+BAXRE)

Throughout the Year, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the Directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration of the Group for the year of 2015, the
service contracts and remuneration for the appointment of Mr. Tu
Jianhua, Mr. Zhang Mingjie and Mr. Meng Yi as the Executive Directors,
the bonus payments to the resigned Directors and senior management,
and the renewal of service contracts of senior management of the
Company in 2015.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 15 August
2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. to formulate nomination policy for consideration of the Board and
implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

3. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

6.  to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

7. to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Tu Jianhua,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Zhu
Dajian, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Tu
Jianhua. Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen and Mr. Fang Ankong resigned
and ceased to be the members of the Nomination Committee on 12
March 2015 and 16 February 2016 respectively.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
The Nomination Committee convened one meeting during the Year with
the attendance of each member as follows:

HEMT

Name of Committee members

No. of Meeting attended/
No. of Meeting held

ZEEREHE HESBEE ETEEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Tu Jianhua IR 0/0
(Chairman since 29 April 2015) (BZZE—RFMNAZ+THLBHERER)
Fang Ankong L% 171
(Chairman for the period from (HZZ—hF—A—2-F—1F
1 January 2015 to 28 April 2015) MA=+N\BEMAERF)
(resigned on 16 February 2016) (R=ZZT—RFEZA+ BT
Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen 0/0

(resigned on 12 March 2015)

(R=ZZ—RF=A+=HET)

1”7

Independent BUKHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu RE AR

Zhang Jingdong FHCR

Zhu Dajian AR

7
il

Throughout the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
and discussed the composition, size and structure of the Board, the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, re-election
of Directors and appointment of Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Zhang Mingjie and
Mr. Meng Yi as Executive Directors.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will review
and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills and
experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,

in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy
The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board

Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the Year, the Nomination Committee
considered the age, education background and working experience of
the candidates when selecting the Executive Directors, and noted that
there was no legal and investment expert on the Board. Subsequently,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Company appointed
Mr. Zhang Mingjie, who is a lawyer and familiar with merger and
reorganization in capital markets, as an Executive Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee in June 2010 to review
and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group’s physical
stock, the Group's inventory level and hedging positions requirements
on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management of commodity price
fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk monitoring system. The
Pricing Committee currently comprises Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Koon Wai
Hung, Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong, Mr. Goh Kian Guan and Mr. Gan
Jun, and is chaired by Mr. Tu Jianhua. Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr.
Chow Wan Hoi Paul resigned and ceased to be members of the Pricing
Committee on 22 October 2015 and 20 November 2015 respectively.
Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry was appointed as a member of the
Pricing Committee on 20 November 2015 in replacement of Mr. Chow
Wan Hoi Paul but resigned on 20 February 2016 and Mr. Koon Wai
Hung has been appointed as a member of the Pricing Committee on
20 February 2016 in replacement of Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry. Mr.
Fang Ankong resigned and ceased to be the chairman of the Pricing
Committee and Mr. Tu Jianhua has been appointed as chairman of the
Pricing Committee, with effect from 16 February 2016. Mr. Xu Jialiang
and Mr. Zhu Zhonghui resigned and ceased to be the members of Pricing
Committee on 31 March 2016. Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong and Mr. Goh
Kian Guan were appointed as the members of Pricing Committee on 1
April 2016.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued) EEZES (&)
The Pricing Committee convened eleven meetings during the Year with RAFE - FEEZ8eHAR T —ReH &
the attendance of each member as follows: MEHREET

No. of Meetings attended/

Name of Committee Members No. of Meetings held

ZEERERE HESBEE ETEEEE

Chairman of Pricing Committee EEZEEXE

Fang Ankong FRZE 9/9
(resigned on 16 February 2016) (RZZ—REZA+XAEMT)

Committee Members ZEBHE

Chow Wan Hoi Paul AEE 9/9
(resigned on 20 November 2015) (RZZE—RF+—AZ+HEHE)

Xu Jialiang IR 9/9
(resigned on 31 March 2016) (R=ZZ—RFE=ZA=+—H&T)

Zhu Zhonghui RAEIE 9/9
(resigned on 31 March 2016) (R—ZE—REZA=+—HEMT)

Gan Jun HE 9/9

Chan Tung Tung Wﬂﬁ 9/9
(resigned on 22 October 2015) (RZZE—hEF+A-+ZHET)

Wong Heung Ming Henry ?ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬂ 0/0
(appointed on 20 November 2015 (R=ZE—RAF+—A-+THEZAEYL
and resigned on 20 February 2016) RZZT—R"F_R=ZTHEHE)

Throughout the Year, the Pricing Committee has reviewed the Group’s )j/\ﬁﬂlﬁf“ FTEZEeCEHAEERT AR

monthly physical stock price and commodities transactions. The Pricing SEEK&NMEmAZ S )50:2 heE - FEZEZE
Committee held three quarterly review meetings with the Board @HZB=e@HT=AFTERSEDE  URMEE

of Directors in 2015 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee T EZE@HE - NE 5% =0 Eﬁ‘;é
Report. In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board EBe&REEeCBERNHAEEN _T—

of Directors reviewed and discussed the Group’'s commodity future FHZEMERBEPAESHHERKRKFE - mré}m
contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory BERIFEEEEE @ LEMAEEGHEESS
management strategy of each quarter in 2015, and reviewed the BHIE&SXBIECE -

Group’s Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Strategy and Investment Committee in
December 2015. The written terms of reference of the Strategy and
Investment Committee have been subsequently adopted on 2 February
2016 and are available on the Company’s website.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i)  toact as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Tu
Jianhua, Mr. Zhang Mingjie and Mr. Zhang Jun, the Executive Directors,
and is chaired by Mr. Tu Jianhua. Mr. Meng Yi resigned and ceased to be
a member of the Strategy and Investment Committee on 1 April 2016.

The Strategy and Investment Committee was only set up in December
2015 and no meeting was convened during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary provides support to the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policies and procedures are followed. The draft Minutes of all Board
Meetings and Committee Meetings were circulated to the Board and
Board Committees within a reasonable time. All signed Minutes and
Resolutions of all Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were
circulated to all the Directors and Committee Members for record.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-to-
day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
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TEERBRE (&)

COMPANY SECRETARY (continued)

The Company Secretary has attended relevant professional seminars to
update her skills and knowledge. She has complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules and has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
During the Year, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are as follows:

nEWE (B)

RENEE AR E T & A B S
R - H—EMT EMRRE3290 - BR
AEEESET LR R E S RARE R

Al e

22 Ciliea
RAFRE - RERRY RIEERRBO N K
T2 o BEBES EEHATOHSIT ;

HK$
B
Type of services REER
Audit fee for the Group rEEEZER 2,460,000
Review of the Group's Interim Result EHREE TS 670,000
Review of the Group's indebtedness EHAREEES
and working capital sufficiency LREBEESRREE 640,000
Review of Continuing Connected HHRHERERS
Transaction 20,000
Total et 3,790,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the Year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. The Directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and
requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates
and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the
management. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 88 of this
report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating
an effective system of internal controls. The Company leverages on the
expertise offered by internal and external professionals to develop its
internal control system, which includes a well-established corporate
structure and an organisation with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The Company’s Internal Control Department is to provide
independent assurance to the Board and executive management on
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group. The
internal control system of the Company is reviewed and assessed on an
on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed
and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee and the
Board.

The Company’s Internal Control Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Company's
Internal Control Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work,
the Company's Internal Control Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically.

Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts

As disclosed in the Annual Report 2014, on March 2015 the Board
adopted a new policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts
(the “Policy”) to better reflect the current requirement of the Group's
business. The major changes in the Policy regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts are summarised as below:

(@) the Board considered it important to lock in our profits and
mitigate any potential for loss or diminution of our profit margin,
so it has increased the limit on the total quantity of futures
contracts that the Group may sell for hedging purposes (the
“Hedging Limit”) to 100% of the then latest available quantity of
physical inventories.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts

(continued)

(b)  the Board introduced a maximum amount of metal futures that
the Group may enter daily for each type of metal for the purposes
of cash flow and inventory management (the “Daily Limits”), in
order to avoid any sudden movement in open positions held by the
Group.

The Pricing Committee which, as referred to earlier in this report,
comprises the Group’s executive directors and senior management with
appropriate qualifications and experiences, has been established and
delegated with the operations of the Policy. It determines the range of
metal futures contracts the Group that may enter into during the month.
On a daily basis, the Pricing Committee reviews the open positions of the
Group and determines (i) the offer and sell price of our physical stock
and our hedging requirements; and (ii) the quantity and the price of the
metal futures contracts that the Group is going to buy or sell.

The Board receives a monthly report from the Pricing Committee on the
Group's metal futures activities carried out during the preceding month.
Should the Pricing Committee determine that any long-long or short-
short positions are to be taken, it must inform the Board and provide
supporting reasons in its report. In addition, the Company’s Finance
Department assesses and reports to the Board on the open positions of
the Group based on the Group’s cash position.

In the event the report from the Company’s Finance Department
demonstrates that the Group is not in strict compliance with the
Hedging Limit and the Daily Limit, the Group will put in place and
implement a plan to decrease the open positions of the Group within a
reasonable time in order to comply with the limits.

After taking into account the volatilities in the global commodity market
and the Group’s hedging and inventory requirements, the Pricing
Committee had been reducing the Group’s positions in all futures
contracts in 2015. By October 2015, all metal futures contracts were
settled and no such future contract was held as at 31 December 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Strategy and Investment Committee

In order to cope with the Group's development needs, enhance scientific
planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness of material
investment decision-makings and improve the corporate governance
structure of the Group, the Company established the Strategy and
Investment Committee on 21 December 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’” Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy enables the shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
of the Company to obtain comprehensive and plain information of
the Company, to exercise their powers on an informed basis and to
strengthen their communication with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held,;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: cosec@chiho-tiande.com
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
(“Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
“"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists.

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the Requisition.

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General

Meetings (continued)

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i)  notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice is
served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the EGM
is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (B)

PRERFER (&)
RREZHRE-BATRESZER

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules  1RIE4B4 S R2 MBI - F#R B s ER
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time to ~ FIJER + AN A B 0] TN A IR A & 3@ 16 L @R
time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a  FHEBRLFMA TR AES - DUERFHEGEZ26H
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director. SIERIIEES -

Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@) a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM,;

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless:

(i)  a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven (7)
days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date appointed for such general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director (continued)

2. In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified in
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;
(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contact with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as via
interviews, presentations, internet, telephone and email.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

In addition, the Company has during the Year organized numerous site
visits to the Group’s facilities with several fund managers and equity
market analysts. Through the site visits, the visitors managed to have a
better understanding of the Group’s operations and an opportunity to
know more about the Group’s development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy in
December 2012. This policy aims at encouraging and enabling
employees of the Group at all levels and others to report violations
or suspected violations and to raise serious concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters of the
Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZRETRE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 231, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEEHE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
el kEM2ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —RAF - A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —T-lF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FER FAEL
Revenue Wt 7 3,136,633 5,877,970
Cost of sales SHERAN 8 (3,181,909) (5,895,336)
Gross loss eS| (45,276) (17,366)
Other income Hiplg A 9 22,587 27,977
Other gains and losses Htlfas R g 10 (850,678) (770,923)
Distribution and selling expenses DHREERAS (9,785) (23,722)
Administrative expenses THRAX (142,604) (130,534)
Finance costs TSR AR 11 (117,383) (153,327)
Share of (loss) profit of an associate FEfEEE &N A (B51R) i 7l 20 (545) 284
Loss before tax BrEiATE B (1,143,684) (1,067,611)
Income tax expense FTiEHiFx 12 (337) (3,629)
Loss for the year FAEE 13 (1,144,021) (1,071,240)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hit2m (BZ) A
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently to E&#EFEEHHEZE
profit or loss: EEMIER
Exchange difference arising on translation MEREREBEEN
to presentation currency BN R (38,466) (9,623)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to  E&AJgEEFHEZR R
profit or loss: gIEE :
Reclassification to profit or loss on disposal P EAHfHERE
of available-for-sale investment ENNEEER (4,606) 499
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHEREATE
investment e 4,606 918
- 1,417
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMBEERY (38,466) (8,206)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRAEAMAZEE (1,182,487) (1,079,446)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT & 7 BRI AR
Owners of the Company Vi/NCTE PN (1,138,804) (1,057,980)
Non-controlling interests FEPER M (5,217) (13,260)
(1,144,021) (1,071,240)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AT EHEIEEAZE
attributable to: IS4
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (1,181,800) (1,066,423)
Non-controlling interests IR (687) (13,023)
(1,182,487) (1,079,446)
Loss per share BhkEE
— basic —HR 16 (0.82) (1.01)
- diluted = 16 (0.82) (1.01)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEEBBRRER

At 31 December 2015 R—ZE—hE+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AfF —T-mE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FHExT FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB R 17 548,129 508,265
Prepaid lease payments BRHEE 18 507,853 421,461
Investment properties HEYHE 19 20,954 22,351
Interest in an associate N ey 20 2,064 2,609
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEM - BB &R
plant and equipment Fiftiese 21 25,546 19,033
Deferred tax assets BIETIEEE 22 486 8,189
1,105,032 981,908
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 975,784 1,107,789
Trade, bills and other receivables B ZERHMEYNRE 24 215,230 431,443
Prepaid lease payments ANtk 18 12,603 10,620
Derivative financial instruments TEERTA 25 73 391,476
Tax recoverable AR B IE 11,460 10,382
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIRITIFR 26 132,022 182,559
Margin deposits IRFEES 26 - 253,292
Bank balances and cash RITER KR 26 3,585,720 271,556
4,932,892 2,659,117
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade, bills and other payables B ZEBRRHMENKE 27 222,351 412,209
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 25 - 402,932
Tax payable FESFITE 1,989 3,771
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITBRREZ 28 1,095,156 1,324,831
Other borrowings HAb AR 29 161,559 -
Debt component of convertible bonds AR ESF BB 29 - 816,421
1,481,055 2,960,164
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE (BE)FE 3,451,837 (301,047)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABER 4,556,869 680,861

EeREEFRAH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
FEMBMRRRE (E)

At 31 December 2015 R=—F—hE+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—B-%HF —z—ms
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHERT FH&ET
Capital and reserves B2 R @
Share capital 1IN 30 15,885 10,494
Share premium and reserves A&7 (B R i 4,472,090 713,556
Equity attributable to owners RNRARER AE(EERS
of the Company 4,487,975 724,050
Non-controlling interests PR i A 31 (74,141) (80,694)
Total equity s 4,413,834 643,356
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Other borrowings HABER 29 44,775 =
Debt component of convertible bonds AR ES R EREE D 29 58,812 =
Embedded derivative components AARESBRANITE
of convertible bonds TAHS 29 9,615 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEE & 22 29,833 37,505
143,035 37,505
4,556,869 680,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 231 were X FEI0EZE231 EHHFEE W BREN -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March —AF=A=-Z+=HAEESSHELRTEA

2016 and are signed on its behalf by: i W TINESKEREE :
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Zhang Mingjie REERE REAREE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR FE BE

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2015




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —RAF - A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAEENER
Foreign Attributable
Capital Share Statutory ~ Enterprise  Investment  currency Accumulated tonon-
Share Share redemption option  Capital  general expansion revaluation tranlation  (losses) controlling
apital  premumreseve  reseve  reserve Tesee fund — resee  resene  profs  Sub-fotel  interests Total
EREE B HER 0RER  RAER  MEER 2t #AR
R RO&E i B ERER B 5] i B (BR)EH gt EREE 5
HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'00  HKF'000  HKS'000
Thr T TRt  TAr TR TR TR TAr  TEn TR TR TEn TR
(notel)  (noteil)  (noteil)
(k) (W) (W)
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 10446 892493 04 N85 222760 104376 104376 (1417) Mg 3765 1774360 (67,671) 1,706,689
Loss for the year EnER = = = = = = = - - (1,057980) (1,057980)  (13.260) (1,071,240)
Bchange difference  #ER2H
arsng on translationto ~ EEEEH
presentation cureny — ERER = = = = = = = - (9860) - (9800) Bl (96)
Fair value gain on avalable- TEHEREATE
for-sale investment 3 - - - - - - - 918 - - 918 - 918
Redassified toprofitor ~ HHETEHERE
Joss on disposalof gy
avallable-for-sale
investment - - - - - - - 499 - - 499 - 499
Totdl comprehensiee  FAREREEE
expense for the year - - - - - - - 1417 (9860) (1,057,980) (1,066423) (13,023 (1,079,446)
Brercise of share options {7 E (230
(Note 30 {note i) (W) 8 16,568 - (4070) - - - - - - 12546 - 10546
Lapse of share options kR - - - (10949) - - - - - 10949 - - -
Recognition of equity- ~ FERNRELER
seifled share-based. ~— MARAAZE,
payments (Note36) 131 (136) - - - 3% - - - - - -3 -3
Transfer of reserves frleEn - - - - - 670 670 - - (130 - - -
At31 December 2014 H=5-TE
+=A=1-A 10494 909,06 04 0383 222760 105046 105,046 - 16151 @10715) 405 (80694  6433%
BeXitEEERAT —ZT—EFFR




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

REER2ER (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ—ZT—HF+=-_F=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAELE
Foreign Attributable
Capital ~ Share Statutory  Enterprise Investment  currency Accumulated to non-
Share  Share redemption ~ option  Capital  general expansion revaluation translation (losses) controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  reserve  reseve  profits  Sub-total  interests Total
E1BE  BhE EE-R L¥EE  REER SMEX B HER

Re BHEE  BE 0 RE ERER  BR 0 B¢ B Bk (58)EA 0t EEEL it

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Tén TR AL TR T TH TR TR TR TR TE TR T

(note i) (noteii)  (noteil)

(W) (ki) (Rgi)

Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - -
Bchange diffeence  #ER2H
ansing on transationto.~ EEEER)

- (1138804 (1138804 (5.217) (1,144,021)

presentation cureny  EEE - - - - - - - - (82.99%) - (%% 4530 (38460)
Fair value gain on availzble- TELEREATE

for-sle investment it - - - - - - - 4,606 - - 4606 - 4606
Recassfied toprofitor ~ AHETEHERER

Joss on disposalof Ry

avallable-for-sale

investment - - - - - - - (4606) - - [4606) - (4606)
Totdl comprehensiie ~~ ERAT

expense for the year ] - - - - - - - - (42996) (1,138,804) (1,181,800) (687) (1,182,487
Isse of shares SERR

(Note 30 (note ) (k30 (Rizki) 4569 4,112,100 - - - - - - - - 4,116,669 - 416,669
Cost of issuance of shares EF2ERA A - (2100 - - - - - - - - (100 - (2100
Conversion of convertible  EET %

bonds (Notes 29.nd 30)  (F229730) 6 8517 - - - - - - - - 8053 - 8058
Capita contribution from  JEAREREE

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 140 7.0
Bxerdise of share options (e (A 30

(Note 30 (note ) (Ki&ti)) % 6125 - (15830) - - - - - - 45485 - 4548
Lapse of share options ERIER - - - (36) - - - - -3 - - -
Recognition of equity- ~ esZhRiEGE

settled share-based IWRABER (i3

payments (Note 36) — (HEE36) - - - 0 - - - - - - 0 - 08
Transfer of reserves fifkER - - - - - 1] 1] - - (86) - - -
At31 December 2015 R=F-1%

+-A=t-H 15,885 5,864,803 04 1354 222,760 105,089 105,089 - 8755 (1945984) 4487975 (14141) 4413834

notes: FfRE

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal value 10 BRI () AD TR BT )\ 4 £ B S48 ATk

of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by BB A B RS R AR R B e sE  E A E AL A
the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the nominal value of the BTG Y AENEER () - —BEE
Company'’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in MR B 2%

2010.

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the appropriation (i) AARRERBARNASSRANET  ARE

of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant accounting rules and hE A REFBE (R E ) BEesEa R EEET
regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as required by the Articles USIATH LS 10% BAEE —BEBROCLHER
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to & o %;fi_ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&&\%%@g(ﬁﬁ%ggtgpm
apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund has BRI ERE50% @ B4R S o SE AR
reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory general reserve SR BRESTH ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?@&ifﬁ%?ﬁjﬁ m
and enterprise expansion fund can be used to make up prior year losses or to increase N

share capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—E—AF+—_A=+—HILFE
2015 2014
—2-1% ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before taxation BRBiAIEE (1,143,684) (1,067,611)
Adjustments for: HTH BB AE
Finance costs BB 117,383 153,327
Interest income FIEHA (13,890) (7,671)
Dividend income from available- A HERERSMA
for-sale investment - (301)
Depreciation of investment properties REMFENE 1,397 1,631
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRENE 28,958 36,122
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments e 3 10,542 10,593
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BE KEEN RS (2,084) (335)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREME W - (29,216)
Recovery of doubtful debts REEUE (1,613) -
Impairment loss on trade, bills and other receivables &5 - Zi kA KB ESE 53,166 1,807
Share-based payment expense ARG BEENHR 2 A 428 3,567
Share of loss (profit) of an associate [E{REE 2N Al E1E (5 F) 545 (284)
Reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of Rt E R HERER ERHHE
available-for-sale investment Yt (4,606) 499
Loss (gain) on fair value of embedded derivative AMHRREFHRAITETLAES S 2
components of convertible bonds AHERE () 305,463 (13,353)
Gain on fair value of warrants RREE N T EE - (1,331)
Loss on derecognition of convertible bonds RARRES < BE 1,210 =
Net foreign exchange losses EREEFE 112,012 34,005
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for inventories FERE (BERR) 64,290 (11,906)
Operating cash flows before movements EEACFHA
in working capital MEERETE (470,483) (890,457)
Decrease in inventories FERD 14,646 1,460,898
Decrease in trade, bills and other receivables 25 REREMERFIERD 156,439 318,799
(Increase) decrease in derivative financial instruments — $74£& BT & (240) 4 (11,529) 110,841
Decrease (increase) in margin deposits RERDS (M) 253,292 (78,359)
(Decrease) increase in trade, bills and other payables ~ Z5 « ZEREMENZIECRD) 10 (172,860) 4,809
Cash (used in) generated from operations mE (R MEES (230,495) 926,531
Interest paid ERFE (73,906) (95,468)
Tax paid BNFE (3,189) (2,198)
Tax refunded ERERE - 98
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES £&5%8 (Frf) i8R & 38 (307,590) 828,963

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

%: =] Eﬁﬁl)lbii (llﬁ)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ—ZT—HF+=-_F=+—HILFE
2015 2014
—2-1% ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of pledged bank deposits BABERRIER (337,726) (276,812)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERRE (137,017) (175,108)
Payment for additions of prepaid lease payments XFEENES (130,170) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEAHREERE (128,513) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WM - WERERESEE
plant and equipment (16,168) (17,736)
Investment in an associate BERBE AR - (2,325)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIMEBEARITER 379,313 235,786
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investment & A& R EMEHIE 124,405 14,971
Proceeds from government grant TR R85 2 TS 30E 44,612 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BE REREAEHE
plant and equipment 13,874 1,281
Interest received BIHE 16,735 4,166
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property HERBNEMGHE - 34,176
Dividend received from available-for-sale investment  YERAIfEHEREHRE - 301
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBARERE (170,655) (181,300)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Repayment of bank borrowings BBRITER (2,808,208) (5,193,076)
Repayment of other borrowings BEREAMEN (89,000) -
Repayment to a director BE—RE=HE (62,021) -
Net proceeds from issue of shares BRDEHIEFE 4,094,569 -
New bank borrowings raised HBRITIER 2,545,696 4,533,757
Advance from a director RE—EBEENBH 62,021 -
Proceeds from issue of shares through ERTEERERTRGD 2 METE
exercise of share options 45,485 12,546
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FERER A 7,240 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EZEfME (FiR) B 38 3,795,782 (646,773)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H&RBEEZEBEEFEEM 3,317,537 890
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R-BA-HRERELEEER 270,835 270,779
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ~ JMEERZEHNTE (2,652) (834)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER W+=A=+-AR4REL%EER 3,585,720 270,835
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BeRBESEER SN
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE 3,585,720 271,556
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) R17E S (M 28) - (721)
3,585,720 270,835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMIEHRRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE T —RAF - A=1+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its main place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone
of Metal Recycling Fengjiang, Lugiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

Since 22 December 2015, the Company’s ultimate holding
company has been Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”),
a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, and the
Company’s immediate holding company has been USUM
Investment Group Hong Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is
98% owned by Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director
of the Company since 29 April 2015.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FREMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEAM:I KRBT EEBHBIR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS S£EB ([ BB KRS ER )
("HKFRSs") (continued) (#&)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMEERERNTTREETE
effective B B 7% 3R &5 2= A
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised ZNEE B AR IR AT E R LA B B AR 1 &
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: ERBFE R BB BHREE
A
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' EAPBERELELFEIR S@mTA
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRNEREERE 155 FPALAWR'
Customers’
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BB RS R WL RG2S
Interests in Joint Operations? %115 (BFIA) Eof-Eyaii
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? ERGEE 1R BEarE2
(1BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable ERETERE 165 BB ITE K EN
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and KBS AR RS A2
Amortisation? 5 38%% (53T AX)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB HREES —TEEFECE
2012-2014 Cycle? CHES) ——FEBEE
FEREERR
SR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? BERAGEAE 165 B £EH
and HKAS 41 REBGE &R B>
E MK (BTR)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BAE g £ BN I RE N
Financial Statements? £27 5 (BF]A) by
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets R RS &R BB & EE R
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and F10RREBGE UNGIE NN
its Associate or Joint Venture? RIS 2857 (BRI A) ZEMEELS
A3
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the BEMIERELER REERE : ER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception? £105% - BEHB A NBRZ BIoh
BEERE 2% K Bn?
BB ESEENZE 285
(1B5TA)
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier 1 RZZ—N\F—HA—BskHERBZFEL
application permitted PR - RFTIREER °
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier 2 R-T—A"F—A—BXEBHABRZFES
application permitted PR - RFTIRFER °
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 3 TR B sk R FEMRE

B ARFRPEM ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

2.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9
was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI"”) measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2015

2.

P& RFTR] RASASR] & 8 M 5 3
HER(HEBHBHREER )
(%)
BRMBREEALIRLHTA
EAMBREEUNEIRNR-TTAF
i SEAMSRMAES BN BN
HMER - BBHERELE K%
R-FB—FFEH  MABHERER
SRR E R EEBORE - TR
ToSEE—SET MA—RESE
SHERBHAE - BEMBREEAEO
%8 — BRI ETIR A = T — P A
EEMA) AW REE ZABATE :
RbfEAETHEEB TAIANEBE
2 ERARA T BESIR] ((EAHH
fo 2 ERARD T EARD G EE7
AR RE EREEHARIET -

BRMBHRELNE RO ERTE

s MENATASEREINRE
BITA - #ERMEGE R
BEBASREELRIZEIHEK
AERFEFE - FRE BE
REAANWASRENEBRA
PR AERENREREDHA
& REREEASHHE AN
BEBRE  —RERESTHR
BB S ARG E » N B MR R
BBAaHNRERELENBEE
CEBEARRAZEBTE
AR BEER NGRS REE
FHEEZRSRARRNAR
EREAREEAS 2 M ENER
TR BHREBEMEEBEAR
RNFEINRZTAFE - IAEE
MEBKREREZERE DR
BREREHAROQITEE - 1
S REBEEEVHRELERE
5 BREA TR M E iR EE
Hit2EW ST 25 BEARE (I
FFHEEE) CHRATERE
W— R R T HERR SN °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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2.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 may have an impact on the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities based on the analysis of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future will have a material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
in issue but not yet effective will not have material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to the
provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports
and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance or Listing Rules but not under the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance or amended Listing Rules
are not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventory or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the

Company:
° has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwiill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

3 the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

3 the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

3 it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

3 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Rental income

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R MR M ()
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in Note 36.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERESFEXRGE)

(continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits/losses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EARESTHEE (&)
(continued)
Taxation (continued) BiE ()

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in an associate, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such property,
plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property, plant and equipment, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual value over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined by the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale (“AFS")
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEBEK(E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Financial assets (continued) SHEE (&)
Effective interest method BT E %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

3 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

3 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EE=F —

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) financial assets at
FVTPL or (b) loans and receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the fair value of AFS equity investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, margin
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
respective credit periods, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBER (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRTE (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments cHABERKRETA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are derivatives that are not
designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gain or loss arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 6.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and other payables,
bank borrowings and overdrafts and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

SEERRTZEAREETATRE
BRI ZIERERABENMEETA
ZEEDBRERABELME -

KETA
BETADEAEERIBREMERE
BZBETHARGRED ZEMAL -
SEERBTIRETARD WAER
B (HIRRERBEITRA) R -

ARBELAS 2 BT ANESER

REME - BE - HE - FITHEH
RRBARG 2 BRETABTERIERE
RUas sk EE -

EHEE
EREBEDERRATEFAERZ S
BAGKEMBERAR -

B FlEGABRZATHEE
WIHETERBREE R TR ZRAFE
SAABENEREEAITETA -

BRFEAABRSNESREEDNEAF
E5IRR - B 8RAELEZ EMER
RBHEKRPHER - RBERRPEIAZK
BaXERFENEELERAGEMTN
EF S LETA [ EAb s &8 | T2 B
A o RFEAMEE 6 ATt )7 N EE

Htt @A E

HemaE(BRES EEREM
PR ~ SRITRER BB REME
R BE TR LA 55 R AN R B BR A R OR

=

= °

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBER (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST E (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) SREERKRETIAR (F)
Effective interest method ERFE %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
bonds) issued by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and derivative in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and a derivative. A conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative components
are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivative components
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEBER (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST E (&)
Convertible bonds and warrants (continued) TR ES R ARER (F)
Convertible bonds (continued) A[HR1E S ()

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative components are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the lives of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Warrants

Warrants that will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as derivatives
and are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments include commodity
futures, provisional pricing arrangements and foreign currency
forwards contracts.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item at a future date that
can be settled net in cash are accounted for as derivatives unless
they were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose
of the receipt of the non-finance item in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
thus they are deemed as financial assets held-for-trading or
financial liabilities held-for-trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEREFEXRGE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

When the contractual terms of convertible bonds are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms, after taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
convertible bonds and the recognition of new convertible bonds.
The difference between the carrying amounts of convertible
bonds derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Write down on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of the reporting period,
and assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable commodity
exchanges. If the market price of inventories are to decline,
additional write down may be required. The Group’s inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories is disclosed
in Note 23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

BARE#R AR BT EE ()

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, and prepaid lease payments

When there is indication that an item of property, plant and
equipment, or prepaid lease payments has suffered an impairment
loss, management of the Group takes into consideration of the
estimation of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
calculation requires the Group to estimate the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use expected to arise from
the property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments are
disclosed in Notes 17 and 18, respectively.

The management conducts an impairment review of the property,
plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payments and assesses
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which
they are allocated. As explained in Note 7, the Group has three
operating segments and each segment represents the lowest level
cash-generating unit within the Group for internal management
purpose. As a result of the segment loss identified in the
metal recycling business segment (the “Recycling CGU"), the
management assesses the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments that are
allocated to this segment.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. f#srTHEBEFENETERR

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, and prepaid lease payments
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the Recycling CGU has been
determined based on the value in use calculation. The
calculation of the value in use for the Recycling CGU uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate of
11% (2014: 11%). The cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using zero growth rate. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and budgeted gross
margin, which are determined based on the Recycling CGU's
past performance and management’s expectation for the market
development.

The recoverable amount of the prepaid lease payments belonging
to the metal recycling business segment has been determined
based on the fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value was
determined based on direct comparison approach by reference to
recent market transaction prices for similar properties in similar
locations and conditions and adjusted for the remaining useful
lives of the land use rights.

The estimated recoverable amount of the Recycling CGU as well as
that of the prepaid lease payments exceeded the carrying amount
of the respective CGU and asset. The management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of the above assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount. No impairment loss is recognised for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account their estimated
residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. If the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge in the year in which such estimate
is changed.
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4.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Fair value of embedded derivative components of

convertible bonds

As described in Note 29, the directors of the Company use their
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair values of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds are determined using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model adjusted for specific terms and conditions of the
respective instruments. Major inputs into the model include
quoted market prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group'’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings and overdrafts, other borrowings and
convertible bonds disclosed in Note 28 and Note 29, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising capital, various reserves and
accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchases as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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6a.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EMTHE
Categories of financial instruments 6a. SEMTEMER
2015 2014
—Z—EF — = PUsE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 73 391,476
Loans and receivables (including ER & BN FIE (BE
cash and cash equivalents) RekALFMEER) 3,858,134 860,668
Financial liabilities LRIBE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA - 402,932
Embedded derivative components  A[ IR EH# ARSTE
of convertible bonds TAHS 9,615 -
Amortised cost B SR AN 1,498,567 2,455,290
Financial risk management objectives and 6b. TREAMREEBERBEK

6b.

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade, bills
and other receivables, derivative financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, margin deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade, bills and other payables, derivative financial liabilities,
bank borrowings and overdrafts, other borrowings, debt
component of convertible bonds and embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

BRUEEEBRAT

FEBNTIEZEScRMIABRESR
5 BEREEMEWFIR TE
EREE CDEMBTER K
FE - RITESRERES - ATHD
ERE BEH ZFBEREMEN
FE - TEERAE  RITEXK
FIEX - BB - AR E S
MEBE D AR ESRAR
TETARD - ZFERTAH
BRAEMERE - FHE%FR
BTANEREREMSRER(E
R B = R B e H A E AR R
%) FERREABDESRAR
AR % 5 L B T B RT A0 BRSR
NTEX - BEEEEEREEZF
2R\ B A e R B2 B B RO SRERE B
i
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases,
trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, margin deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade, bills and other payables, derivative financial
instruments and bank borrowings and overdrafts,
which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors
its foreign currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the need

arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with a bank
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for trade payables which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). The
derivatives were not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group was required to estimate the
fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts at
the end of the reporting period, which therefore also

exposed the Group to currency risk.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets

and liabilities which are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currency of the relevant

6.

TRIT A (&)

6b. TEEREERFEREE (&)

5 mk ()
() E®EEE)

rEEEBEERABEZK
HEESRAREEER 2
REEWASN 2 AT B ¥ 5T

group entities are as follows: 8 :
2015 2014
—B-AHF —TmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FH&ET
Monetary assets EWEE
HK$ ETT 5,425 2,562
usbD ETT 80,953 118,287
Euro ("EUR") BT ([Bc)) 1,634 24,490
RMB AR 308 244
Australian dollars (“AUD")  JEARF|Zeox ([RT]) 126,940 =
Monetary liabilities E¥aE
HK$ BIT - 12,496
usb ETT 771,057 1,068,551
EUR BR T 125,074 1,147
Net monetary assets EWEE(AE)FR
(liabilities)
HK$ BIT 5,425 (9,934)
usb =TT (690,104) (950,264)
EUR BT (123,440) 23,343
RMB AR 308 244
AUD JEIT 126,940 -
EEREBERAT —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRIITA (&)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

6b. TEEREERFEREE (&)

Market risk (continued) TiZ A (&)
() Currency risk (continued) () EEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis HEE ST

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies
of HK$, USD, EUR, RMB and AUD when such
currencies are different from the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
because it represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. On
this basis, if the foreign currencies strengthen/weaken
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities by 5%, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
would increase/decrease by the following magnitude,
and vice versa:

AREEEZRET  ET
BT - AR RORITIIEAR
MEEERNESRME
HZEEEOER -

RAIANBREREREAER
SN [ B B {5 R 5% HO B
BELR - IRZEERRE
EIRERTTEE R A fE IR
E)R B L SR o AL - fRSh
MEREREEEE Y
BEEWAE B2E5% A
=B ARk R E R B SR
momAOKEERT - R2
IR

2015 2014
—Z—EHF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Increase) decrease in loss: fE518 (SE00) >
Monetary assets and EMEERER
liabilities
HK$ strengthening against BT AREFE
RMB 227 (415)
USD strengthening against 704 AREFHE
RMB (25,828) (35,621)
EUR strengthening against BT ARE
RMB/USD EHE (4,629) 975
RMB strengthening against AR X ETHE
ushD 13 10
AUD strengthening against  SRIT¥ =T IHE
usbD 5,300 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRIITA (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

6b. TEEREERFEREE (&)

Market risk (continued) TiZ A (&)
() Currency risk (continued) () EmEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BT ()

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Group’s forward buying
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. If the
forward exchange rate of USD strengthens/weakens
5% against RMB while all other input variables of the
valuation models were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
the following magnitude:

A TSRBE DT THIRIBAE
A e o5 HA SR P T Bl 2 SR 8
BAEXRBETE ° fMETT
HRARBRETESEXRS
RIFEBE5% - ffkE
BAZABHEMBAZESR
FAAE - RIARKEFEARST
& BB, B EE
s

2015 2014
—E-hF —TmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAIT
Increase/decrease in loss: BRI, SR
USD strengthening against ~ EjLH AREHE
RMB 221 855

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
not necessarily representative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Other than HK$, USD, EUR, RMB and AUD, the Group
does not have any other major exposure to foreign
currency risk.

EeREEFRAH

EEERA - HRFREAR
HEERREANRR - B
RUE DI AR BB HNE
R o

BAETT X BT AR

KRBT REELER
HEMETBEINERE o

—E-REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITHA (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

6b. SEIEE

EEEBERBCR (#)

Market risk (continued) TiZ A (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FFEERE
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate $¢II§E TIFR RF B R

risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of London
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s USD
denominated borrowings.

The Group considers that the variable-rate bank
balances are within short maturity period, and
the fluctuation in interest rate and the cash flow
interest rate risk arising from the bank balances are
insignificant.

The Group’'s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate pledged bank deposits,
bank borrowings and overdrafts, other borrowings
and debt component of convertible bonds. It is the
Group's policy to maintain a majority of borrowings
at fixed rate of interest so as to reduce the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate
hedging contracts. Management monitors the
Group's related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

176 TR B S BT T 35 7 2R B
ﬁﬁﬁé‘ﬁﬁ@/miﬂ$ﬂ R ©
$%@E"]ﬁ$muiﬂ$ﬂﬁﬂﬁ
TEEHREREEAET
FHEME TS| LAY R ZERTT
B S HKE

REERARZBIBITERTY
ME%Wﬂ%’ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ
FMEBITEBERNIR SR
= FERE BB T ER

REBR R FENE R E
ERFEEEMRITER
RITIERREX - HMER
KAl ESNEEER DA
B o AEBEOBEREAE
DIERAERERTERMER R
1ﬁfﬁﬁ/m§ﬂ$ﬂﬁﬂ

$§%@jﬂﬁfﬂifiﬂﬂ‘ 53]
\‘EPA /] AEE gk#—?
RE l*ﬁF%?ﬂJTHE jIEAZ\
B Z B8 hE AR EE

when the need arises. R o
Sensitivity analysis BREE AT
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REE R - &% B FE
liabilities which carried variable interest rates at the BRASEEYEERAME
end of the reporting period are as follows: (1IN
2015 2014
—E-HF —TlmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Liabilities =k 333,048 291,783
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based
on the exposure to risk of interest rate changes for
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and management considered that
such exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was
minimal as the amount involved was not significant.

A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used
when reporting interest risk internally to key
management personnel because it represented
management’s assessment of the possible change in
interest rate.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year would increase/

6.

ERTH (&)
6b. SREREEHBEREE (H)

5 mk ()
(i) FEREZ (&)
BRAE ST (B

TSR ST D ER
H15R % BB TS BRAO T = 2
BERTIE « B RS
TK  HERRRAT LR
FERNFIRBBER LT
X o

LA 100 {3 2 2h 9 7 2% A S 42
AR EEEIEA 8 2 HRA
ZER  RAREAEEE
Y F R AT g B B RORTAY o

i 1) 2= 38 0,8k 2> 100 {E &
AT A HbEHAE - f
NEBFE RN EEIEE

decrease by the following magnitude: mn RO EEERT
2015 2014
—g-5F  —z-pg
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Increase/decrease in loss BRIE R 2,498 2,188
BEXhEBERART T HFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Commodity price risks
At 31 December 2014, the Group was exposed to
commodity price risks through its metal commodities
future contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to commodity price risk of metal
commodities future contracts at 31 December 2014.
If the commodity price risk of metal commodities
future contracts had been 5% higher/lower, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase by the following magnitude:

ERTH (&)
6b. SREREEHBEREE (H)

s Rk ()
(i) EapBEERE

oMt A=+
B ARERSBESHE
& WL R E AR -

SRR DT
THGEEDTTIER =T
—WE+—_A=+—H%8B
N DHIE S A RISE AL
B 75 O B B B (B R BEE S AY
ARERRRNE - M8
mEBEANHNERER L
Ft/ 5% » BIAN & @ E
NIE TR S SRV A bl
BEWNT :

2014

—ET—NF

HK$'000

FHT

Decrease/increase in loss SRVl 171,841

(iv)  Equity price risk on the Company’s shares
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group was also
exposed to equity price risk as a result of the fair value
change on the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds the Company had issued as set out
in Note 29.
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ERTH (&)
6b. SREREEHBEREE (H)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s shares’ equity
price risk of embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds. If the share price of the Company
inputted to the valuation model for assessing the fair
value of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds had been 10% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year would be changed by the
following magnitude:

Company's share price 10% higher

Market risk (continued) TiZ A (&)
(iv)  Equity price risk on the Company’s shares (continued) (v) ZARaE)RGZREESEE
(#%)
Sensitivity analysis HEEE ST

THNGURE DT THIR IR AT 2
BRES 2 BRARITET AH
7 P B < AR R B RAE TS
[E\BR MEETE © AR
BREFZBRANTETA
MR FEMEAZGER
R Z AR RIRME LR, T Bk
10% @ MATE E e R A
TE - BIREEFABRBIL
BIEEEH ZIEEMT

Company's share price 10% lower

AAARELR0% ARARETH10%
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f “T-RE “E-1% “T-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL Tin Thr
(Increase) decrease in loss iR ()R> (3,180) (5 2713 -
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis BIEERA  BRESTA

is not necessarily representative of the inherent
market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value
valuation of the embedded derivative components
of convertible bonds involves multiple variable where
certain variables are interdependent.

EeREEFRAH

PREBEBEMSZRR - B&
AHRBRESZRARITET
B &R0 2 AFE-ET P
Rz EBER  FREEE
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6.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 62% and 78% (2014: 66% and 81%) of its
total trade receivables was due from its largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The five largest
customers have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these customers under
internal assessment by the Group.

At 31 December 2014, the Group was also exposed to
concentration of credit risk arising on the deposit paid to
a former shareholder with significant influence over the
Company for purchase of raw materials of HK$4,294,000
(2015: nil), and deposits with several banks and
commodities future brokers with high credit ratings. The
former substantial shareholder has good repayment history
and credit quality with reference to the track records under
internal assessment by the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Annual Report 2015
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =R IA (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. TEEREERFEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The table was
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
outflows on derivative liabilities that are settled on a net
basis, and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on
those derivatives that require gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial liabilities
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considers that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

RBEZRER
AEBENERRARF[H/ERE
BREMRTERZENFE -

TRANAEEFTESRAR
MR EHFH - JIRBRAE
B AN K & B I
ELRMBERBRRSRE - i
MEBRERZE  KEASHER
BRE PR R ARG H -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =R IA (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. RIEMEERBERBEK (H)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEENE K T 2 e K15
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average  less than 1-3  3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate ~ 1month ~ months  to 1year years cash flows period
nE  REXE =A% AERRE RREHRZ
TRE HR-A -E=fA -5 -ERf iBAE HESE

%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
tRn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn

At 31 December 2015 “E-BEtZR=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities i £BEE
Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 131891 - 302 - 13219 132,193
Bills payable JEES 2.97 15 29 6,208 - 6,252 6,072
Bank borrowings and overdrafts PERRER
- fixed rate -E8 3.03 763,118 - - - 763118 762,108
- Variable rate -%8 3.61 333,542 - - - 33354 333,048
Debt component of convertible bonds  ATAREANHETADS
~ fixed rate -E8 4.00 - 1,352 1,352 68,952 71,656 58,812
Other borrowings - fived rate Afpfart-E 8 4.00 - 46730 137561 46,05 230341 206,334

1,228,566 48111 145423 115,002 1,537,102 1,498,567
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. ©REREERERBE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) REE D RFIF R R (E)
Total carrying
On value at the
Weighted ~ demand or Total  end of the
average  less than 13 3months 1-5 undiscounted  reporting
interestrate 1 month months  to 1 year years  cash flows period
mE  EERE =fAZ AEBRE RESERZ
THNE  SR-BR  —2=fif -£  -EZnf REEE BEEE

%  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TAL TAL TEL TEL TEL TiEL

At 31 December 2014 ZZ-METZA=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities ¥4 4HEE
Trade, bills and other payables 25 ZERAMERNFE - 313736 - 302 - 314038 314038
Bank horrowings and overdrafts BEARER
- fixed rate -E8 374 933,387 89,096 12,862 - 1035345 1,033,048
- variable rate —%E 335 292,184 - - - 292184 291,783
Debt component of convertible bonds TR ER 2 EHSBS
- fixed rate -8 4.00 - 82116 - - 832,116 816,421
1,539,307 921,212 13,164 - 2473683 2455290
Derivatives - net settlement fTETRA-BREE
Metal commodities future contracts £ BERHEAL - 266853 126349 9,715 - 40917 402917

Derivatives - gross settlement fiEIE-BELE
Foreign currency forward contracts — SMEEEIAY

- inflow —RA = = = (8,057) = (8,057) (8,057)

- outflow it = = = 8,072 = 8,072 8,072

= = 15 = 15 15

Derivative financial liabilities fieeMaE 266853 126,349 9,730 - 402932 402,932

EERMEEFRAT —T-AFFR
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6.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

6c¢.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2015, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,095,156,000 (2014:
HK$1,186,895,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
one year (2014: within one year) after the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows of HK$1,111,632,000 will be
repaid within one year (2014: HK$1,206,900,000 within
one year).

The amounts included above for the variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in actual
interest rates differ to those estimated at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =RT A (E)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. DFE(E)

BREMEELQNPEFEZE
FEEREERERMEBEEZAT

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued) 18 (#&)
RATRENATE Relationship of
Fairvalue asat  Fair value as at unobservable
31December 31 December Significant inputs to
2015 2014 Valuation unobservable fair value
Financial assets RZE-E§  A-T-MF  Fairvalue technique(s) inputs ATER
(financial liabilites) T2A=t-B ZBZT-B  hierachy  andkeyinput(s) EARTEE BAYER
SHEE(SHER) AVE ZBTE  AVERR (ERARIZEARG EDN i ATENBA
HK$'000 HK§000
TR ThR
1) Metal commodities future contracts - 390,786 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices N/A N/A
dlassified as derivative financial (402,917) Z-%  onthelondon Metal Exchange and the ~ Fi&F N
instruments in the consolidated Shanghai Futures Exchange
statement of financial posiion RIEBRAMR ABERAMAR
1) RMERMEMRR SRR LR BERAEEAR
TEZEREREEAN
2)  Foreign currency forward contracts I£] 690 Level2  Future cash flows are estimated based ~~ N/A N/A
dlassified as derivative financial (15) 2% onfoward exchange rates (from i TER

instruments in the consolidated
statement of financial position

) REREBRRAERARANELH
TEZSHREAN

observable forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period) and
contracted forward rates.
BEEMME AL (REEEATE

BRI ) RETA0ES
R AR -

EERMEEFRAT —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITHE(E)
6c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AFEGE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial REEMBEENATETEZA
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a EELREERESREEZAT
recurring basis (continued) & (&)
RATRENATE Relationship of
Fair value asat  Fair value as at unobservable
31December 31 December Significant inputs to
2015 2014 Valuation unobservable fair value
Financial assets R-E-E§  H-T-MF  Fairvalue technique(s) inputs AEE
(financial liablites) tZB=t-B fZA=t-H  hierarchy  andkeyinput(s) EXTUER BAHER
SHEE(SHER) LAVE 0TE  DVERE HERGRIZEALE aAEE APENEA
HKS'000 HK$'000
T ThRL
3)  Embedded derivative components of 9,615 - Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model. The Expected volatiity, The higher the expected
convertible bonds (note) =8 keyinputs are the Company's share taking into account volatility, the higher the
) IEREFRAAGTETANA () price, expected volatity, dvidend yield, ~ the averagefistorical i vlue,
option (e and risk free rate. voltty of the EREA - ATE
-ESETEES - Company's share priFe B k.
SEE\RBBAOTHE BER O ooclfalin
B BOGHE . BRERREEAT oLl
. REXEERSZ T
N [BHEE
Dividend yield, taking ~ The higher the dividend
into account the yield, the lower the fair
Company's most value,
recent dividends BEEAESS AT
payout ratio and K
management's
experience.
IRE BT R
ARLHREREERE
BEMR-
note: If the expected volatility to the Binomial Option Pricing Model was MsE : MREMERRBFTENBERT -

10% higher and lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds would increase by HK$ 1,301,000 (2014: HK$2,000)
and decrease by HK$1,264,000 (2014: nil) respectively.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December
2015. Dividend yield as at validation date of 31 December 2015 is nil
(31 December 2014: nil), no sensitivity analysis for dividend yield was
performed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. =T R (E&)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. DFE(E)

BREMEELQNPEFEZE
FEEREERERMEBEEZAT
B (&)

EEERR BREIMALBHK
RAFE - BAARESZ
ARPTETARD 2 A FEME

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
not necessarily representative of the fair value as the
pricing model used in the fair value valuation of the
embedded derivative components of convertible bonds HREFERZEERN P RZE
involves multiple variable where certain variables are 2 MERETEHBERY
interdependent. 2o

REEHBERRRBEANDFE

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position T2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 ok F=H @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FEx TR
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-EF
+=B=t-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABE
NERMEE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4&@TA - 73 - 73
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ~ ZAVEAEH
HemaE
Embedded derivative components Ak ESR 2 KA
of convertible bonds TETASS - - 9,615 9,615
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME
+=A=t-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BROFEFABRE
NEeREE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4 4RI & 390,786 690 - 391,476
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRAFEFABE
HemasE
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeRAas 402,917 15 - 402,932

There were no transfers between the three levels during

either of the years ended 31 December 2015 or 2014.

HE-_Z—AFx—_FT—NWNF+=-A
=+—BIEE  —ZABRzEtEE

7% o

EeREEFRAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

6¢c. Fair value (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial liabilities

SRTITE (8)
6cC.

D E (&)
LREBECE=RATEHEZ
Ea

Embedded
derivative
components of
convertible bonds

ARRES ZBRAR
PTETAEISD
HK$'000
FHT
Convertible Bonds | ARRESI
(as defined in Note 29) (E = R e 29)
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mF—HF—H 13,353
Gain recognised in profit or loss B a P R E) Y e (13,353)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—MOF+=-_A=+—H
31 December 2015 k=FT—hHF+=-A=+—AH =
Convertible Bonds Il ARRES I
(as defined in Note 29) (E = R e 29)
At 1 January 2014 and 2015 RZBE-—MER-_ZE-—HFE—H—H =
Issuance of Convertible Bonds |l BT RARES | 161,239
Conversion during the year REFER (457,087)
Loss recognised in profit or loss R8N EREE 305,463
At 31 December 2015 R—ZF—hFE+=-_A=+—H 9,615

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Included in profit or loss for the current year is unrealised
gains of HK$6,350,000 (2014: HK$13,353,000) related to
embedded derivative components of convertible bonds held
at the end of the reporting period. The fair value losses or
gains are included in other gains and losses.

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values and determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Chief Financial Officer works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Chief Financial Officer engages the external valuers
to perform the valuations of the convertible bonds and
the Warrants required for financial reporting purposes,
including Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
instruments. As a part of the valuation process, the Chief
Financial Officer reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company semi-annually, in line with the
Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BARE#R AR BT EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ =F

mE

6.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6c¢.

6d.

Fair value (continued)

Business and economic circumstances affecting fair
value of measurements

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group experienced the adverse impact of the prolonged
volatility and the overall downward movement of the global
metal prices. The Group entered into metal commodities
future contracts in order to manage its exposure to the
volatility in metals’ price risks. The decline in the commodity
market prices led to a realised loss on fair value of derivative
financial instruments.

In addition, the market price of the Company’s shares was
highly volatile during the year ended 31 December 2015
that resulted in a significant deviation between the exercise
price of the convertible bonds and the shares price of the
Company. The volatility in the Company’s share led to the
fair value loss on the embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments subject to offsetting

The following table sets out financial assets and financial
liabilities that were subjected to offsetting, which were not
offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015,
no financial assets and liabilities are subjected to offsetting.

Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRMIE(E)
6d. Financial instruments subject to offsetting 6d. ZTRNEHEMT A (H)
(continued)
Financial assets subject to offsetting FRAEHEZSREE
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—H

(ross amount Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial assets not set off in
liabilities set presented the consolidated
offin the in the statement of
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description assets position position instruments received amount
1A 1A TARRGRIBRAR
BHRREA  BBRRER his EHeE
EEReR  HH/EER il 78/ Blie
it EEEE  oHRREE BEFR SMIA g it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Margin deposits RE 253,292 - 253,292 (28.451) - 224,841
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 92,556 - 92,556 - - 92,556
Derivative financial assets ESHEE
- Metal commodities future -~ £BERHAEAY
contracts 390,786 - 390,786 (374,466) - 16,320
- Foreign currency forward ~— —SMEEEIAY)
contracts 690 - 690 (15) - 675

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERTE (&)
6d. Financial instruments subject to offsetting 6d. ZRNEHEMT A (H)
(continued)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting TRAEEzEHEEAE
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NME+-_A=+—H

(ross amount Net amounts

of recognised of financial Related amounts
financial ligbilities not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated
off in the in the statement of
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated financial position
of recognised statement of statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral Net
Description ligbilities position position instruments pledged amount
1A 1A TARRGRIBRAR
BBRREA  BBRRER REH AHLE
BiAeR  BHEED 2hilzeR BEfRS
it BEEE  oRAEEE BEHE SRIA g it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Derivative financial liabilities ~ f1£4 B &R
— Metal commodities future ~ ~4£BERHAEAH
contracts 402917 - 402917 (374,466) (28,451) -

- Foreign currency forward ~ —SMERERAH
contracts 15 - 15 (15) - -

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R R H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6d. Financial instruments subject to offsetting

(continued)

The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities as presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as follows:

o Margin deposits and pledged bank deposits —
amortised cost

. Derivatives — fair value

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded on the London Metal
Exchange or the Shanghai Futures Exchange through
brokers and foreign currency contracts contracted with
banks. The related collaterals are included in margin
deposits and pledged bank deposits. If a default event
(included but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the banks
are able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable
contracts and/or the collaterals placed.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents the amounts received or
receivable from the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year.

Operating and reportable segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The executive directors of the Company are
identified as the CODM and they regularly review the internal
report on gross profit derived (or gross loss incurred) from
different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of metal recycling,
involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal scrap.
The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which involves
the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and copper
rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves trading of
other metal scrap without processing and copper cathode. The
operating and reportable segments are identified based on major
products under three categories of business activities:

(i)  metal recycling business (including sales of copper scrap,
steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal

scrap);

(i) foundry business (including sales of aluminium-alloy ingots
and copper rod and wire); and

(iii)  wholesales business (including sales of other metal scrap
without processing and copper cathode).

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W@&Rko#EFER (&)

(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEb R R B R EEAE
An analysis of the Group’s segment revenues and segment results T ABIREBRAIZ2H D BRAEED
by operating and reportable segment is as below. Uz K D B AEPIIE 2 DA ©
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z-—AF+-A=+—HLEFE
Metal recycling business Foundry business Wholesales business
SEALEE BEER HEEy
Other
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal alloy Copperrod  without ~ Copper
scrap scrap serap serap srap  ingots  andwire processing  cathode Elimination Total
i BER BbANI
1 B B B ReR i B&  EER  BER if ¢ ot
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TEn  TEn  TEr TR TR TR TEn  TEn
REVENUE i
External sales e 1962986 430214 128807 92213 30620 181175 14187 268,248 43,163 - 3136633
Inter-seqment sles AERE U5 1383 19733 18 30 - - 109,782 - (137m) -
Total segment revenue ANEEE 1964503 440607 248560 @31 30950 875 14187 1348030 48163 (1.232773) 3,136,633
Seqment (oss) profit ARER) A (39609 (4355 3415 (5338) 169 6135 4819 (166)  (147)  (4799)  (45.206)
Other income EHIA 0581
Other gains and losses AfhaRER (850,678)
Distroution and sellng expenses AHRAERR (0,785)
Adminisrative expenses fBE% (142,604)
Finance costs BB (117.383)
Shareof lossof nassocate  EEBLATEE (343)
Loss before tax Kitiea (1,143,684)
Income tax expense FERAS (331)
Loss for the year ERER (1,144,021)
(Allowance) reversal of alowance  EERAH (Bte)
for inventories included in wHREES
seqment (oss)profi (BR)%ERD (ba585) (1409 (1267) (1439 (1513) (141 10030 (12198 128 - (64290)
BEAMEEERAT —ZT—HFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W@&RoEER (F)

(continued)
Segment revenues and segment results DEblE R o EBEAE (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_ZT-—NME+_A=t+—HIEFE
Metalrecycling business Foundry business Wholesales business
SRALER e HEsH
Other
Other Aluminium- metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium Iron metal dloy Copperrod  without ~ Copper
srap scrap scrap rap rap ingots ~ andwire  processing  cathode  Elimination Total
L] HER  EfANI
L] ] B & KR £t #%  EEE  BES 5 B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn Tér TR TERr TR TEn  TEn TR TR TR TEn
REVENUE i
External sales bl 3661650 719266 138339 15419 49259 304115 B2 507095 311,042 - 581910
Inter-seqment sles AERE 101887 30667 201513 -5 - - 1991776 - 384 -
Total seqment revenue APEES 3763531 749933 33982 15419 5180 30415 33052 2498831 311042 (2328414) 5877970
Segment loss) profi AR (ER)ER (54303 1,686 2138 @10 630 1575 (5725 68920 (16200  (16,764)  (17,366)
Other income EflA 9m
Other gains and losses AaRERE (770,93)
Distrbution and sellng expenses AHRAERR B2
Adminisrative expenses BE% (130,534
Finance costs BB (153,327)
Share of profit of an associate  ElEBE AR 284
Loss before tax kitiea (1067611)
Income ta expense FERAS (3629)
Los for the year ERER (1,071,240)
Reversalof allowance EERERAR(BER)

(allowance) for inventories EHmAE
included in segment (lss) (FE2E)
profit 11,495 2301 1.1 3 (2,009 - 846 - (1.831) - 11,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results
(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment (loss) profit represents the gross (loss) profit resulted in
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains and
losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses,
finance costs, share of (loss) profit of an associate and income
tax expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the
Group are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets
and segment liabilities is presented.

Geographical information

Approximately 92% of external revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 92%) are attributable
to customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of
the Group’s major operating entities. The remaining revenue is
immaterial for separate disclosure of the Group’s geographical
information. Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

8. COST OF SALES 8.

Included in cost of sales is the following allowance (reversal of
allowance) for inventories:

WERADENTEERE(BHEA
=) :

2015 2014
—ZE—I1F —Z—UE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Allowance of inventories to R S5 ERERD
net realisable value recognised FE#RE 88,177 23,887
Reversal of prior year’s BoBEFEFaERE
inventories allowance (23,887) (35,793)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) FERE (BEER) F5E
for inventories, net 64,290 (11,906)

Management assesses whether the carrying value of inventories
exceed their net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
with reference to the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant
markets and the quoted prices of metal on applicable commodity
exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, certain inventories for which allowances to net
realisable value were previously made are sold. As a result, a
reversal of write-down of inventories of HK$23,887,000 (2014:
HK$35,793,000) had been recognised and included in cost of
sales.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

9.

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfthg A
2015 2014
—E-afF ZT—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET
Interest income AN ON 13,890 7,671
Gross rental income from HEYFER WA ETE
investment properties 1,208 1,530
Less: direct operating expenses W BEEERE - (1)
Net rental income from FEYFER S WA FRE
investment properties 1,208 1,519
Government grants (note) BT R BN (P E) 859 15,181
Transportation and scale income g LT 896 2,116
Dividend income from AFS investment AT SRR R B - 301
Others HAh 5,734 1,189
22,587 27,977

note:

The Group received unconditional government grants from a local municipal
government as an encouragement for the development and advancement of
business. There are no other conditions attached to the government grants
that have been recognised.

et © A TREABMASEERERE ST
BT ARENEGHBUTHE - BRI

TR B I E M 5 AE

EeREEFRAH

—E-REER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hiblam R EE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss) gain on fair value change of: RNEEES (BE) K
— derivative financial instruments (note) — —#74£ &8 T A (Ff&E)
— realised loss —BEBEE (387,330) (762,372)
— unrealised gain (loss) —RER W (E1E) 73 (11,456)
(387,257) (773,828)
— embedded derivative components — AR REFRAXLTE
of convertible bonds (Note 29) TA#H (MizE29) (305,463) 13,353
— warrants (Note 29) — REREE (MisE29) - 1,331
Loss on derecognition of convertible AR E S BB R R 1R
bonds (Note 29) (FF5E29) (1,210) -
Net foreign exchange losses ME 5 5 18 F RE (112,012) (34,005)
Impairment loss on trade, B5  ZEREMEKIE
bills and other receivables ZIRMEEE (53,166) (1,807)
Recovery of doubtful debts UqEIES S 1,613 -
Gain on disposal of an investment HEREMHE W
property (Note 19(iii)) (PR 19 (ii)) - 29,216
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREHE
plant and equipment Wz 2,084 335
Reclassified to profit or loss REEAHEERESEH
on disposal of AFS investment SDEEEE 4,606 (499)
Handling charges on disposal of HERHEEREZRIEE
AFS investment (622) (54)
Net compensation received (paid) WeER (2 A) #i (B F 88 749 (4,965)
(850,678) (770,923)
note:  The amounts arose from aluminium, copper, lead, zinc, steel rebar and nickel MizE : ZESLB|OEELQE 8 8 WHR
future contracts, provisional pricing arrangements embedded in sales contracts REESH - HE S DS EERREE L
and foreign currency forward contracts. Substantially all of the loss on fair RONBREEH - BTFENITESRMIA
value change of derivative financial instruments is from fair value change in ATEEDERREE - 0 5 WHRE
aluminium, copper, zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts. HEAHNAFEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BFFERAS
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIEREVAE 38,624 63,680
Effective interest expense AR E S R EME R
on convertible bonds BB BT
and other borrowings (Note 29) (FftsE29) 77,561 89,647
Interest on a loan from a RE—BAESZEHFE
former director (Note 37(i)) (B EE37(1)) 1,198 =
117,383 153,327
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FriSHiBExX
2015 2014
—E-EEF —E=— &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Current tax: BNERFRIA :
PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT") ST I ) 137 2,435
([{EE¥FTEHL])
Hong Kong BB 50 471
Other jurisdiction E fth Bl AR 143 138
330 3,044
(Over) underprovision in prior years: RBAFEREGEL) TR :
PRC EIT B E TSR (8) 11
Hong Kong b (20) 507
(28) 518
Deferred tax expense (Note 22) BEEFIERS (F13E22) 35 67
337 3,629

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated &8 715 8 & ™ & 4F & &9 51 FE 2R 7o 1) 89

assessable profits for both years. 16.5% 5T & ©

EaRiEEFRAHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate

prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Frigtifa s (&)

RBHPEARLMBEEEMBFEOL (T
EREHIAD R EHEHIAE MK
Bl - BB AR R MEFENHER

25% °

HAth B EAE R E A M BUIR IR AR AR

B RTERE -

FARBRX A EERS
RABTATERARRANT

N6

2015 2014
—E-4fF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loss before tax RATAIE B (1,143,684) (1,067,611)
Tax at applicable tax rates (note) RERAMETE 2 8 (M) (229,934) (244,864)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DRI R 2 M B2
for tax purpose 84,504 41,312
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBIR AR B 7% 52 2
for tax purpose (2,718) (10,121)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RFETR Y BT H0R B B 2= R A
differences not recognised Mg 2 1,294 1,362
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEBENT BT E 148,651 215,332
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 2R 2 AR MR HE 1B
previously not recognised RIS 2 (1,432) -
Deferred tax provided on dividends R A R B
withholding tax on PRC TR 2 IRIEF A
subsidiaries - 90
(Over) underprovision in respect of BEFERE (BEH) TR
prior years (28) 518
Income tax expense for the year FAMBERALZ 337 3,629

note: As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate reconciliations

using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction have been

aggregated and presented.

Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

13. FREE

2015 2014
—E-afF ZT—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET
Loss for the year has been arrived FREE - M
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments EEHE 4,572 3,913
Other staff costs Hi 8 TRA 177,790 179,213
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, EHREMFEIET - TREES
excluding those of directors ZERNBHFT IR 4,704 3,158
Share-based payments, excluding ARG RERANT  TEREES
those of directors Z AR R ETREI TR 422 3,390
Total staff costs STHALHE 187,488 189,674
Cost of inventories recognised as HERRFAXHFERA
an expense 3,181,909 5,895,336
Depreciation of investment properties REMFEHE 1,397 1,631
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BELREENE
equipment 28,958 36,122
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FEf & 10,542 10,593
Total depreciation and amortisation WER#HEE 40,897 48,346
Auditor’s remuneration REEH & 2,460 2,430
EEREBERAT —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

14. EF - FETHAERESE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS &
Directors 5=
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of AREEBRFANLZNARRRESHIEE
the Company for the year are as follows: B
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme  Share-based
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions payments Total
HeRk BARER DR 5
He 28 RREA SEfR BRNER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thr Fhr FhR FhR TiEn
Year ended 31 December 2015: EZ=F—A%+_A
ST-HIEFE:
Executive directors: B1E2
Mr. Tu (note i) BRI (FiE) - 537 - - - 537
Mr. Fang (note ii) T 5 4 (B i) - 801 382 17 - 1,200
Mr. Stephenus Maria Van Stephenus Maria Van
Qoijen (note iii) Ooijen 5 4 (KtzEiii) - 215 - - - 215
Mr. Zhang Mingjie (note )~ SREAANEE (fifsEi) - 216 - - - 216
Mr. Meng Yi (note i) AR (M) - 216 - - - 216
Mr. Gu Liyong (note i) BEBLE (i) - 858 858 16 - 1,732
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Dr. Loke Yu FEaEL 150 - - - 3 153
Ms. Zhang Jingdong ERRTL 150 - - - 3 153
Mr. Michael Charles Lion Michael Charles LionZE 4
(note iii) (FaEiii) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Dajian Ny 150 - - - - 150
450 2,843 1,240 33 6 4,572
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

14. EF - FETHAERESE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) < (%)
Directors (continued) EE(H\)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances  contributions payments Total
HeRk RINER WA
ik =i SRR ERMER CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Fitn Fitn Fitn THLT
Year ended 31 December 2014: HE2-T-MmE+ZA
=+—HILEE:
Executive directors: WIES
Mr. Fang pfirk - 1,200 1 - 1,211
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen Stephanus Maria van Ooijen %%
(note iii) (Mizii) - 1,080 - - 1,080
Mr. Gu Liyong BEBLA - 947 48 82 1,077
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Li Xikui (note iv) ZHERE (W) 144 - - 31 175
Dr. Loke Yu FEaEL 150 - - 32 182
Ms. Zhang Jingdong BHRLT 150 - - 32 182
Mr. Michael Charles Lion (note iii) Michael Charles Lion % 4 (Fifz¥iii) - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Dajian (note iv) FREAAE (i) 6 - - - 6
450 3,227 59 177 3913

The executive directors’ and non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group and for
their services as directors of the Company respectively.

Mr. Fang was also the former Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Mr. Fang resigned and Mr.
Tu was appointed as the Chief Executive on 16 February 2016.

EXRABHTESRFRTESOHNE
DHIRBEARRRAEENEEEEM
BHRT - REFERARREZTNR
% o

FTRETBARNRB ZAIEZTHAR R
HIMHHEREERSEIRTRARR
HRE < H B - TAREDBHERAREE
R-FB—RE-ATNBBZERITR
BE -

EERMEEFRAT —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, two (2014:
three) were directors, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2014:
two) individuals were as follows:

14. EF - FETHAERES
< (48)

==

RAEBRERSFMALED  WE

—EIF ZR)RES HMEE
ERNEXHEKE - SBRTF=R(=F -
F MR ALHBEMT

2015 2014
—Z—EHF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Salaries, bonus and other allowances e~ fEAL R EAERL 4,173 2,170
Share-based payments LARRARD 7 EfE 2 I]F 3R 66 366
Retirement benefit scheme contributions EREFIFH2IHERK 48 28
4,287 2,564

Analysed into the following bands: MesEE TN
Number of Number of
individual individual
AT AE AT AH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T 2,000,000 % 7T 1 -

note:

(i)

(iii)

(v)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Mr. Tu was appointed as executive director on 29 April 2015 and Mr. Zhang
Mingjie and Mr. Meng Yi were appointed as executive directors on 22 August
2015.

Mr. Gu Liyong and Mr. Fang resigned on 30 November 2015 and 16 February
2016 respectively.

Mr. Michael Charles Lion and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen resigned on 16
February 2015 and 12 March 2015 respectively.

Mr. Li Xikui resigned and Mr. Zhu Dajian was appointed as non-executive

director on 17 December 2014.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors

waived any emoluments during both years.

Annual Report 2015

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE T —HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

15.

16.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during both years, nor has
any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the respective reporting periods in respect of the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company are based on the following data:

15.

16.

BRE

T R 1] 4 5 3 R 3 SRR R (AT ARE.
BEFBRERRARFRRREERAE
—EFRAFRZF-HF+-A=t—
A L FRIR RS -

BREER
AR ERE AL SRERRIEER
Ty RIA T BgE 5

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loss BB
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ AR E SREAR R EHEER
of the Company for the purpose of RRARHE ANELFEANERE
basic and diluted loss per share (1,138,804) (1,057,980)
Number of shares RE
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGt EERER R EEEEL
shares for the purpose of basic and BRI 98 R
diluted loss per share 1,382,512,563  1,047,387,288

In current and prior years, the potential ordinary shares
attributable to the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds,
warrants and share options have anti-dilutive effect as the
assumed conversion and exercise would result in a decrease in loss
per share.

RAFEMBEFE - ARR]HARITE
AR B - RIREE R E TRRER
EEEEBRAEREBEYE  ARR
R RITEAI e B R RE R D

EaRtEEERAR —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERFZE
Office
Plant furniture Construction
and and Motor Leasehold in
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
BER HARE Hamz
BF H# R i & fERIR @

HK$000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS” 000 HKS” 000 HKS” 000 HKS 000
Tm Thn thn TR ThL TR Thn

cost B

At 1 January 2014 R=E-BE-A-A 104,254 200,708 22,831 9122 58,292 109,389 504,596
Exchange adjustments B H:% (352) (569) (93) (88) (165) 459 (808)
Additions HE = 9,044 1,041 3,012 1,919 198,527 214,143
Transfers gz - 677 123 - - (800) -
Disposal i - (2,057) (41) (768) - - (2,866)
At31 December 2014  R=F-WE+-A=1-A 103,902 208,403 23,861 11,278 60,046 307,575 715,065
Exchange adjustments X Z8% (12,208) (7,708) (1,007) (408) (2,621) (16,727) (40,679)
Additions HE - 7375 1,134 869 - 137,294 146,672
Transfers E 183,295 387 - - - (183,682) -
Government grants Bt (Kt 32)

(Note 32) (33,676) (1,273) - - - - (34,949)
Disposal tE - (25,776) (1,645) (1,259) (5,931) - (34.611)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REFZA=1-A 241313 181,408 22,343 10,480 51,494 244,460 751,498
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2014 R=E-BE-F-A 38,659 70,482 12,966 4,251 46,708 - 173,066
Exchange adjustments B % (1) (156) (46) (16) (139) - (468)
Provided for the year Eni 4,683 22,849 3,169 1,650 3,766 - 36,122
Eliminated on disposal (& 2% = (1,503) (30) (387) - - (1,920)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-REFZA=1—A 43,236 91,672 16,059 5,498 50,335 - 206,800
Exchange adjustments B H:% @ng (3,362) (780) (224) (2,484) - (9,568)
Provided for theyear  FREfE 4716 17,465 2,097 1,600 3,080 - 28,958
Eliminated on disposal & 241 - (15,931) (1,175) (745) (4.970) - (22,821)
At31 December 2015 R=F-RE+-A=1-A 45,234 89,844 16,201 6,129 45,961 - 203,369
CARRYING VALUES BEf
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REFZA=1—A 196,079 91,564 6,142 4,351 5533 244,460 548,129
At 31 December 2014 R=F-BE+=A=1-A 60,666 116,731 7802 5,780 9711 307,575 508,265
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2015, certain plant and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$126,892,000 (2014: HK$68,258,000) were pledged as security for bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

(ii) As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all buildings were situated in the PRC.

(iii) The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
residual value, as follows:

Buildings 20 years or the relevant lease term,

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 9%-20%

Office furniture and equipment  18%-30%

Motor vehicles 18%-30%

Leasehold improvements 30%-50%, the relevant lease term or the

estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter

(iv) See Note 4 for details of property, plant and equipment’s impairment
assessment.

17. Y% > BERRE (8)

(ii)

(iii)

RZZT—AF+=-A=+—H8 &5FTK
T & 4 126,892,000/ L ( = & — U 4 ¢
68,258,000/ 7T ) MK E REFEEMIER
BT ANEBIBITHEROER -

R_E-—RER-_FT-—NMFE+-_A=+—
B ' FTARFEMLRPE -

Ik - BB KRR (R TIZERIN) EatHE
RIEREER - ZEFTATRERHAENT :

gF 20F A RATEEA
(AR E BE)

B S K2 25 9% Z20%

WAREREE  18%E30%

A 18% ZE 30%

HEMEEE 30% Z= 50% 55
THEAS AT A AR A
(ABIEE BE)

BEME - BERZERETGFE  F2
BAPRES o

EEREERRAT —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FE{JHE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
The prepaid lease payments TEREE
comprise leasehold land BERE L
—in Hong Kong —(IRBHE 139,207 140,425
—in the PRC — IR 381,249 291,656
520,456 432,081
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EHAE DT :
Current asset MENEE 12,603 10,620
Non-current asset IERBNVE E 507,853 421,461
520,456 432,081
notes: B
(i) As at 31 December 2015, prepaid lease payments with carrying amount of (i) R_E—HF+-_A=+—8 BFE
HK$186,856,000 (2014: HK$304,746,000) were pledged as security for bank TH B /186,856,000 ;T ( — T — [0 £ :
borrowings granted to the Group. 304,746,000 7T) B S B IEMIEARK

TAREERITERAOER -

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired certain (ii) BE—_Z—HE+_-_A=+—HIEE "
leasehold land in the PRC amounting to HK$130,170,000. During the year AEBRIEBEESETHEL L €584
ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not acquire any leasehold land. 130,170,000 7C - RBE=-T—UF+=

A=+—BIFE  ANEEWERE S E(E
Bt o

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group received government (iii) NEBEE_ZE-—AF+_A=1+—HBILFE "
grants of HK$9,663,000 in relation to leasehold land in the PRC which was 7N £2 @ 3t 74 B A9 A 1 3 UK ER 9,663,000
included in prepaid lease payments. BT BB (B ATENTELA)

(iv) See Note 4 for details of prepaid lease payments’ impairment assessment. (iv) BRATENEERMET GFHE - F20EME4 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
HK$'000
FHET
COST AR A
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mF—HF—H 32,052
Disposal e (5,975)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—ME+_A=+—HK
and 31 December 2015 —T—AFt+-_A=1+—H 26,077
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2014 R=ZZE—mF—HF—H 3,110
Provided for the year FRNEAE 1,631
Eliminated on disposal HE 2 H (1,015)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MF+=—A=+—H 3,726
Provided for the year FNEE 1,397
At 31 December 2015 R—_ZF—hFE+=-_A=+—H 5,123
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—AF+-_A=+—H 20,954
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZF—WME+=-—A=+—H 22,351

notes:

(ii)

(iii)

The above investment properties, which are situated in Hong Kong, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

At 31 December 2014, investment property with carrying amount of
HK$22,351,000 was pledged as security for bank borrowings granted to the
Group. The pledge was released during the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 19 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of an investment property at
a consideration of HK$34,560,000 with a gain on disposal of HK$29,216,000
after deducting the transaction cost of HK$384,000. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2014 and the consideration
was settled in full upon completion.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2015
was HK$40,300,000 (2014: HK$40,300,000). The fair value has been arrived
at based on a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the fair value was determined based on
direct comparison approach which is by reference to recent market prices for
similar properties in similar locations and conditions.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

TR BB R YR IRAR T A F HIA
BHREEE

RZZT—WE+=-_A=+—8 KEEA
22,351,000 B ITHR EM X B EMERK T
AEBRITEFNER REBEE-ZT—1F
TZA=T—HIEEE  ZERDEHER -

RZZ—NFEAA+IEB  AEEREBIE
=HFI B E e - LA (E 34,560,000 AT
HEREYE - N 384,000 TR 5 KA
% HERFA29,216,000/87T ° ZHER
RBE-—Z2-—NE+-A=+—HILFER
B - BRAREEREREREESE -

AEBEEMER-_T—HAF+=_A=+—
B #2AF{E &40,300,000/8 7T ( =2 — P04 :
40,300,000 7T) ° 2 A FETIIRIERESH
B EERAR (RASEERBEZ B A
BB EEERM) FTEGEETER

RZE—RFR-FT—NFF+_A=1+—
B REEE2ERUIE R GEHOEL
YIEREEATE - RAEBRLBAEE -

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

notes: (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

The key input used in the valuation of the investment properties is transaction

prices for similar properties after accounting for floor areas and floor level.

19. REMZ= (&)

BiaE - ()

(iv) (&)

BHMEAFER - NENESRRERE
REERAE -

RAYEGENEEH AZUE S REEE
BMEZEBREAUNENRSE -

Fair value at Fair value at Valuation
Description 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 techniques Unobservable input
R=Z-HF R-Z—MmF
t=A=+-H +=A=1+—8H
it ZAYE ZAVE feERE TAEES LR
HK$"000 HK$'000
TET FET
Investment properties 40,300 40,300 Direct comparison Transaction prices for similar

Commercial - Hong Kong
BERENE-TE

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair

value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

approach
BRELEE

properties after adjusting

for floor areas and floor level.
PIEEEEREEERER

BUNENR 5B

(v) AEER-_F-AFR-FT-HNFE+ZA
=T -BENREMEFBERATESRER

AT
2015 2014
Level 3 Level 3
—E-RF —T—mE
=R E=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Commercial property units R BEAH

located in Hong Kong REYHEEN 40,300 40,300

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both years.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 20. REEE N TR
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Cost of unlisted investment B A BIRIE LT
in an associate (Note) RERRA  (f5E) 2,325 2,325
Share of post-acquisition (losses) profits &5 (&18) % F
and other comprehensive income K E M2 ERA (261) 284
2,064 2,609
note: Included in cost of investment is goodwill of HK$1,548,000. MizE: REKAH BIERE 1,548,000 87T

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: T«
Proportion Proportion
Principal of ownership of voting
Place of place of Class of interest held rights held
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation  operation shares held hy the Group hy the Group
RitgR Ritpal ifdies  TEERME  FEROE REBFRRELS KEBfERERS

2015 2014 2015 2014
Z§-3fF 3mF CE-RF CB-QE

AEERREMRNBE QR FHEW

Principal activity
TERE

Poly Metals Company Limited ~~ Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 0% 20% 0% 0%
("Poly Metals") i i B il
BEERARAA(2E))

Trading of metal scrap

Summarised financial information in respect of Poly Metals is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in Poly Metals’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Poly Metals is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

ERERIMHERMESRIINT - T
XA BEMEERBRERE
M HmEEA RO BRI TS
B o

RZFHEEWBERETERESENE
BIASR -

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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during the year

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Annual Report 2015

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 20. REtE N aER (8
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Current assets mENEE 11,500 10,690
Non-current assets ERMBEE 668 270
Current liabilities mEAaE (9,590) (5,656)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - =
2015 2014
—E-hEF —ZT—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET
Revenue g 143,768 129,901
(Loss) profit for the year FN(ER) @ T (2,726) 1,419
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEEURA
for the year - -
Total comprehensive (expense) FALHE(FX) WALZE
income for the year (2,726) 1,419
Dividends received from Poly Metals FAYKEEERHRE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 20. REE N EIER (8)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Rt B 7G5 R B AR S B T SRR FT I
the carrying amount of the interest in Poly Metals recognised in RNBEEERREE HRAT

the consolidated financial statements:

2015 2014

—E-AF —T—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Net assets of Poly Metals ERZEEFE 2,578 5,304
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEBANEE 2 FrfFEz 5l

interest in Poly Metals 20% 20%

Share of net assets of Poly Metals LB B EEFE 516 1,061

Goodwill [EES 1,548 1,548
Carrying amount of the Group's REBREE 2 #m2 BREE

interest in Poly Metals 2,064 2,609

21. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 21. iM% - RERRBE iR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT &
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balance mainly represents RZE—FAFEFR_ZT—NFE+_A4
the deposits paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition =+—H  #&HEEHRAEEZWERR
of plant and machinery for new production site in Taizhou, the B KRR EB AR E &M EEISH e
PRC. XAFHIES o

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22. JRFERIIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement ABRGEMBERARRNES] - B TELE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MIAEENMBBEDREHE - AT AL
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B2 B WERIER BRI

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2015 2014

—E-IF —Z=—mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

Deferred tax liabilities BEFHIBEE 29,833 37,505
Deferred tax assets BETHIEEE (486) (8,189)
29,347 29,316

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 22. RIERIE ()
The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and AEBBERELETIE(BE) AERE
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as RAFEENAFEFERNESHMT
follows:

Change in
fair value of
Accelerated Alowance ~ Unrealised ~ derivative  Distributable
ta T Inventories  for doubtful profit on finandial profits of
depreciation [osses provision debts inventories instruments  subsidiaries Total
i F55 fHGRIE BN

REFE  WEER  RERR REBE mEMW  OVER®  WHLEN &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS 1000 HKS 000
L AL TiEn L L AL THIL TEL

At 1 January 2014 W=5-mE-A-A 10023 (9,899) (3,170) (1.407) (837) 4458 29,686 29260
Charge (credt)to proftor loss ERk A R 794 (812 715 28) 64) () %N 67
Bxchange adjustments EiHT (12) - 14 3 - (16) - (11
At 31 December 2014 NF-METZA=1-R 10805 (10,711) (2,441) (1.826) (501) 4214 29,776 29316
Charge (crdit)to proftor loss iR (A B 2,788 (283 23% 1774 e (4118) - 3
Bxchange adjustments EfE 0 - 4 34 4 (78) - ]
At 31 December 2015 W-F-1E+-A=1-A 13,584 (13,545) = (18) (468) 18 29776 29347

REPRACEMSEEE BT N\F
— A — BBk B 2 w5k AT S A
FIRZ K EAZTBNG - SRE M EHREK
IS A Bt R B B A B R AE v IR 2
R £ %8513,510,000/8 T (== — M
£ : 513,510,000 7T ) M E L R IER I
B AAREERAZE TR EREE
Bl 2z FfE - MERERRAUETGNA

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$513,510,000 (2014:
HK$513,510,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the

reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had unrecognised deferred
tax asset on inventories provision and doubtful debts provision
of HK$19,011,000 (2014: HK$3,531,000) and HK$5,910,000
(2014: nil) respectively due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All the unrecognised deferred tax assets may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2015

S REmE o

RZE—FRE+=-_A=+—H8 @R
R 2R ) % B0 A AT TR ORI - AN E
ER T BB R RRE 19,011,000
BT (=ZZ— P : 3,531,000 7T) &
5,910,000 L (= — M4 : &) ER
EEFRIBEE © FiAHIEEE G &R
P4 o
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 22. ERERIE (&)
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of R-ZBE—RAF+_A=1+—8  x&EH
HK$2,179,146,000 (2014: HK$1,552,691,000) available for offset BB ABATIEREE2,179,146,000/5
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised JL(ZZ—M4 : 1,552,691,000 % 7T ) LA
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$82,087,000 (2014: AR Sa M o FLAR A 5 1R HESR YR ST
HK$64,912,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in BURAEE82,087,0008 L (=F — M

4 1 64,912,000870) o A M m F
R AIFEAE - EERB AR EE
84 2,097,059,000/8 L (= ZF — PO 4 :
1,487,779,000 87T ) WA TER B iEER

respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$2,097,059,000
(2014: HK$1,487,779,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely except for those amounting to HK$1,849,546,000 AR o B 5B A5 18 6 4 B H R A 4
(2014: HK$1,300,285,000) arising from the PRC which may be B RERHEELNITREENENE
carried forward for five years. @ Ff 18 55 48 1,849,546,00058 T ( = =

—PO4F : 1,300,285,000#7T) 9 o

23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2015 2014
—B-EHF —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials E 485,919 574,724
Finished goods BURK G 489,865 533,065
975,784 1,107,789

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. EF - ZERHMEWTE
2015 2014
—E—-I1F —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Trade receivables: B S EWRIA
0-30 days 0%=30H 9,915 62,366
31-60 days 31£60H 1,396 -
61-90 days 61%E90H 2,010 5,572
91-180 days 91% 180 H 11,767 17,413
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 20,698 56,546
45,786 141,897
Bills receivables: ENERE :
0-30 days 0%30H - 127
Other receivables: Hfth U RIA -
Deposits and prepayments Ze RIBNHRIE 21,113 29,140
Deposits paid for purchase of BEREZEMRS
raw materials (note iii) (P i) 99,230 221,534
VAT recoverable AR [ EF 42,571 28,485
Others Eith 6,530 10,260
169,444 289,419
215,230 431,443
notes: Bt & -

(i)

(iii)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limit. Credit limits to customers
are reviewed regularly.

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days.
A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers with good credit

quality upon the approval of management.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, and bills receivables at the end of the reporting period, was
prepared based on the invoice date which approximate to the date of revenue

recognition.

As at 31 December 2014, included in the balance was an amount of
HK$4,294,000 paid to Sims Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
("Sims"), a shareholder with significant influence over the Company, which
disposed of its entire shareholdings in the Company to unrelated third parties
on 5 March 2015 and has become an independent third party to the Group
since then.

Annual Report 2015

(ii)

(iii)

REMFEFH - AERERFEEETP N
FEERRRERFPNEERE  YHET
FEHREEE PETIRA ©

AEB—RGETESEF0E0ANEE
Hi o ERGEEEIEE  AEBAREE
CHRINESEFREERNEES -

RIFEIR - AEEE 5 EKHENR RIR
BEREKEERNEROMZEEAH
(BB FERR B MRS ) 271

R-ZF—WFE+=ZA=+—HB " T AR
REXNHEADNRBERYE ZRE Sims
Metal Management Dragon Holdings Limited
([Sims]) #94,294,0007% 7T * SimsiA = &
—AF=AAHHEERAQ AN E HARE
TEEEE=)  BUERAREEZET
FE=F e
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24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(iv) Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$32,465,000 (2014: HK$73,959,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment

loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

24. BES R EABRWFIR ()

BifeE « (4H)

vy AEBEZERFBESEHEERTLE
32,465,000 7% 7T ( =2 — P £ : 73,959,000
BT MEWERS  NiE B HRAEH -
AEEW AR LR EE RS - ANRE

W RS % SRR (AR -

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired BRMERBEZE S ERRE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —TmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
91-180 days 91 %180 H 11,767 17,413
Over 180 days BB 180 H 20,698 56,546
32,465 73,959
Management has recognised impairment allowance as follows: BB RAMERENT
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIERENEF
2015 2014
—T-HF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January R—A—B 9,511 7,817
Impairment losses recognised on receivables FEUBR ZORE B 18 TR 53,166 1,807
Amount recovered during the year FREKESE (1,613) =
Amounts written off as uncollectible 88 AT AT Bl 8 R IE (1,832) (113)
At 31 December W+=A=+—8H 59,232 9,511

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$59,232,000 (2014:
HK$9,511,000) which are in severe financial difficulties.

BRERREBEBEDERNEREN RS
BRIEREE ZEEHRIE RAEHE
59,232,000/t (=2 —P04 : 9,511,000 %

7o) e

EeREEFRAH

—E-REER
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24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

notes: (continued)

25.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

(v)

Trade receivables that were denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

85 REMBWRIE (&)
: ()

B S EEEY L 8IS B HER
BHREMBUGENT

2015 2014
—ZET-HEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
usD ESD - 6,187
EUR BT 286 28
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. TTAEERMTA
2015 2014
—E-RF —E U
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHBxT FHET
Derivative financial assets TTEEMEE
Metal commodities future contracts cEBEMBEEY (i) - 390,786
Foreign currency forward contracts HNEE SR HR A 4 (ii) 73 690
73 391,476
Derivative financial liabilities TTESREans
Metal commodities future contracts cBREMBESYN (i) - 402,917
Foreign currency forward contracts HNERERE A (ii) - 15
- 402,932
notes: Bzt :

(i)

Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group entered into aluminium, copper, lead,
zinc, steel rebar and nickel future contracts in order to manage its exposure
to the price risk of aluminium, copper and other metal inventories. These
contracts were actively traded in an active market and were measured at fair
values based on unadjusted quoted price as at 31 December 2014, with gain
or loss recognised directly in profit or loss. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
does not have any outstanding metal commodities future contract.

Annual Report 2015

sEEMAEEH (FEEH)

R-ZE-—NME+-A=+—H F~KEEFT
SZER 8 B B M RBHEASH A
BRI R EMEBFENERRR - K=
T-NEF—A=+—H ZEEONER
M5 ERERAERNREHEREARTF
EFt8 - HEREEERNERSERTER - ®
—E-RF+-A=+—H AEEWE]
JEAEEERPERL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M H R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

notes: (continued)

(i) Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued)

Major terms of the metal commodities future contracts outstanding as at 31

December 2014 were set out below:

25. TTEE®m I A (8)

BifeE « (4H)

(i)

SEERNESNOCFREE) (R)

R-EB-—NFE+=—A=+—BRFRSEH
BERHMERGEHRMT

Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date

AHER BEEEEN HBE A

Aluminium future contracts:

HERIEEA

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 420 From 15 January 2015
RMB13,000 to RMB 13,525 per tonne SHE to 13 March 2015

BN TS AR 13,000t E ARE13,5257T B-_Z—Hf—A+HAB
HEREE E-ZT-Af=A+=H

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,982 From 2 January 2015
USD1,854 to USD2,075 per tonne 250 to 31 March 2015

BN T EME1,854%% T2 2,075% T B-Z-R¥—HA=-HZ
MEREE —T-RF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 2,602 From 2 January 2015
USD1,870 to USD2,075 per tonne 258 to 30 March 2015

RN T BME1,870 RITE2,075% 7T B-E-R5—HA=-HZE
MBS —E-RF=A=+H

Copper future contracts:

LR ¢

Buy at prices ranging from 5 tonnes 3,595 From 15 January 2015
RMB44,760 to RMB47,770 per tonne SIHE to 15 April 2015

BN T EEARKEA44,7607TE ARBA47,7707T BE-Z-—a&—At+ABZE
MEREE —Z-RFNA+HEA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 3,966 From 2 January 2015
USD6,235 to USD6,843 per tonne 2508 to 31 March 2015

R T BME6,2355% T 26,843 T B-E-RF—A=-HZ
MEREE —T-RF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 3,366 From 2 January 2015
USD6,276 to USD6,843 per tonne 25M to 30 March 2015

1ZN T-EE6,27655 7L 26,8433 T
MER S

B-T-HEF—A-BZE
—F-AF=A=+A

EaRtEEERAT —T-AFFR
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. $T4®®mI A (&)
(continued)

notes: (continued) HicE - (&)

(i) Metal commodities future contracts (net settlement) (continued) (i) SEEMBEANCFRLEE)(E)
Contract price Standard trading unit Total unit Maturity date
BHER EEEHEEN HE Y FAE

Zinc future contracts:
FHIEEA) -
Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 80 21 January 2015
USD2,203 to USD2,220 per tonne 250§ —T—hAF—A=+—AH
BN T EHE2,203ET%2,220% T
MEREE

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 80 21 January 2015
USD2,203 to USD2,220 per tonne 25M —T—hAF—A=+—H
BN T EME2,203%TE2,220% T
MERHE

Steel rebar future contracts:
HEFEEEHA)
Buy at prices ranging from 10 tonnes 69,267 15 May 2015
RMB2,480 to RMB2,641 per tonne 10M —ZT-RFAA+EHA
BN TEHEARE2,480TEARE2,6417T
MEREE

Nickel future contracts:

BREEEA -

Buy at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 487 From 14 January 2015
USD15,195 to USD 16,398 per tonne 6 to 18 March 2015

BN FEHE15,195% % 16,3985 T B-E-R5—A+HAZE
MEREE —Z-RF=A+\H

Sell at prices ranging from 6 tonnes 487 From 14 January 2015
USD15,195 to USD 16,398 per tonne (7] to 18 March 2015

BN T EHE15,195% 1% 16,398% T B=ZE-H&—RA+HAZE
MERIHE —ZT-RF=RA+\H

Lead future contracts:

HEHERA

Buy at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,553 From 14 January 2015
UsSD1,838 to USD2,056 per tonne 2508 to 31 March 2015

BN FEE1,838% T2 2,056 T B-E-—R5—A+HHAZE
MEREE —T-RF=A=+—H

Sell at prices ranging from 25 tonnes 1,410 From 14 January 2015
USD1,864 to USD2,070 per tonne 25M to 24 March 2015

BN TEHE1,864ET%22,070% T B-Z—H&—RA+HAZE
MERHE —T-RF=A=+WA

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

notes: (continued)

(ii)

Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement)

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or loss.

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2015

Notional amount

EE £

Forward contract rates

BHANERE

25.

PTEEMIA (&)
s« ()
) EESNEAH (REEH)
AR WA EINE S RIS ERR -

ZECHNBEHRRERFEEZIZAFE
st - HARMBRE RN BaSR R o

RIFEHARARF R EIINES LT ZERN
T
R=B-HF+=-A=+-—H

Maturity date
=)

2 contracts to sell
USD2,727,000 in total

%5 $£2,727,000FTHER2HE L

31 December 2014

Notional amount

EREH

USD1:RMB6.2879
to RMB6.4252

1€ R ARYE6.2879LE
ANR¥6.42527T

Forward contract rates

BHAMRRE

From 4 February 2016
to 30 March 2016
BT R"E-AmEZE
—ZT—RF=A=+H

—E-@mE+=ZRA=t—H

Maturity date
EH e

2 contracts to buy
USD2,091,848 in total

RE$2,091,848KLIBE M2 A K

2 contracts to sell
USD6,888,000 in total

124 $£6,888,000K TLHEM21A &K

USD1:RMB6.3064
to RMB6.3194

13X H AR Y6.3064TE
AR#¥6.31947T

USD1:RMB6.2969
to RMB6.3315

15X H ARG 29697 E
ANR¥6.33157T

From 29 May 2015
to 3 September 2015
BT RFRA-+NAZE
—T-hFENA=H

From 30 April 2015
to 11 May 2015
BE-T—AFMA=+HZE
—Z—RFAA+—H

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged bank deposits

These represents deposits pledged to banks to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. Bank deposits of
HK$132,022,000 (2014: HK$182,559,000) have been pledged
to secure short-term bank borrowings, of which HK$21,136,000
(2014: HK$92,556,000) are used as collaterals for foreign
currency forward contracts, and are therefore classified as current
assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the pledged bank deposits
carried fixed interest rates as follows:

26.

DIKBRITESR FHEE R
THGBERES

B FRITER
ZEFFERARITERARMNAEE
BREM—REBTEEELERNT
X 132,022,000 jT( = T — P4 F:
182,559,000/ 7T MR 1T E R B IR ERE
HSRATiE SR IELR - E AR 21,136,000 7%
T (ZZ—PO4 : 92,556,000 7T) E A
ESNECR BB A WO - UL DA
MENEE o

R IR - BIERRTFRIENTE
REFRIREH

RS

Interest rate per annum

Margin deposits

The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions
to secure the Group’s margin accounts with these financial
institutions for trading metal commodities future contracts. The
margin deposits are non-interest bearing. The amounts were
released during the year ended 31 December 2015 as the Group
does not have any outstanding metal commodity future contract
as at 31 December 2015.

Bank balances and cash

These represents cash and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. At the end of the
reporting period, the bank balances carried interest rates as
follows:

2.80% to 3.75%
2.80% £ 3.75%

0.50% to 3.50%
0.50% £ 3.50%

RES

ERIETF RN S BB - UER
AEERCERMmAREENZSER
BRI ZRESERS - RERIEET
AR ZERORBE_FT-—AF =
A=1T—BLLFERL - TTHARREZE
“T-RF+ZA=+—BIEFE &
SETEINBHEEESH -

RITERERBRE
ZEFREERAEMRIBAL=[EA
FATHEHRITER - RIWEHK
RITAERAN AT

2014

RS

Interest rate per annum

Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances
and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$259,139,000 (2014: HK$447,057,000) were denominated in
RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.
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0.01% to 1.15%
0.01% £ 1.15%

0.01% to 1.00%
0.01% £1.00%

EREFEHERBRITER RES
BERIT A A R IR & 858 5 259,139,000
B m( = & — M 4 : 447,057,000 7%
7L) * B2ESAARBEELZINEE ] o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/MARGIN 26.

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(continued)

Bank balances and cash (continued)
Pledged bank deposits, margin deposits and bank balances and
cash that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

EEARTERRES R

THERRkEE (F)

RITEHRE RS ()

NEBEEERNEER AN ERE
M EMBRITER  RESBRITHER

currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: MIREWT :
2015 2014
—E-IF T
RMB AR 308 244
HK$ BT 5,425 631
usb e 80,781 108,067
EUR BrT 1,348 24,462
AUD SR 126,940 -
27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B5 - EERHEMENKIE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—UF
Trade payables: (note i) B REMANRIE (i)
Sims Sims - 71,077
Third parties B=H 48,042 106,924
48,042 178,001
Bills payable: ANESEE
91-180 days 91£180H 6,072 -
Other payables: H b e 50E ¢
Other payables and accruals HAb e 5RIE R IEFH & R
(note ii) (B &E i) 59,417 113,211
Provision for pending litigation RERFFAARE
(Note 39) (FF5E39) 48,460 51,464
Government surcharges B EER 22,009 22,655
Payables for acquisition of WEEMZE - BB R B
property, plant and equipment FERTFRIA 27,032 24,973
Interest payables FERTFIE 3,820 6,253
Receipts in advance from customers TEWE P RIE 7,499 15,652
168,237 234,208
222,351 412,209
BESREEFRAT —T—RFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27.

BES ZEBEREMEMSFRE

- ==
(continued) (#&)
notes: Bt EE -
(i) Trade payables that are denominated in currencies other than the functional (i) NEMEEERIGEEBUINEETENE
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: SREAFIEMNT :
2015 2014
—g-5f —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
EUR BT - 3,050
usD ES 552 -
(ii) Included in other payables and accruals are mainly freight charges, accrued (i) HMENREREAERAETEREER B

salaries and audit fee.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date.

BEEYE G

AT REZENRBREZAHZIH

FRER DT °

2015 2014
—E-AfF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Trade payables: B D REMNFIE :
0-30 days 0£30H 32,138 113,241
31-60 days 31260H 2,550 56,525
61-90 days 61%90H 669 253
91-180 days 912180 H 407 92
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 12,278 7,890
48,042 178,001
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

agreements.

(ii) At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rates of the

borrowings are as follows:

(ii)

CEE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS 28. BITEFKREX
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEMER !
Secured bank loans BEBIBITER 549,247 797,526
Unsecured bank loans EIRARFITER 212,861 234,801
Unsecured bank overdrafts IR TS - 721
Variable-rate borrowings: TREEER
Secured bank loans HEMIEITER 315,120 264,146
Unsecured bank loans B RIRITE R 17,928 27,637
1,095,156 1,324,831
Carrying amount repayable (note (i)): FETBREE (B EE()) ¢
Within one year —FR 1,095,156 1,324,831
Less: e
Amounts due within one year shown NmBEE T 258
under current liabilities without THREBBZREK
repayment on demand clause ERUER—FEANEIEN 25 - (137,936)
Amounts due within one year shown RRBBETZ2INTE
under current liabilities with IR AE IR B S8 SRR
repayment on demand clause —FAI BN SR (1,095,156) (1,186,895)
Amounts shown under SEREBBETEINEEE
non-current liabilities - -
notes: Bt E
(i) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan (i) FH S B IRE R BE R T K A

REBEER - EFRNERMELOT

2015
—E-hF

Effective interest rate per annum:

Fixed-rate borrowings

Variable-rate borrowings

BIRERE

EBER

Jé
¢
i3
gt

2.20% to 5.06%
2.20% £5.06%
3.26% to 5.06%
3.26% £5.06%

1.50% to 6.44%
1.50% £ 6.44%
2.02% to 3.66%
2.02% %= 3.66%

EeREEFRAHE

—E-REER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS 28. fR{ITERKREX (&)
(continued)

notes: (continued) ik : (48)
(i) The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the (iii) NEBEEEREEEAINEEIHERN A
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: EEMERNT :
2015 2014
—E2-AHF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
HK$ I - 830
UsD e 770,505 1,062,259
EUR BT 123,529 =
29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. A 2alRE5 K HMER
BORROWINGS
Embedded
Debt derivative
component components
BARITE
BEDH TEIH#H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Convertible Bonds | at 1 January 2014 ARRESR R =F—NF—F—H 759,406 13,353
Interest charge MEEA 89,647 -
Interest paid ERFIE (32,632) =
Fair value gain NFERE - (13,353)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 RZZE-—ME+ZA=+—HZEAE 816,421 -
Derecognition of the Convertible Bonds | HUBRR AR ES | (815,800) -
Issuance of Convertible Bonds I BITAHARES | 655,771 161,239
Interest charge MEEA 77,561 -
Interest paid ERFIE (31,651) =
Instalments paid BRI ER K (89,000) -
Conversion during the year FRHR (348,156) (457,087)
Fair value loss N EEE - 305,463
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+-A=+—HAZKEE 265,146 9,615
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AMERE A
Current liabilities mENAE 161,559 -
Non-current liabilities FRBaE 103,587 9,615
265,146 9,615
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ =F

—HFE+-A=1+—RLFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. Ai#REZ K HEMER (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

2015 2014
—Z—EF —E—PE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Analysis of debt component: BEIEHD DT
Debt component of convertible AR AR 2 B E D
bonds
- current —nE - 816,421
- non-current —3EMRE 58,812 -
58,812 816,421
Other borrowings (note (xiii)) b fE R (B3 (iii))
- current —/;HEJJ 161,559 -
— non-current — 3B 44,775 =
206,334 -
265,146 816,421

notes:

(i) On 1 March 2012 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued convertible bonds
to HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH"), Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) and
Sims (collectively the “Subscribers”) with an aggregate principal sum of
HK$815,800,000 (the “Convertible Bonds 1”) with detachable three-year
warrants (the “Warrants”) at total consideration of HK$815,800,000 (the
“Subscription”). On 16 January 2013, HWH transferred its convertible bonds
with the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 to independent third party,
Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund (“Greenwoods”). No exercise of the

Warrants had taken place since the Issue Date. On 1 March 2015, the Warrants

were expired.

(ii) The major terms of Convertible Bonds | are as below:

(a) The Convertible Bonds | carry 4% coupon interest per annum payable

in arrears semi-annually. Unless previously converted, the Convertible

Bonds | would be fully redeemed by the Company at its principal

amount upon maturity on 1 March 2015 (the “Maturity Date”).

No early redemption of the Convertible Bonds | was allowed unless

the Company committed an event of default under the terms and

conditions of the Convertible Bonds .

Wik

(ii)

EERHEEFRAT =T

R=ZZ—=F=A—B(#ITBEH] &
ATEHWH Holdings Limtied ((HWH ) »
Delco Participation B.V.([Delcol) & Sims
(%78 [RER 1) BT =F A 9 RAE
= ([RMHEE ) B AR 4% 4815,800,000
BT AR ES ([ AR E 1) - 8K
{8 %815,800,0008 T ([ REFHE]) - ¥
—E—=F—A+TXH HWHEEXEHE
120,000,000/ T 2 IR EHF THELE =
73 + Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund
([Greenwoods]) - BT H BB EITEE
RREF  c RZZT—HF=A—H - BRIE
FEERE -

AHARESR | KO E R EFEFILT -

(@) HRRESIHBEI%NFRS - FF
FXN—IR - BRIEERILIE - BE
ARABR=_F-—AF=A—A3Z
HEE((2ME D AR EED 228
AR AR BRIFARFERATH
B AR 5 | B IR R Mk~ BRI A 7F
IR BRI AR ES]

RFFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. Ai#REZ K HEMER (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)
(ii) The major terms of Convertible Bonds | are as below: (continued)

(b) The holders of the Convertible Bonds | had the right to convert the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds | into shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) at any time during the period
from the second anniversary of the Issue Date up to 10 business
days prior to the Maturity Date, subject to the minimum public float

requirement.

(iii) The Convertible Bonds | comprise debt component and embedded derivative
component (including conversion options), which were measured at fair value
of HK$659,611,000 and HK$142,771,000, respectively, on initial recognition.

(iv) The fair value of the debt component on initial recognition was calculated
as the present value of contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate of 11.756%.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds | was

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(v) The fair value of the embedded derivative components was determined using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into the model are as

BifeE « (4H)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AHRRES | MEZERBFINT : (&)

(b) ARRES I FEAGRRETRS
FORFEIHMAMIEEERZ
HRERE RS L REZRE
BT (A T REERERE) KRR E
FINAS B BK AR B EREE
0.01 BITH MG @ EAEFRER
FRRENRE -

THBEH I OEEH DD RWAR T4
TABH(RELRE) DAREAFE
659,611,000/% 7T 5 142,771,000/ TR H1 2
IR -

TR ERE R DA FETDERRER
F% 11.756% BEE M) & KEE R AR RE R 7R
HEE -

RERERE - rHARES 2 BB RS TR
SRR BB F ORI -

BARPTET AR DA FETI IR —REE
FEEEAEE RAEAMEA 2 EEEUEN

follows: T
At
31 December
2014
R-T—mE
+=A=+—H
Stock price BB HK$2.80
2.80/87T
Exercise price T8 HK$6.00
6.00757T
Expected volatility (note 1) TR g (PRE 1) 53.189%
Dividend yield BB M & 0.000%
Option life i 1.5 months
1.51@A
Risk free rate (note 2) R R (FiiaE2) 0.028%
notes: Bt
(1) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied (1) TERT K IE TS 2 BA D R R G R E

volatility of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation.

(2) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong

Government Bond's and treasury bill’s yield.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. Ai#REZ K HEMER (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)
(v) (continued)

(3) In subsequent periods, the embedded derivative components were
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
and loss.

(vi) No conversion of the Convertible Bonds | had taken place from the Issue Date
to the Maturity Date.

(vii) On 3 and 4 March 2015, the Company signed extension agreements with all
bond holders with a modification of terms of convertible bonds as follows:

(1) the Convertible Bonds | with principal amount of HK$315,600,000
held by Sims (the “Sims Convertible Bonds”) and the Convertible
Bonds | with principal amount of HK$67,600,000 held by HWH (the
“HWH Convertible Bonds”) together with the respective conversion
options were extended for a further two years to 1 March 2017. On
22 July 2015, HWH transferred its entire convertible bonds with a
principal amount of HK$67,600,000 to Great Roc Capital Limited
(“Great Roc”), (the “Great Roc Convertible Bonds”);

2) the Convertible Bonds | with principal amount of HK$312,600,000
held by Delco (the “Delco Convertible Bonds”) together with the
conversion options were extended for a further two years to 1 March
2017. In addition, if Delco continues to hold the Delco Convertible
Bonds after 31 July 2015, the Company should pay Delco the amount
of HK$312,600,000 in seven separate quarterly instalments (the first
six instalment payments with the same amount of HK$44,500,000
each and the last instalment payment of HK$45,600,000)
commencing on 1 September 2015 together with all unpaid interests
of 4% per annum accrued thereon from 1 March 2015 up to such
date of payment and the interest is calculated by reference to the net
principal amount after taking into consideration of the instalment

payments, in consideration of which:

BifeE « (4H)

(v) ()
(3) REZBE  RARXTETAILSD
BRATFEGFE  AFEZZHNIE
AR ©

(vi) BRTEHEZINHAMEN BT RRE
Bl

(vi) RZE-AF=A=ARMEA - AREHEH
BEFRHE ARG Z - TARESD
ERTIERRAT

(1) Sims ¥ A #) A8 & %8 4 315,600,000
7 T B TT AR & #1 ([Sims 7] #
BES ) RHWHE E A& 8 A
67,600,000 7T &) A # % & 5|
(THWHRT R & 25 1) - = B W8
AR ERS AN R REBTHMN
FE_T—+HF=A—H-R=F
—AFEEAZ+=H HWHEHH
N4 %8 567,600,000 7T K A £
fi&f&% F Great Roc Capital Limited
([ Great Roc]) ([ Great Roc AJ#& (&
#1) e

) Delco 8 A< % 4 312,600,000 7
JE AR B % 1([ Delco ATHRAR &S 1)
ERABREE—TTERMEFE_ZT
—tFE=A—H8 Wi HR=F
—AFEtHA=+—H7& ' DelcoéfE
58 Delco ATRMRES - AN AIES
f+Delco312,600,0005 7T 2 & %8
AHBMIM(EREHEBEAER
& %844,500,000/8 7 * &E—HA
45,600,000/7T) ' BE=F—AFN
A—HAR  ERAMERIMAFE -
BEMNRI%FE(BZT—RF
=RA—BEZMRBBAELNT
B) FENKSEFAGEKEE
BAERNR) RERE -

EERMEEFRAT —T-AFFR
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. ifi2lREF R EMER(E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(vii)

(continued)

(03]

(continued)

0]

(ii)

Delco undertakes not to dispose of any of the Delco
Convertible Bonds at any time after 31 July 2015 other than
to the Company or to such parties as the Company shall
introduce and shall waive (1) the right of redemption of the
Delco Convertible Bonds upon the maturity of the Delco
Convertible Bonds on 1 March 2017; (2) the right to receive
interest on the Delco Convertible Bonds from 1 March 2015;
and (3) the right to convert the Delco Convertible Bonds,
under the terms of the deed poll dated 1 March 2012 (the
“Delco Undertakings”); and

the Company shall have the right to require Delco to sell the
Delco Convertible Bonds to the Company or such parties as
the Company shall introduce the Delco Convertible Bonds
at any time after 31 July 2015 at a price equivalent to the
principal amount of the Delco Convertible Bonds together
with all unpaid interest accrued thereon up to such date
of purchase by delivering a notice in writing to Delco (the
“Purchase Notice”), such purchase shall be completed within
one month from the date of the Purchase Notice. Upon
completion of such purchase, the obligations of the Company
to make the instalment payments which remain outstanding
shall cease;
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BifeE « (4H)

(vii)

(#)

(i)

DelcoE#EN —E—AF LA
=+ —BEEARFETHE
fEfaI Delco AT AR &5 (BR )
ANRBHAR RN B E A
77 W FEEAS (1) M DelcoA]
BRESR-_T—+F=A
—BEIHREAELRE  (2)U
EDelcorf R EH B ==
—RE=A—BRELENFH
BEER : k()RR A
—FT—-F=A—HHFiE
IR 5K 2 Delco AT AR &
F80EF|([DelcoEzt ) + &

ARRARBREEZRKDelcoN =F
—AEtA=+—B%EM
B - H & Delco [ A ES
FARRREAR RN Delco
ARREHFOEMS - B
BHEZE R Delco AT AR EHA
SENLHE  ERMAEZE
ZEE R REN ARSI T
B WAZEBADelco([
BEM]) ZBEANEE
BABBH—EAARTK ° %
BETHKE - AARIBLEA
A D B TR B AT FEAR
IlE 5
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. ifi2lREF R EMER(E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued) BicE - (&)

(viiy  (continued) (i) (8

3) the Convertible Bonds | with the principal amount of HK$120,000,000
held by Greenwoods (the “Greenwoods Convertible Bonds”) together
with the conversion options were extended to 1 March 2017 and
Greenwoods has the early redemption option to demand for full
repayment of principal and accrued interest on any of these date: 1
September 2015, 1 March 2016 or 1 September 2016.

The Convertible Bonds | with modified terms is hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Convertible Bonds II” and considered as substantial modification.
Details of the modification of terms of the Convertible Bonds | are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 5 March 2015, 10 March 2015, 18
March 2015, 26 March 2015, 1 April 2015, 10 April 2015 and 27 April 2015.

Upon the derecognition of the Convertible Bonds | of HK$815,800,000 and
recognition of the Convertible Bonds I, the difference of HK$1,210,000
between the carrying amount of Convertible Bonds | and the fair value of
Convertible Bonds Il is recognised as loss on derecognition of Convertible
Bonds | in the profit or loss in other gains and losses. The fair values of the debt
component and embedded derivative components of the Convertible Bonds
Il are determined by the directors of the Company based on the valuation
by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group.

(3) i Greenwoods# & &N & %8 A
120,000,000 % 7T &) A # f& & %1
([ Greenwoods AT &5 |) R 5%,
BELERE-_Z—+F=—18 "
% Greenwoods B i 122 P& - I
ERBHERAN SRR THEMR
BHFTEANFE : ZE—RHFA
A—B ZZf—R"F=A—Hz%k=
T—RFENA—H-

BBIETIERREO AR ES | SBR[
BREFI] - S AEAES - BRANAHR
BRESHERFBERAARRIAHA=T—A
E£=ZfHEA - —T—AF=A+tH =%
—RE=A+N\B - ZE-—AEF=A=+K
B ZE—AFMA—H - Z_ZT—AFWA
TER=ZE—RAFMA=t++tHZAE -

A EUH E 52 7K & K8 4 815,800,000 74 7T 2
AIARES I RERRRES1E - TR
A% 15 %5 | 19 BR T (H B2 A AR 5 1| 0 A F B
1,210,000 70 2 Z R 8 25 & H At i zs &
B8R REUHER R AR &5 HE1E -
AR & MEH 219 KR AR AT A T A S
HEATETBARA Al E FIRIBE S BT
BERAR (BAEEEREL BYLA SR
HEAER) FIEGERTE -

EaRtEEERAT —T-AFFR
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. ifi2lREF R EMER(E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

(continued)

On 9 April 2015, USUMHK purchased the Sims Convertible Bonds from
Sims in the aggregate principal amount of HK$315,600,000 (the “USUMHK
Convertible Bonds”) without changing any terms of Convertible Bonds II.
The purchase of the Sims Convertible Bonds was completed on 3 June 2015.
Details of these are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 9 April
2015 and 3 June 2015.

On 1 August 2015, Delco still held the Delco Convertible Bonds. Accordingly,
the Delco Undertakings came into effect as from that date, in terms of which
the Delco Convertible Bonds became a straight debt instrument. Hence, the
embedded conversion derivatives in relation to the Delco Convertible Bonds
amounting to HK$38,491,000 as at 31 July 2015 were derecognised against
profit and loss, and the amortised cost of the Delco Convertible Bonds was
adjusted to reflect the present value of the seven instalments and coupon
interests discounted at the original effective interest rate of 16.957% (see note
(ix)). The adjustment is recognised as part of the effective interest expense. The
Delco Convertible Bonds are presented as ‘other borrowings’ after the Delco
Undertakings came into effect as the Delco Convertible Bonds no longer have

conversion options after that date.

Other than the Delco Convertible Bonds which has been modified as described
in note (vii) (2) above and the Greenwoods Convertible Bonds with early
redemption option as disclosed in note (vii) (3) above, the major terms of
Convertible Bonds | discussed in note (ii)(a) and (b) above remain unchanged
in the Convertible Bonds Il apart from the extension of maturity date.

The fair value of the debt component of the Convertible Bonds Il on initial
recognition was calculated using the present value of contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rates of
16.957%, 17.492%, 17.492% and 17.492% for the Delco Convertible Bonds,
the HWH/Great Roc Convertible Bonds, the Sims/USUMHK Convertible Bonds
and the Greenwoods Convertible Bonds respectively.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the Convertible Bonds I is

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(%

)

(#)

R-ZZ—REMANR « APEEER Sims #E
B A% #8%8 5 315,600,000 8702 Sims A 2
&S (A a SRR ES ) - M ek
B | H A IR B E 2T o BB Sims AJ#R
BREHFER-_ZT—AFA=BxK - - 54
HEHIRARRBHA=—T—REMANL
AR=—ZT—RAFNA=ZRAZA% -

MZZ—HF/\A—H ' Delcof3#5 %A Delco
AR E S o Bt - 8% Bi#DelcoAFHEE
B BRI - Delco AR &K A B R ER
TH- AW R=ZZT—AFtA=+—H
B Delco Al E S MR AR ZMITET A
& #£38,491,000 8 TR 58 A 4R IEHERR -
i Delco AT #2 A% & % 00 88 $5 5K A B A 1B 3
B ARBEBESBMRORE KE@
B BI% R A 2 A K 16.957 % 1 1 (2 B
FE(ix)) o TR D B UF S FRALZ TR -
Delco AJ# A& fE 1A Delco s A& A [ H
fbfER] 251 - TheR % B & - Delco AT
AR &5 T B AH AR -

W _E 3BT EE (vii)(2) ATt Delco AT AR (&35 B 4C
1&&] K b= SCH &E (vii)(3) AiTitlt Greenwoods A #2
ARAEFH M IR PR EAESN - SOt Gii)(a) &
(b)FTatam AT AR (B 71,2 = B (55K AT AR (R
FNHEFTE (REIHEERIN) ©

IETERE R ES I 2EEBIHAF
{8 - Bt Delco AJ#ARES + HWH/Great Roc
AR ES - Sims/ AR BB A RRES &
Greenwoods Al R EH 15 BlE AR E
BX F % 16.957% + 17.492% * 17.492% K&
17.492% BB KA HEER KRS ROEE
=t

RERER - AHRRES I Z EBED T1E
B SERRA R A BRI FRDER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. ifi2lREF R EMER(E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued) BicE - (&)

(x) The fair value of the embedded derivative components of the Convertible (x) ARRES (BIELRERIETEDE) #
ARSTET AIH R FE IR —BHETE
BREAEERZEXAFRAZ T EZHEMN
the model are as follows: T

Bonds I (including conversion options and early redemption option) was

determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model and the major inputs into

The Delco Convertible Bonds (Principal amount of HK$312,600,000) Delco W17 & 3
(A€ %% 312,600,000 7 7T)

On
issuance
BITH
Stock price ARfE HK$5.30
5.30%7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$6.00
6.00787T
Expected volatility (note 1) TERTRIE (FEE1) 31.404%
Dividend yield AR B R 0.000%
Option life R 6 to 24 months
6= 241EA
Risk free rate (note 2) A BRI 2 (Fff et 2) 0.475%

The HWH Convertible Bonds/the Great Roc Convertible Bonds (Principal HWH T # % &% Great Roc AT & IR &%

amount of HK$67,600,000) (&£ %8% 67,600,000 7 7T)
At
On 31 December
issuance 2015
BATH R-Z-RfF
t=A=+-8
Stock price BB HK$5.47 HK$5.17
5.47 %7t 5.17%7t
Exercise price 1TEE HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.007%E 7T 6.00757T
Expected volatility (note 1) TERTIRE (FEE1) 31.404% 51.434%
Dividend yield R B ok 0.000% 0.000%
Option life R 24 months 14 months
24187 1418 A
Risk free rate (note 2) A= BRI 2 (Fff et 2) 0.498% 0.178%

BaXitEEERAT —ZT—HFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)

()

(continued)

The Sims Convertible Bonds/the USUMHK Convertible Bonds (Principal

29. AHARESFRHEAMER (E)

BifeE « (4H)

(x)

(#)

Sims AR ES SABEBTRRES

amount of HK$315,600,000) (£ %% 315,600,000 7 T)
On On
issuance conversion
BT HIRE
Stock price B&fE HK$5.47 HK$12.38
5.47 %7t 12.3877T
Exercise price 171E(E HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.00% 7T 6.00/%87C
Expected volatility (note 1) TEFHRE (e 1) 31.404% 40.658%
Dividend yield % 8 Uk 2 o 0.000% 0.000%
Option life Rk AR 24 months 20.5 months
241EAR 20.51EA
Risk free rate (note 2) BB A R (K e 2) 0.498% 0.343%
The Greenwoods Convertible Bonds (Principal amount of Greenwoods T % &%
HK$120,000,000) (£ %84 120,000,000 % 7T)
On On
issuance conversion
BT IRk
Stock price M8 HK$5.47 HK$11.40
5.47 %7t 11.407%7T
Exercise price 1TfEE HK$6.00 HK$6.00
6.0077T 6.00/%87C
Expected volatility (note 1) FEFHR R (Pt 1) 31.404% 34.274%
Dividend yield AR = 0.000% 0.000%
Option life MR 24 months 20.7 months
2418 A 20.71@A
Risk free rate (note 2) R FR (H7E2) 0.498% 0.381%
notes: FitsE -
(1) The expected volatility was determined with reference to the implied (1) TERHRIE T8 2 BA R A IR 5 A

volatility of the Company’s shares as at the date of valuation.

(2) The risk free rate was determined with reference to the Hong Kong
Government Bond's and treasury bill’s yield.

(3) In subsequent periods, the embedded derivative components are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit

and loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. ifi2lREF R EMER(E)
BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(xi)

(xii)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Greenwoods Convertible
Bonds were fully converted into shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at
the conversion price of HK$6.00 per share. Accordingly, a total of 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by conversion of the
Greenwoods Convertible Bonds.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the USUMHK Convertible Bonds
were fully converted into shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the
conversion price of HK$6.00 per share. Accordingly, a total of 52,600,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by conversion of the
USUMHK convertible bonds.

As at 31 December 2015, the Delco Convertible Bonds and the Great
Roc Convertible Bonds remain outstanding with a principal amount of
HK$223,600,000 and HK$67,600,000 presented as other borrowings and
debt component of convertible bonds respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company paid the first
two instalment payments of HK$89,000,000 in aggregate to Delco (the
“Payment”).

BifeE « (4H)

(i)

(xii)

BRUEEEBRAA

REBE—Z—R&E+-A=+—HILFEH
fE * Greenwoods A #AR & % LA K R E G
6.00 8 TTABE LK AR A GAREE0.01 7
TR o Btk - &3£20,000,000 R EARE
B0.01 B2 E@ARFE B Greenwoods
RIS T AR B R BEAT -

RBE—Z—AF+-A=+—HILFEH
B ARE S T RRES R R ESR6.00
IR IAR A A R SR EE0.01 B ITH
B o Atk © & #£52,600,000 8% & % T &
0.01 % 7T.2 L iBARE B K I B 7S TR
BEH F AR S REAT

R-T—FRE+-_HA=+—8 ' Delcorf#
& &% K& Great Roc [ IR EH A €55 Bl A
223,600,000 % 7t & 67,600,000 7 7T 18 & &
1T+ 9 Bl 2 5 E At 18 5 K% AT HRAR 5 55 B 7%

D ©
RBE_Z-—RAF+-A=+—HILFE"

RAR)E A Delco 3 - 25t 4 89,000,000 7
TCHIE R ERE 3 B AR (& 3R ) ©

“E-REFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND OTHER 29. Ai#REZ K HEMER (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (continued)

(xiii) ~ For the sole purpose of illustration, if it is assumed that there had been no
Delco Undertakings as stated in note (vii) (2) (i) and the Payment as stated in
note (xii) above, the proforma financial impact of the Delco Convertible Bonds

as at 31 December 2015 would be as follows:

BifeE « (4H)

(xiii)

(EEMA AR - BB R (viD) (2) () FT
3t 1) Delco & # K b SCB =E (xii) BT it 8 5% 155
FOBERTR=_E—RE+=-A=1+—AY
Delco AT EHMEZ M IS EF AT ¢

Principal Embedded
amount Debt derivative
outstanding component component
REEARSHE ‘EHBS BMARSTET RIS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET
The Delco Convertible Bonds PREZHE A Delco A ik K% 7R E
assuming there had been no Delco AJ iR &%
Delco Undertakings and the
Payment 312,600 272,960 44,571
(note) (note)
The Delco Convertible Bonds % & Delco 7## Rz 7 #) Delco (BE=E) (B &)
considering the Delco AHARES - Rt SEE BT
Undertakings and the Payment, ~ AEERILA [HAbERR] 251 ©
as recognised in these
consolidated financial
statements and presented as
‘other borrowings’ 223,600 206,334 -

note: The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and these
values have not been recognised or otherwise reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. IRA
Number
of shares Amount
BHEE k-]
HK$
BT
Authorised: JRIE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R-ZZT—WMF—A—H -
at 1 January 2014, ZENERZE-RAF
31 December 2014 and 2015 +=-—A=+—H
FXTEE0.01 BT Bk 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITEHE ¢
At 1 January 2014 R=ZZE—mF—F—H 1,044,612,706 10,446,127
Exercise of share options (note i) 1T{E R R AE (PRED) 4,830,000 48,300
At 31 December 2014 R_ZF—WNFE+=-_A=+—H 1,049,442,706 10,494,427
Issue of shares (note ii) BT (B 456,900,000 4,569,000
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note 29) i # A # & &4 (M5 29) 72,600,000 726,000
Exercise of share options (note i) TR (PR 9,572,000 95,720
At 31 December 2015 R=—ZF—hF+=-A=+—H 1,588,514,706 15,885,147

notes:

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 2,460,000 and 7,112,000 share
options under the Scheme (as defined in Note 36) (2014: 3,978,000 and
852,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme (as defined in Note 36) and
the Scheme) were exercised at subscription prices of HK$6.388 and HK$4.186
per share respectively (2014: HK$2.43 and HK$3.38 per share respectively),
resulting in the total issue of 9,572,000 (2014: 4,830,000) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company.

On 21 March 2015, the Company entered into the first and second
subscription agreements with an independent investor, USUMHK for the first
subscription of 203,900,000 shares and second subscription of 253,000,000
shares respectively at the subscription price of HK$9.01 per share. The first
subscription and second subscription were completed on 30 April 2015 and
29 May 2015 respectively, 203,900,000 shares and 253,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued to USUMHK respectively. After deducting all relevant
costs and expenses, the net proceeds from the first and second subscriptions
amounted to HK$1,826,089,000 and HK$2,268,480,000 respectively. Upon
the completion of the first and second subscriptions, USUMHK becomes a
controlling shareholder of the Company since 29 May 2015.

All the above-mentioned new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

BifaE

(i)

(iii)

EeREEFRAH

REE-Z-—AF+-_A=1+—HBILFE -
#HE (B RMIFE36) 38 T 92,460,000 17 K&
7,112,000 7 BERRE (=2 — PO 4F - XA
BERTEI (TR AME36) KatEl (TR
Fft 3£ 36) B T #93,978,0001% % 852,0001%
BEASHE) 2 PIiZ S % 6.388 B T N2 4.186 /87T
(Z2—MF : DHIRER2.438TK3.38
BIT) MREEETRE - BEURA B ELT
FHREE0.01A7THI 9,572,000 i (=T —PY
4 : 4,830,000 f%) Ei@A% o

R-ZT—HAE=ZA=-+—8  KARFE—
EBUREEARMBBRILE—HRE=
MDREGZE - NIRRBETRAH .01
TT 5 Bl % — #t 3288 203,900,000 B B 15 & 5
— it 7R B8 253,000,000 % B 15 » B — R
BRE_MRESBER =T —RFEMA
=+BEER=Z—RFHRA=-TAAZEK " @
203,900,000 A% A% 17 &% 253,000,000 A% f% 15
DRI KRBT T RAEAS - RINKRFTEME
BARR ARSI « E—HtRERE R
FT18 3R B F 55 5l A 1,826,089,000 7 7T K&
2,268,480,00078 7T ° A TER B IR & 8B =Kk
RE%  ABAEAET—RAFHEA=TAI
H#BRL BN A Bl Z R ARAR R -

i LSRN ER AT ARRERGZE
R -

—E-REER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
FEMBHRERM T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE
31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 31. EERER

Share of net liabilities
of subsidiaries

M A Al
FEE(8E)
2015 2014
—Z—EHF —Z—UFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H (80,694) (67,671)
Capital contribution AE 7,240 -
Share of loss for the year FRNFTEEE (5.217) (13,260)
Share of foreign currency PG SNES TE 3 (8
translation reserve 4,530 237
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H (74,141) (80,694)
32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. BUFHBD
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group received REBEE-_Z—HE+-_A=+—HI%E
government subsidies of HK$44,612,000 in relation to E o ANEBEWEREBEPREEEB AR
construction projects in the PRC. The amount has been deducted T+ 8544,612,0008 L ° Z & 52 8
from the carrying amount of the relevant assets, including BRAEEMNEREENR ° kSR
buildings, machinery and prepaid lease payments as disclosed in BE BEEFT HELEMAES (D
Notes 17 and 18 respectively. The amount is transferred to income BIAKMI3E17 218 F&E ) 2 7] {£ B & A
in the form of reduced depreciation and amortisation charges over A LA DT Bk B E A 2 2 A LR
the useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy has resulted in = o HBERER N A FEEI A KRS
a credit to income in the current year of HK$241,000. As at 31 241,000 RZE—HE+=-A
December 2015, an amount of HK$44,371,000 remains to be =+—H8 ' £%44,371,0008 TTIHARE
amortised. B o

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the R EBAR - AEBEE MRITEIFLAT
following assets to banks to secure general banking facilities BE  WEREBETAEE 2 —RIRITE
granted to the Group: B
2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) %1% &= &a&E (£ 17) 126,892 68,258
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) TEft S (ML 18) 186,856 304,746
Investment properties (Note 19) HEWZE (MEE19) - 22,351
Bank deposits (Note 26) BRI (FisE26) 132,022 182,559
445,770 577,914
34. COMMITMENTS 34, EIE
2015 2014
—B-AHF —ZT—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET
Capital expenditure contracted for BRI HERRERE
but not provided in the consolidated WS HmERPBENERFZ
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 42(ii)) — U&88 —FEIFI B 2 &) (T E 42(i) 419,007 =
— acquisition of property, plant —YEEME - B KRt
and equipment 18,646 20,405
— acquisition of prepaid lease payments — BTG - 129,232
— additions in construction in progress —RN&EEiE T 38,842 107,518
— formation of subsidiaries — BB A A 42,500 -
518,995 257,155
Capital expenditure authorised but BAEE — BB A R B B
not contracted for in respect of BRFTARE AN
acquisition of a subsidiary - 81,126

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
me

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &£ =F

35.

36.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

BA RS R AR BT EE ()

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Company could
grant options to directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme was to
recognise the contribution that Participants made or might
have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed to give
Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in
the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or
retain Participants whose contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group.
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35.

36.
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#ZI% IRRRAR NGB o IR
NRAREEBEAHINE TED LA
ZRREMET B - RRFEMEHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UM AEBNR2RS (&)

(continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing
1.214% of shares of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), but excluding
any shares which could fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the other schemes and shares that could fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are
exercisable at the initial offer price to the public (i.e.
HK$2.43 per share). Each of the holders of the share options
under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/
her options in the following manner:

Service period that

share options can be vested

after the date of Listing

R ETh B % 7 55 5 B AR RE Y FR A% HA R

()

BXAMBERBRESE (E)
AR HABREM S &= RO H
B 4A12,140,0000% % 3 © # &
REREARRARMDRB R EH
([ £ ) BARREBEITRASR
RDE 1.214% @ ETBIEEITE
BIBEEXARAEERTE REM
AT EIE H sk ig TR A B AR
Al REHS T BT EMMRD © AR
B 17 8 _E 7175 B8 A9 8 KB e AR 42
i 7] B8 F B TR AR D o

RIEE XD SRR EE E 8
BRERGETRARALHYEE
EEB(EFEREHD243F L) 17
Fo ERAAFABERTETSE
fRiEHF A A BT A RT
i EL AR -

Maximum percentage of
share options exercisable
A{TREERENE 2L LR

Attaining 1 year
RAE—F
Attaining 2 years
B MF
Attaining 3 years
RE=F

BRBEEFRAF

30% of the total number of options granted

B AR 30%

60% of the total number of options granted

A B AR A 42 B 60 %

100% of the total number of options granted

BB A EA 100%

—E-REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UM AEBNR2RS (&)

(continued)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s
options granted in 2010 under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme held by the directors of the Company and
employees and the movements during both years:

BRI E AR IR 8 ()
TREEMEFEFAARRES
R BFAMRIEE X AREEA
BRI BN T —TSERHHA
NRIBRE R E B

Number
Number of options
of options outstanding
Category of Exercise outstanding Exercised Lapsed asat
Eligible pice  Exercsable asat during during 310201
Participants Dateofgrant ~pershare period Vesting date 112014 the year the year and 2015
R-%-Bf
et S R-%-1%
-A-8 t2A=1-A
HASTEN R Esitd
RERSELR b SRikE  fkH ERAE ERiERE Efig Ki/54 hEds
(notea) (noteb) note)
(Kt (Ritb) (Kt
Diretors 1272010 Hkf23 137.2013-127.2014 137203 1,970,000 (1,970,000) - -
] 55 W% CIREEATERE CE-SEtRfeR
tht2h EREATCA
Employees and other prtidpants 1272010 HKS243 137.2013-12.7.2014 137.2013 2,608,000 (2008,000) (600,000) -
EERAMBES 518 WBET C3-EEATIRE Z3-SEtAfRR
thtzh EREATCR
4578000 (3978,000) (600,000) -
Number of ptions eercisabl e the end of the year
ERTAGNERESE 4578000 -
Weghted average exercise price
TETHRE HK$243 HK$2.483 HkS2.83
notes: B & -
(a) The date of grant was the date when Participants accepted the offer (a) BREBHALEEERMBEERR
of options under the Pre-IPO Scheme. FREE AT 8 2 B ARER B H -
(b) In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended 31 (b) REBEE-_Z-—NWNF+=-A=+—H

December 2014, the share prices at the dates of exercise ranged from
HK$2.84 to HK$4.47.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. URGAERSRZRXS ()
(continued)

)

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

notes: (continued)

(0) 600,000 share options granted to employees, were lapsed due to
maturity of unexercised options in 2014.

(d) All of these options were fully vested in prior years, no share-based
payment expense was recognised for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 in relation to share options granted by the Company
under the Pre-IPO Scheme.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all
shareholders of the Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options
to directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and
employees of the Group and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the
Group who the board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Scheme Participants”). The Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to reward Eligible Scheme
Participants who have contributed to the Group and to
encourage Eligible Scheme Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the shares for the
benefit of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from 23 June 2010.

()
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of shares of the Company
as of the date of the approval by the shareholders in
general meeting, without approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Scheme
Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the
date of grant.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of their respective associates are required
to be approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the options). Where granting of options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
director or their respective associates which will result in
the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
twelve-month period up to and including the date of such
grant exceed of 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue
and have an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million,
based on the official closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, such proposed grant of options will be subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.
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(i)

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UGB AEBRNR2ZRS (&)
(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. URGAERSRZRXS ()
(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BRAHBRERBRESS
(%)
The exercise price is determined by the board of directors TEEREEETE  HEERN
and but in any event shall not be less than the highest of: AT ERTISELZES
(@) the official closing price of the shares on the Stock (@) MNIREBH(ZBEABR
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of FIitEESFR S EBH B
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be F) B FTH & B wEKFTY
a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the BHOEBRXMANE F KT
business of dealing in securities; =
(b)  the average of the official closing price of the shares (b) EBERREBEHAMAEEA
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily quotation B R P& B SRR A5 B 1D
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business EBRAHNEHE HF KT
days immediately preceding the offer date; and B &
() the nominal value of the shares. (0 MRMOHAIEE -
Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified FIRBERETNEZS NG SR
by the board of directors to each grantee and such period RAWBETE - mZARTE
shall expire not later than 4 years from the date of grant of REHBRER R HFERE
options. e

EaRtbEEERAR —T-AFFR
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UM AEBNR2RS (&)

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and BIEZTEREOERERER
their subsequent movements are as follows: BEFBOT

Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/  of options Lapsed/ ~ options
Exercise outstanding  Reclassified  Evercised  forfeited outstanding  Exercised forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eligible price Exercisable asat during during during asat during during asat
Scheme Participants  Date of grant  per share period Vesting date 112014 theyear  theyear  theyear 31122014  theyear  theyear  31.12.2015
H-%-mE H=%-BF H=%-1fF
-B-8 t2Azt-8 TZRzt-H
LESIL Ef Eh  HAGRN By HAGRN
AEEHHSHERE  RUEH ERikE fikh 5RE8 BRERE  EMOR EAAR  AW/RM BBREEE  EAfE AU/RM BRESA
(note ) (note a) (note b) note a) (note )
(Hito (i) (W) (Wifa) (i)
Directors 35.2011 HK$6.388 452013352014 452013 397,500 - - 397500) - - - -
FH I “5-=FRfRAZ 5=
1A=R Z5-IERAZA iVl
452014-35.2015 452014 530,000 (60,000) - - 470,000 (60,0000 (410,000) -
Z3-RERAMAZ 5IE
Z5-hERA=A RARA
Directors 2832012 HK94.186 283.2013-273.2016 2832013 67,500 (22,500 - - 45,000 (45,000) - -
£ 5-2F Lk ZE-ZEZACPRE 5%
=AZtNR ZInEZAZTHR ZACTAR
283.2014-273.2016 2832014 67,500 22,500 - - 45,000 (45,000) - -
S 1 S 3
v o Y o L
283.2015-21.3.2016 283.2015 90,000 (30,000) - - 60,000 (60,000) - -
E-RESACTRE CR-1E
v o Y o L
Directors 232013 HK$3.75 0320146132017 232014 195,000 - - (195,000) - - - -
g2 I=E 3En S 1:30 £ S 1:3
=AztzH g RS o
203.2015-213.2017 032015 195,000 = - (195,000 - - - -
CE-RESfCTIAE CE-1f
g ot RS e
203.2016-213.2017 032016 260,000 = - (260,000) - - - -
CEAESACTIEE B
S e B
Directors 852013 HK$3.75 203.2014-213.2017 032014 5,550,000 - - (5,550,000 - - - -
EH 3ZE 3D < el - 23
il ot iy S
(notee) 2320152132017 232015 5,550,000 - - (5,550,000) - - - -
(Hte) T o - R S 13
I-tESAzt-R ZAZfCR
223.2016-213.2017 2232016 7,400,000 - - (7.400,000) - - - -
ZI-RESAItIAE 23R
I-tESAzt-R ZACfCR
20,302,500 (135,000) - (19,547,500) 620,000 (210,000 (410,000) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UM AEBNR2RS (&)

(continued)
(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXAMBRERBRESSE(E)
Number Number Number of
of options Lapsed/  of options Lapsed/ options
Exercise outstanding  Reclassified  Ewercised  forfeited outstanding  Exercised  forfeited  outstanding
Category of Eligible price Exercisable asat during during during asat during during asat
Scheme Participants  Date of grant  per share period Vesting date 112014 theyear  theyear  theyear 31122014  theyear  theyear  31.12.2015
H-§-BF H-3-mE H-%-1f
-5-8 t2Azt-A tZh=1-A
BRGEN R By HRGRN B HAGEN
AERTESNERN RHRH BRARE fried bk BRENE  ENAE  EMGE AW/ BREME  RAGE AWk RRENR
(note ) (note a) (note b) (note g) (note d)
(Hito (Hita (Hitb) (Hiika) (Hitd)
Eploesad 29010 HB3% BINBNINN 332013 18000 -0 (575000 - - - -
oterparicpants  ~3-FF 3387 TF-SENACTIRE 23-f
EERERBEE  AAzf2R S-RERAZTZR AASTER
Employegs and 352011 HK$6.388 452013-35.2014 452013 3,381,000 - - (3,381,000 - - - -
oherpatidpants 3% 63883ET “I-SERAMAE SRcE 4508000 60000 SR 4180000 (2400000) (1,780,000 .
EEREMSEZ  BA=H “I-MERAZA RAmA
45.014-35.2015 452014
T-MERARAZR 5]
“5-1%5A=A RARA
Employees and 2832012 HK$4.186 283.2013-273.2016 2832013 3,163,500 2,50 - (381,000 2805000 (2,725,000) - 80,000
otherpartcpants  ~5-2% 418677 5-HZf-t)\RE %=
EEREfAEE  =A-tNA ZE-NESACHR ZAZTAR
283.2014-273.2016 2832014 3,163,500 22,500 - (381,000 2,805,000 (2,289,000) - 516,000
5-RESAZH\AE  Z5-RE
JINESACTHR ZACTAR
283.2015-273.2016 2832015 4218000 30,000 - (5080000 3,740,000 (1,948,000)  (200000) 1,592,000
ZE-RESACTRE R-RE
JINESACTHR ZACTAR
19,862,000 135,000 (852000) (5,615,000 13530000  (9362000)  (1,980,000) 2,188,000
40,164,500 - (8520000 (25,162,500 14150000 (9572,000)  (2.390,000) 2,188,000
Number of options exercisable at the end of the year
REBRNERERR 8437500 10350000 2188000
Weighted average exercse rice HK$4.43 - HKS338 HKSA20  HKSA9T  HKSATS  HKSE0  HKSAM9
MR 183ER - IBET ANER  40UET  ATORR 60ET A9
BaXitEEERAT —ZT—HFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36.

(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
notes:
(@) In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended 31

December 2015, the share prices at the dates of exercise ranged from
HK$5.05 to HK$12.46 (2014: HK$3.66 to HK$4.47).

(b) 19,150,000 share options granted to directors were cancelled by
forfeiture in 2014 as the Profit Target 2013 (explained and defined
below) was not met. In addition, 397,500 and 5,615,000 share
options granted to directors and employees, respectively, were lapsed
due to maturity of unexercised options or forfeited in 2014 due to

resignation of certain employees.

(c) In 2014, an independent non-executive director resigned from the
Company but was retained as a consultant to the Group to provide

consultancy services similar to those rendered by employees.

(d) 410,000 and 1,980,000 share options granted to directors and
employees, respectively, were lapsed due to maturity of unexercised
options in 2015 or forfeited due to resignation of certain employees.

(e) This represents the date when the grant of share options under
the Scheme to the relevant directors of the Company (namely Mr.
Fang and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen) was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company. Under the Scheme,
however, the date of grant is taken to be the date when the board of
directors of the Company resolved to make the offer of grant of share
options to the relevant directors of the Company, which was 22 March
2013.

Service period that share options
can be vested after date of grant

RELABRTEEBRENREHH

PR REBNR 2R 5 (&)

(i) BRLHABERBREE (F)

BfRE

(@)

(e)

RREBEE—ZT—AF+=-A=1+—
HIEFETENBRERS - BT
fFREORHEBRN F5.058TE
12468 L ( = F — U4 : 3.66/8 7T
B447HETT) °

BT EE19,150,00017 B A 7
T -NFEFHRRK - RER =
T =FHMNBEE(TXHRERA
TE)AREK © I DRIRTFESER
& 8 #9397,500 15 & 5,615,000 {3
f&#E R 204 2 B BB S B R 1T
HERER T —NFR R8I
[IES:E

N-F—ME —BBUERITE
ERADAFEABREATRERE
M 4R fH B fih 18 B PT H fR 0 AR 7%
MR LR A S ARTS ©

AR TFESRIEEH410,00017 &
1,980,000 7 FE IR AR T —HF
ARAT {55 ) B A 4 B EA T 2k sk 3D
PR BB M2 o

IR BIEZTEMBBES (AN
4 2 Stephanus Maria van Ooijen
) R IH AR E A R BB AR R
#EZ B o A - BERZETE - R
HEPHABRNESTGREEHE
HAARBERE SR BEREN
B I=—F—=F=A=+=H-

Maximum percentage

of share options exercisable

ATEERENB DL ER

Attaining 1 year
FH—F
Attaining 2 years
B MF
Attaining 3 years
FHE=F
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30% of the total number of options granted

B B AR AR B 30%

60% of the total number of options granted

R B RELRH 60%

100% of the total number of options granted

AT BR AR AR B 100%
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. URGAERSRZRXS ()
(continued)

(ii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRAMBERBRESS (&)

In addition to satisfying the above service period
requirement, 650,000 and 18,500,000 share options
granted to the executive directors on 22 March 2013 and 23
May 2013 respectively would only be vested if the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was equal to
or exceed 130% of the Group’s profit for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010 (“Profit Target 2013").

In respect of the share options granted without
performance condition, taking into account (i) the
applicable vesting period and (i) the number of options
expected to ultimately vest, the Group recognised share-
based payment expense of HK$428,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: HK$3,567,000).

Brim e Ll RASEAR 2k 2 5h
MAEEHE-_E—=F1+=#
=+ HIEFEZRFERREE
BAEEHE _ZT—ZF+_ A
=+ —RHIEMEEFERFIA 130%
([ZZ2—=F5MEZ]) - AR
—E—=F=ZA=-+=-HER=E
—=FAA-_+=BHRIKRTE
%,2650,00017 2 18,500,00017 &
RRAES SR o

IR H I R R S R BE AR AE T
= BR>)VEABBEH R (i) B
EREBEBNBERESE  BHEZ
E-—AE+_A=+—HIFE
RNEFEERIARD BERANR
732 428,000/ L (=& — M4 :
3,567,000/87T) °

BRUEEBRLE —T-HFFH
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 37.

(i) Transactions

During the year, the Group has the following transactions

with related parties:

BAE KT
0 %2

RER AEEREESTBEAT

R5 :

Name of party Nature of transaction 2015 2014
BELEH RHMHE —E-EF —ZT-MmE
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER AT
Related party transactions
BERLS
Sims (@) &(0) Purchase of scrap metals 56,759 524,714
BEERE
Interest expense on convertible 6,538 34,681
bonds with principal amount
of HK$315,600,000
A $58315,600,000 #ELH)
ABRERF S X
Compensation received - 451
BHiE
Compensation paid - 3
BIRE
Delco (b) & () Interest expense on convertible bonds 11,667 34,351
ABREF X
HWH (b) & (c) Interest expense on convertible bonds 4,968 7,428

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 37. BERHE (&)

(i) Transactions (continued) (i) =%(&)
Name of party Nature of transaction 2015 2014
HELER RHHE “E-1% ZT-IF
notes HK$'000 HK$'000
I TR TAT
Related party transactions (continued)
BER5(E)
USUMHK (d) Interest expense on convertible bonds 1,606 -
IR AHARES < MBXH
(e) Conversion of convertible bonds 315,600 -
RBABRES
Mr. Fang (f) Interest expense of a loan with principal 1,198 -
HRE amount of USD8,000,000
K& 78,000,000 X T B2 FIEX H
Poly Metals (9) Purchase of scrap metals 743 25,222
=) BERCRE
BeXitEEERAT —ZT—EFFR
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Transactions (continued)

()

notes:

(a)

()

(e)

)

(9)

These represent transactions between the Group and Sims up to 5
March 2015, on which Sims disposed of its entire shareholding in the
Company and became an independent third party to the Group.

Delco and HWH, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Fang, disposed of
their entire shareholding in the Company and became independent
third parties to the Group from 17 April 2015 and 22 December 2015

respectively.

As set out in Note 29, the Company issued convertible bonds to Sims,
Delco and HWH. Sims, Delco and HWH were substantial shareholders
with significant influence over the Company up to 5 March 2015, 17
April 2015 and 22 December 2015 as disclosed in (a) and (b).

On 3 June 2015, the Sims Convertible Bonds were purchased by
USUMHK.

As set out in Note 29, the USUMHK Convertible Bonds with principal
amount of HK$315,600,000 were fully converted into shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price of HK$6.00 per
share on 15 June 2015.

In January 2015, the Group borrowed USD8,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$62,021,000) from Mr. Fang who was a director of the Company
up to 16 February 2016 as disclosed in Note 14 and a substantial
shareholder with significant influence over the Company up to 22
December 2015 as disclosed in (b) above. The balance was unsecured,
interest bearing at 4% per annum and fully repaid in July 2015.

In April 2014, the Group invested in an associate, Poly Metals, with
significant influence. The amount represents transactions between the
Group and Poly Metals.
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37. &
(i)

B IKE (&)

X5 (&)

Bf%

(a)

(e)

-

EAEBESIms EE-T—AF=
AREBHRS REBSImsiEH
RARRNZEIBRAELK AREE
ZEBNE=F o

Delco R HWH(H A e £ 2 EHH) 5
=T —AFMHA+EtAR=Z
—HE+ZA-+-—AHEERA

AN HBRAEL R ANEE 2B

A
SNE=T e

20 Bff TE29FF &+ A A B [[Sims
Delco X HWH 2 17 A #2 i & % -
Sim » Delco R HWH A& ¥ AN A 7] &
BEAXENZEFZRRKSims &
DelcoEE=F—HF=AAAH =
T-RENATEEER-ZT—AF
+ZA=Zt+=—BAHARRIARE

HE )2 EZRF (1A(a) & (b) Fri
#) -

RZF—AFA=H
BE A Sims AR E 55 ©

CAEER

B K FE29FT B A & B A
315,600,000 75 7T 8081 75 5 7 AR AR
&% BER-ZE—RAEAATAEA
R EERG6.008 TERLIRA
AAFEESO.01BITHIRRY ©

RZZT—AF— A A5EREZE
ZE—RFZATABRIAEXA
RES(MHF4RBEREE
T—H&E+-_A=-+-HAAY
KRARABEATVEBNZEER
R) (0 EXX(b) T ER) R ERBA
8,000,000 € 7t (46 % 74 62,021,000
BIT) o ERAEIER - WiZ4% 8
FHEGFE  BERZT—HFtA
BEUEER -

K-T-mERA  ARE(AAE
AREN) RAR—MBEATE
B % e EEARERED2 M
%5 -
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 37. BERHE (&)

(ii)) Balances (i) #gr
The Group has the following balances with related parties at AREERRERERME A A
the end of the reporting period: NG
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

R-_ZB—-R%F R=ZT—mF
t=A=+t—-8 +=A=t+-H

Name of party Nature of balance HK$'000 HK$'000
BERS BB HEEAMEE FHER FHIT
Balances with related parties
B 7 A R
Sims Deposit paid for purchase of raw materials - 4,294
BERMHNE RS
Trade payables - 71,077
B P E
Warrants - 75,831
RN
Convertible Bonds - 315,600
AR E 5
Delco Convertible Bonds - 312,600
AR ES
HWH Convertible Bonds - 67,600
AR ES
All the above amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The FHFAAERELHREERARE
average credit period for the trade purchases is 60 days and B B9RENTHEENR60
the amounts are aged less than 60 days. H - MZzIBHRE DR 60H °
(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (iii) FEEEASHMH
The directors of the Company and the five highest paid ARFEEh A& MES
employees are identified as key management members of HRAEAEBEETEZEREAE  #
the Group, details of their compensation during the year are ERFANFT BSR4 -

set out in Note 14.

EERMEEFRAT —T-AFFR
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38. OPERATING LEASES 38. REHE
The Group as lessee AEEEREBEA
2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments paid FARBEERELNH
under operating leases HEHES
during the year:
Premises L/ES 11,345 16,328
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REREEIR - AREB BB BHES
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable FHAEBR T7IEHER SR REERS
operating leases which fall due as follows: APELR ¢
2015 2014
—Z-afF ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Within one year EF—FNRN 4,463 12,649
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEZNF (PDEEEMF) 1,344 6,147
5,807 18,796
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group RETHSEARERARETHAERLEE
for certain of its offices and production premises. Leases are MEEMES - ML HEESFHN
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years with fixed F—E=AFRBLETE °

rentals.
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38. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

39.

The Group as lessor

Rental income of leasing investment properties during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,208,000 (2014:
HK$1,530,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

38.

KEHE (8)
AEBEATHAA
BHE_ZT—RAF+_-_A=+—H1
FEC-EEDERAENHEE KA
#1,208,0007 ;m( = & — M F:
1,530,000/ 7T) °

RBEHR  AEERBFOEL TR
REEHESWAT :

2015 2014

—E-AfF —T—puE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Within one year —FA 403 403
PENDING LITIGATIONS 39. #FRFER

The Group is a defendant in legal claims filed by the lessor
of certain properties in Shanghai, the PRC for unpaid rent,
management fees, early termination fee and reinstatement
costs totalling approximately RMB40.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$48.5 million). The Group filed a counter-
claim against the lessor of overall expected direct economic loss
of approximately RMB108 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$128.9 million) as a result of alleged misrepresention by the
lessor.

The People’s Court in Baoshan District, Shanghai, the PRC
(“Baoshan District Court”) delivered an initial judgement in
December 2013. In summary, the initial judgment is in favour of
the Group, details of which are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated on 15 January 2014. Both the Group and the
lessor had applied for an appeal against this judgement. On 12
January 2015, the Baoshan District Court delivered the revised
judgement in relation to these legal claims. In summary, the
revised judgment is in favour of the Group. The Group applied
for an appeal against the judgement given on 12 January 2015.
On 19 June 2015, the Shanghai No. 2 Intermediate People’s
Court revoked the appeal and upheld the judgement made on
12 January 2015. The Group applied for an appeal against the
judgement given on 19 June 2015.
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39.

40.

41.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited

PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the Company,
after obtaining legal advice and considering the full provision
already made by the Group as disclosed in Note 27, are of the
opinion that eventual resolution of the above litigations will not
have any material adverse impact to the Group'’s future results and
financial position.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Company is a defendant to a legal claim by Delco (the
“Claim”) regarding an alleged non-payment of the loan advanced
by Delco Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries
of the Company, amounting to approximately HK$57,827,000
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it acquired
the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011. Delco Asia was
dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each of Mr. Fang and HWH
undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold the Company
harmless on demand against all losses arising out of, inter alia, the
Claim in accordance with the terms of a letter of indemnity signed
by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the Company on 17 December
2015 (the “Indemnity”). In addition, HWH has paid the amount
of HK$57,827,118 to a lawyer in an escrow account (“Escrow
Account”) as security for any liability of the Company in respect
of, inter alia, the Claim.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the Company,
after taking legal advice from its legal advisers and in review of
the Indemnity and the Escrow Account, are of the opinion that it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the Claim. Accordingly, no
provision of the claim has been made.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
derecognised the original Convertible Bonds | upon the substantial
modification of terms and recognised the new Convertible Bonds
Il. Details of the derecognition and recognition of convertible
bonds are set out in Note 29.

Annual Report 2015
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following events took place after the reporting period:

(i)

(i)

In January 2016, the Group completed its acquisition
of 60% of the effective equity interest of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd., which
is principally engaged in the sale of hazardous waste,
lubricating oil, gas oil, base oil, residual oil, fuel oil and the
related additives in the PRC, from independent third parties
at a cash consideration of approximately RMB55 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$66 million). Details are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 January
2016. The assessment of the financial impact is in the
process.

On 21 August 2015, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with independent third parties in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Dalian
New Green Recycle & Resources Corporation (“DNG"),
at a consideration of RMB345,614,000 (equivalent to
HK$419,007,000) to be settled by way of an issue of
31,037,585 shares of the Company. In March 2016, the
acquisition has been completed. DNG is principally engaged
in recycle processing and utilisation of scrap metals,
discarded appliances, office machines and other wastes.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
21 August 2015, 30 December 2015 and 21 March 2016.
The assessment of the financial impact is still in progress.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. AR BRI T

COMPANY
The summarised financial position of the Company at the end of R EBRAQ RS SAR B AT -
the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E=— &
note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5k FET FH&T
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries, KRB AR ZRE
unlisted JEETH - -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BfT /BB /R B 3R IE 5,596,913 1,652,441
Other receivables o fth fE W R IE 370 487
Bank balances RITHERR 132,377 133
5,729,660 1,653,061
Current liabilities REBaE 6,242 6,106
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A B3R IE 5 =
Other borrowings EAb1ER 161,559 -
Debt component of convertible bonds AR ES 2 B - 816,421
167,806 822,527
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERE 5,561,854 830,534
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital (Note 30) A&7 (B3 30) 15,885 10,494
Reserves G (i) 5,432,767 820,040
Total equity RS 5,448,652 830,534
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Other borrowings HAb A 44,775 =
Debt component of convertible bonds AR B 25 2 B ER 5 58,812 -
Embedded derivative components of AR EFRARITERS D
convertible bonds 9,615 -
113,202 -
5,561,854 830,534

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2015
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  43. XA R HAMRAEK (&)

COMPANY (continued)

()

Movement in reserves (i) RE2H
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Capital revaluation Accumulated
premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits (losses) Total
KRR A1EERR EhEdR ErER REEHEE  ZeAI(EE) e
HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
ThT T ThT TiT S Thn T
(note a)
(Kiita)
At 1 January 2014 N-%-mE-F-A 892,493 24 31,835 216,08 (1417) 92838 1,232,181
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - (429,623) (429,623)
Fairvalue gain on avalable-  FEHERE
for-sale investment N - - - - 918 - 918
Redassiied toprofitorloss ~ fiEWELERE
ondisposal of avallable- ~ ENHEZER
for-sale investment - - - - 499 - 499
Total comprehensive EMRERR
eipense for the year g - - - - 1417 (429613) (428,20)
Brerdse of shareoptions /7% B fE
(Note 30 (note i) (Biak 30 (Bisti)) 16,568 - (&070) - - - 12498
Lapse of share options B - - (10949) - - 10949 -
Recogniton of eqity- BUIREEER
setfled share-based RABER
payments (Note 36) (1t 30) - - 3567 - - - 3,567
At 31 December 2014 R_F-BF
t-A=t-8 909,061 24 20383 216,208 - (325,836) 820,040
EeRMEEERAT —ZT—HFFR
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. ARQA BB REK (8)
COMPANY (continued)

(i) Movement in reserves (continued) (i) f*AEEE(E)
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption option Capital revaluation ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RbEE  EABERE BhRERE Erfif  REEMRE 2t it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAn TR Tn TR Tir Tin Tn
(note 2)
(Hita)
Loss for the year EpEk - - - - - (327,607) (327,607)
Fairvalue gain on avallable- ~ FEHERE
for-sale investment AT@EhE - - - - 4,606 - 4,606

Redassiied toprofitorloss ~ diEWELERE
ondisposal of avalable- ~ BENAEZER

for-sale investment - - - - (4,606) - (4,606)

Total comprehensive EMRERR

expense for the year g - - - - - (327,607) (327,607)

Iste of shares o) 412,100 - - - - - 412,100

Costofisuanceof shares BB ZAE (22,100 - - - - - (22,100)

Conversion of convertible AR ES

bonds (Notes 29and 30)  (Hf3E2930) 804,517 - - - - - 804,517

Brerdise of share options IR TR

(Note 30 (note i) (Hf&E30 (k&) 61,225 - (15,836) - - - 45,389
Lapse of share options BRERN - - (3621) - - 362 -
Recogniton of eqity- BNRESER

setfled share-based WRIBER 2[5

payments (Note 36) (Kiit36) - - 08 - - - 08
At31 December 2015 RZE-1f

t2A=1-8 5,864,803 0 1354 216,208 - (649,822) 5,432,767

note: B & -

(a) Capital reserve of the Company represents the net effect of (i) the (a) ARRERNFBHER =T —ZF () ENMER
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans of HK$223,708,000 and (i) the FRE 223,708,000 7 7T & (i) AN A G A E R
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of 749,999,900 shares A ) EL AR SR 35 17 M Bid 3% 48 5t 749,999,900
of HK$0.01 each in the Company out of the capital reserve to its RABRS A% 2 8B ARE(E 0.01 B TH AR D
shareholders, credited as fully paid at par, in 2010. BB -

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE

44, PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44. RRB)ME AR FE
COMPANY
44a. General information of subsidiaries 44a. MBDEIHN—RER
Issued and
Place/ Place of fully paid
country of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation establishment registered capital voting power held by the Group ~ Principal activities
L/ BRARAR
KRARER M Sed¥/AX  RIME Ba/EmRA AEEFERERARERRTE  IEXE
2015 2014
Z-1f 3-IE
Chiho-Tiande International () HongKong British Virgin Islands Us§2 100% 100% Investrent holding
Limited (*CT International”) &t ABRGES VS RERR
BERHERERAA
(TE=ER])
Profit Gain International () HongKong British Virgin Islands Uss1 100% = Investrent holding
Group Limited ("Profit Gain”) A ARRAHS 1% REMR
RERREEERAT
(TaE))
Jinlian International Group Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS1 100% - Investment holding
Limited &k &k 187 RAMR
SRERSEARAT
Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited &t &k 100007 RERK
BaNtRERRAT
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands  The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
i | i ] 18,1518 the Group
AERNRERE
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100% Purchasing agent of
EaR(ER) BRAR &k B 147 the Group and
wholesales of metal
scrap without processing
AEENRRRRR
ANIESEHE

EEREERRAT —T-AFFR
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44, PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44. KRB A BIFE (8)
COMPANY (continued)
44a.General information of subsidiaries 44a. B LATFMN—RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place/ Place of fully paid
country of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation establishment registered capital voting power held by the Group ~ Principal activities
e/ BRARAR
KELRER I EEdE/Ex  AIsR /R AEBGRERARERREE  TEER
2015 2014
ZE-1% 3
Hefast Holding Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited &t &k 100,000 470 RERR
Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Copper Industry Company Ak 5 10,0007 225
Limited

EARS(FR)HXARAA

Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 10% 10% Trading of metal scrap
Recycling Co,, Limited &k &k 35,000,007 EERCE
("CTHK Metals")

BaKM(EE)BLER
ARAR([BEREELE]

Chiho-Tiande (HK) i) HongKong Hong Kong HK$10,000 36.4% 36.4% Provide logistics
Logistics Co. Limited &k &k 10,0047 services
("CTHK Logistics") R

BARE(FR) MRERAR
i)

Chiho-Tiande Investments Hong Kong British Virgin Islands Uss1 100% 100% Investrment holding
(BVI) Lirited &k B 157 RERR

Chiho-Tiande Metals Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Investment Limited &t &k 1000037 225

EoRHEBREBRAA

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited  Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—T—HF +-_A=1T—HItFE
44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44. RNNTIHE A B FE (8)

COMPANY (continued)

44a. General information of subsidiaries 44a. B LA —RER (&)

(continued)
Issued and
Place/ Place of fully paid
country of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation establishment registered capital voting power held by the Group ~ Principal activities
e/ BRARAR
KELRER I EEdE/Ex  AIsR /R AEBGRERARERREE  TEER
2015 2014
ZE-1% 3
Chiho-Tiande Resources Hong Kong British Virgin Islands U1 100% 100% Inactive
Limited B ARRRES 147 e
Chiho-Tiande (Ningho) (i) ThePRC The PRC /520,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Recycling il o] 20,000 00057 of metal scrap
Co,, Limited MIRHERER
BAKH(ER)BE
SRERAT
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (i) ThePRC The PRC S§7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Foundry Company Limited i o] 7,500,000%7C of metal scrap,
ANEEREEERAR production and sales
of metal products
NIRHERSE
EERHECRER
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande (i)~ The PRC The PRC 5$62,382,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Metals Company Limited ol E (2014: US$52,682,000) of metal scrap,
ANEE RS BERAT 62,382,005 production and sales
(Z3-BF : 52,682,000%TC) of metal products
NIREERSR
EERGECRER
Shanghai Chiho-Tiande The PRC The PRC RMB52,000,000 51% 51% Processing and sales
Resource Recydling e E ARE52,0000007 of metal scrap
Co., Limited (“CT Shanghai”) NIRBERSE
LREARHBEERARAR
BEAMEBERAT —ZT—AFFHR
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44, PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44. RABHE A RIS (8)
COMPANY (continued)
44a.General information of subsidiaries 44a. B LATFMN—RER (&)
(continued)
Issued and
Place/ Place of fully paid
country of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity interest and
Name of subsidiary notes  operation establishment registered capital voting power held by the Group  Principal activities
e/ BRARAR
WRAFER I EEdE/Ex  AIsR /R AEBGRERARERREE  TEER
2015 2014
ZE-1% 3
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) (i)~ ThePRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales
Resources Recycling il E 4000000057 of metal scrap
Co. Limited NIREERER
EaXb(BR)BEAR
ERAT
Chiho-Tiande (Yantai) (ii)iy) ~ The PRC The PRC 5$18,999,970 100% 100% Processing and sales
Environmental w8 hE (2014: US§7,000,000) of metal scrap
Technology Co,, Limited 18,999,970 7 NIRHERSE
BRI (R RRME (23— : 7,000,000%T)
ERAT
Lu Xin Cheng Clean () ThePRC The PRC RMB44,468,750 60% - Inactive
Energy Limited il E ARE 44,468 70T e
RENRZHRERDT
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 RZE-—RAFER-_ZFT—NMF+=A
December 2015 and 2014. =+ —AENE A R BT A ERE
o
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44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
44a. General information of subsidiaries

(continued)

notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

The Company holds CT International and Profit Gain directly and all
other subsidiaries indirectly.

Although the Group has 36.4% attributable interest in CTHK Logistics,
the Group held 52% equity interest in CTHK Logistics through a
70% owned subsidiary, CTHK Metals. The directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has the power to direct the relevant
activities of CTHK Logistics.

These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

The registered capital is US$88,500,000 as at 31 December 2014
and 2015, and the paid share capital is US$18,999,970 (2014:
US$7,000,000).

The registered capital is RMB80,000,000 and the paid share capital is
RMB44,468,750 as at 31 December 2015.

44, RN FIMB QRIS (8)

44a. BB —REHR (F)

GEX

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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44b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 44b. BEERFEZERERNFEZE
have material non-controlling interests i) PNCIEES
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TR RAES ERNEERER R
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling AEBIIFZENB AR :
interests:
Proportion
of ownership
Place of interests and (Loss) profit
incorporation voting right held allocated to Accumulated
Name of and principal by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
AL S FERBREE AREFER
WEAR SR TRERE WiREREERRERLA REsH (58) &7 ZitFERER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-5% -T-mF CZB-IF -F-mF CE-EF CI-@F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAL ThExL T

CTHK Metals Hong Kong 30% 30% (8,577) (4,634) (2,826) 5,752
BARELE B
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (71,315) (86,446)

with non-controlling interests (note)
EEFHERERR AR EANE AR (M)

(74141) (80,694)

note:  Since these subsidiaries did not have significant assets and liabilities, Mizx : ARZENBARTES AEERARE 2
the major balance of accumulated non-controlling interests arose from ST R EAGERELE BB A R £
the share of losses in CT Shanghai. TERE(LEE -
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44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44,

COMPANY (continued)

44b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

RRFIMEB A RFHE (E)

4b. EEERFERESNHEZE

i) PNCIESAE )

TXHEINEREEEA AR
SR ANEEENERARNMBE
BE - TXOMBER BRI
SENEHATSHE

eliminations.
CTHK Metals EeBBEE
2015 2014
—2-1% “T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Current assets mBEE 158,818 180,198
Non-current assets FRBEE 5,446 7,170
Current liabilities REBARE (173,683) (168,196)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company "D H A fEfE s (6,593) 13,420
Non-controlling interests FlEalle (2,826) 5,752
Revenue Yeas 256,275 557,047
Expenses X (284,866) (572,494)
Loss for the year FRER (28,591) (15,447)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company —~ AA RS AEIEERE (20,014) (10,813)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests  JEHEfHE S Fe (i 518 (8,577) (4,634)
Total comprehensive expense attributable ARARERAEIEZE
to owners of the Company X 2% (20,014) (10,813)
Total comprehensive expense attributable IR (L 2E
to non-controlling interests bt (8,577) (4,634)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREAEFAY B (28,591) (15,447)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHRERNFE 37,248 85,977
Net cash outflow from investing activities RERDRSRLFE (4,608) (3,069)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from MERPRSRA ORE ) FE
financing activities 28,327 (91,713)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BeEmRA R ) 8 60,967 (8,805)
BaXitEEERAT —ZT—HFFR




5-Year Financial Summary

TFEHERE

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t+—HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% ZZE-=—f ZT-=fFf CZT-WmFE Z—E-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHT FHx T FHET iR
RESULTS B
Revenue Yzs 9,815,522 8,202,702 7,222,003 5,877,970 3,136,633
Profit (loss) before tax BrFi A @ A (B518) 204,459 72,034 (381,776)  (1,067,611)  (1,143,684)
Income tax expense PSR (88,208) (32,683) (25,742) (3,629) (337)
Profit (loss) for the year FE A F 795
attributable to: (E1) :
Owners of the Company ARAEE A 152,087 88,591 (382,920)  (1,057,980) (1,138,804)
Non-controlling interest FEE IR (35,836) (49,240) (24,598) (13,260) (5,217)
116,251 39,351 (407,518)  (1,071,240)  (1,144,021)
At 31 December
R+t=B=+-8
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——% ZZE-=—f ZT-=fFf CZT-WFE Z—E-IE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHIT FHT TAT FET FTiER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets EEHE 5314522  5201,979 4,917,292 3,641,025 6,037,924
Total liabilities afEBE (3,250,502)  (3,128,437) (3,210,603) (2,997,669) (1,624,090)
Net assets FEE 2,064,020 2,073,542 1,706,689 643,356 4,413,834

RARER  ZLESBEEROIEZTHL
7758 EXRBE BETT  (Z1EHH
ZF e

In this report, amounts denominated in US$ have been converted
into HK$ at the rate of approximately US$1 = HK$7.75 for illustration
purpose only.

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. Should AR ELAR R MEZ SR - ERE
there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions, CERHA L FEEER LNEXA
the English version shall prevail.
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